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With operations iIn more than
125 countries and 625,000
employees, we specialise

in outsourced business
processes and facilities

N sectors where securtty

and safety risks are considered
a strategic threat.

G45 plays an important rote in society We make a difference by helping
people to operate In safe and secure environments where they can thrive
and prosper and we believe this role can only grow in importance

G4S is the world’s leading international security solutions group.
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Performance overview

Financial highlights .

Despite a difficult economic emvironment, GG45 delivered another year of strong
performance in 2010, with good organic growth and margins maintained at the

same level as the prior year The group also achieved its cash conversion target

of 85% of PBITA

Qrganic turnover growth Group turnover up 4 1% Adjusted earnings per share
of2 1% to £7.4 billion up T% to 21 ép
+4.2% £442m +790p
PBITA up by 4.2% Operauing cash flow Recommended total dividend
to £527 muidlion of £442 milhon, 85% of PBITA per share up 10% to 7 90p
Group KPls

The key financial performance indicators for G4S operational management are
PBITA margin, cash conversion (operating cash flow as a % of PBITA) and organic
growth These indicators have shown a positive trend over the past six years
GRAPH GRAPH GRAPH
REMOVED REMOVED REMOVED

Non-financial KPls

Managers across the group are akso targeted to achieve additional speafic company or country
objectives which relate to the business enrvironment i which they operate and the local challenges
that the businesses face All objectrves and targets are focused on drving the business performance
forward and delvenng the group's solutions strategy over the fonger term At a group-wide level
one of the key elements of the strategy s to ensure that over tme a significant propartion of the
group’s revenues are derived from what we define as ‘solutions ' type contracts and relationships
This 15 measured through an ongoing analysis of our top customers across the globe as outlined on

pages 6 and 7
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Strategy and investment proposition

We are well placed to continue
driving value for our
stakeholders by maximising
the potential of our business. ..

Our strategy

QOur goal 1s to be recogrised as the global leader
n providing security solutions to help customers
to achieve their own strategic goals and to deliver
sustanable growth for our business and long-term
sharehclder value for our investors through the
following

-+ Drive outsourcing
in key markets

+ Focus on key sectors where
security i1s a key consideration

+ Develop long-term
partnerships and deliver
“solutions”” to our
customers’ needs which
enhance their strategy

+ Transfer skills developed
In more mature markets
into key New Markets

+ Acquire additional expertise
to enhance capability

Our investment proposition
Integrated security solutions

We are able to design and manage security
solutions that bnng together our capabidrues n
project management, risk consultancy, secure
faciiues management physical secunity intelligent
systems and high quality secunty-trained personnel
to solve the secunty challenges of a broad range
of customers across the world

Unrivalled cash
solutions expertise

Under standing and managing the cash cycle

of a country s a core skill of the group Central
banks, commer cial banks and retaters outsource
ther entre cash management to G45S because
we have the capabiity and experience to drive
substantial efficencies in the system whilst
achieving the maxymum retumn for our customers
over the long term

Government partnerships

Government outsourting 1s a strong long-term
source of growth as public sector spending
remains under pressure and governments iook
to the private sector to fill the gap Government
contracts which currently represent around 28%
of group tumover tend to be long-term

strategic partnerships with recurning revenues

IMAGE
REMOVED

Strong New Markets positions

Our global presence market shares and
expenence of working in less developed markets
15 unrivalled in almost any ndustry it means that
we know what it takes to be sucgessful in these
markets and are well posiiioned to maxmise the
structural growth opportunities as they develop
over tme Inmany cases we are able to drive
that development forward to the benefit of our
customners and our business

The solutions approach

Each individual area of the business 1s a2 driver
of value for the group But it is when they come
together that they truly make a difference
Exporting our government expertise to new
countries leveraging our cash solutions model
across New Markets and using our global sk
management and security capabiiites to protect
some of the world s best known brands across
international markets, drive even greater value
lor our Investars

Investment proposition case studies
The strength of G45 15 the dversity of s
geographic and customer base In these case
studies we have chosen some examples of
the type of work we do for customers to
demonstrate our investment proposition

12-31
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Customer sectors Our focus on key markets
and relationships and customer sectors
We are global experts in the assessment and G4S has a broad range of customers around
management of secunity and safety risks for the world, but our strategic focus 1s on sectors H
burldings, infrastructure matenals, valuables where security and safety are key This sector E
and people expertise enables us to builld long-term P9
We develop long-term, strategic partrerships gartnershlps with Qustomers and helps
rive growth across the businesses
with customers In key sectors where we can help GRAPH
them to debver their own business objectives —
either increasing their revenues reducing costs, REMOVED z
managing nsks and protecting entical assets or g
improving their service delivery to the customers w
that they serve E
We do that by understanding the environments a
in which our customers operate, the pressures
they face and the things that matter to them
By applying our expertise and the knowledge
denved from delivermng security solutions in
diverse regulatory environments it mor e than o
125 countries, we turn our customers security E
challenges into opportunitias E
g
Our broad geographic reach é
(545 bas a broad gecgraphic reach giving
it a unigue global footpnnt. "
:Eé
GRAPH -
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QOur segments -
an integrated approach
Secure solutions - non-goverament
Integrated security solutions for commercial
custemers such as nsk consulung. manned
secunity and security Systems GRAPH
Secure solutions - government REMOVED
Protection of crucal natonat infr astructure
care and justice services, secur e factiies and
border protecton
Cash solutions
Qutsourang of cash cycle management for
central banks financal nstrtutions and retaders.
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Strategy and investment proposition

Our key growth drivers

With strong market pasrtions in developad
and developing markets complementing giobal
outsourcing trends, we believe G4S has a
sustainable growth strategy The key dnvers
of growth for the group can be summansed
as follows

All services

=+ Economic ervironment and GDP growth
=+ Customer satisfaction and rezention

- Competitive environment

-+ Regulaton

=+ Level of customer relavonship

= Innovauon

<+ Company reputation and wrack record

Cash solutions

- Role and strategy of central banks

= Development phases of the cash cycle

+ Increased willingness to outsource

= Product innavation — end-to-end ATM
management, CASH360

=+ Interest rates

= Crime

Secure solutions - government
= Focus on secunty

=+ Propensity to outsource

= Budgetary pressures

Secure solutions = non-government

=+ Attrtude to nsk management

=+ Focus on high growth segments

-+ Growih of internationally let contr acts
from multnationals

<+ Investment in infrastructur e growth n
New Markets

-+ Impact of technology

= Multservices or service bundtng

All services

Economic environment

and GDP growth

A favourable economic environment sumulates
demand for our customers services and hence
their secunty requirements Wages and salanes
ate a high proportion of the G45 cost base

As a result, higher wages due to inflation usually

result in increased prices for our services

Customer satisfaction and retention
Customer satisfacton and account management
are vital for the group We have a range of
customers from small businesses th: ough to
major multinatronal companies and our cusiomer
retention rates are strong

Competitive environment

The secunty industry can be very fragmented
particularty in New Markets Our goalis to
have strong market-leading positians in our

key markets where we can maximise economies
of scale and provide a consistent quality of
service to national ano multinational customers
(see pages 14 and 15)

Regulation

We welcome ¢ egulation of security markets

as it improves standards and <an help drve
growth Customers turn 1o high quality
prowviders who can lve up 1o the requirements
of local legistation and compliance standards

Level of customer refationship

We measure our customer relationships

based on a number of critena such as duration
of contract number of services and pricing
determinaton Over time we aim to in¢rease
the number of strategic partnerships we have
with major customers which brng us longer
term contiacts measured on Impact not Inputs
and where we are helping them reduce ther
costs, manage then rsks ncrease therr revenues
or improve thewr own customer senace

Our goal 15 1o have a significant proportion

of gur custormers 4s strategic partners over

the medium term (see pages 6 and 7)

Innovation

We continuousty review the way we do business
to ensure that we maximise our efficency keep
our costs low and mprove performance

Company reputation and track record
As a global company operating in 25 countries
and employing 625 000 staff we touch the hves
of millions of people We have a strong track
record of integnty and a long history of serving
our customers well which has enabled us to be
successful over the longer term

Cash solutions

Role and strategy of central banks

In mot e developed cash markets central banks
are more likely to outsource the management
of the cash cycle to commercial banks and to
cash management comparnies We use our
experience from some of the most advanced
cash markets in the world, to adwise central
banks on developing outsourcng strategies

Development phases of the cash cycle
The cash cyde of a country develops through
different phases over time from basic cash
transportaton services 1o total outsourcing

of all cash related actviues at the most
developed end of the spectrum There are
more significant opportunities for our business
" cash outsourang and we are able 1o use our
experience and expertise to influence the rate
at which a market moves through the different
phases of development

Increased willingness te outsource
Customer attitudes to outsourcing non-core
actvities to third parties have changed
dramatically in recent years and we expect
this trend to continue as we demonstrate
the value that G45 can bning to managing the
cash cycle for the benefit of our customers

Product innovation - e.g. end-to-end
ATM management and CASH3160
Innovation i a cash market helps to drive
growth Using technology and manpawer
we have developed ways in which inter nal
customer cash management processes can
be automated and non-core customer facing
services can be outsourced to G4S Service
developments such as these help banks and
retaers to cut ther costs while increasing
efficiency and returns on therr cash

Interest rates

Interest rates can influence the efficiency of the
cash cyde ln high interest rate environments
banks and retallers gan maximum returns on
their cash if the cycle 15 operating at maximum
efficiency In low inter est rate environments
customers are less concerned about cash
sstting idly n ATMs or in branches, which
resufts in lower cash tr ansportation and
processing volumes

Crime

Cnme levek have an impact on customer
atttudes to handling cash themselves or using
a secure method of cash management. Small
busimess customers who walk to bank ' can
benefit from reduced bark charges or increased
speed of arednt by avording hugh street bank
branches and payng directly nto a larger more
efficent processing centre
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Secure solutions —- Secure solutions -
government non-government
Focus on security Atutude to risk management x
Attitudes to secunty within governments Attitudes 1o nsk within major organisatrons 2
can helfp drive growth for the security industry are changing - discussions on the protection B
Worldwide, the private sector 1 playing an o

increasing role in protecting government staf
working at missions overseas supporting the
work of the armed forces and securing sensitve
bulaings and assets

Propensity to outsource

A government’s atirtude towards outscurcong
to the private sector can be another key driver
of growth G4S has valuable skills n many ar eas
such as prisons, prisoner escorung electrontc
menitoning of offenders police custody and
the faciities management or secunity of key
government faclmes both at home and abroad

Budgetary pressures

When government budgets are under pressure
governments are more wiltng to explore ways
of achieving effioencies and managing costs

and that often creates additional private

sector partripation in government services
Cnaverage the private sector 15 said to be at
least 20% cheaper than government detvery
of key services such as prisons

of a company s assets and people are now
conducted at a senior level and have extended
beyond physical protection into protecting
company reputaticns Security 15 now less of

a commedity and mare of an imperative for
businesses to survive We expect this trend

o continue

Focus on high growth segments

By ensuning that we are at the cutung edge of
secuning complex environments in high growth
segments such as ol and gas and ports and
airports we can contnue to delver strong
growth across the business

Growth of internationally let contracts
from multinationals

There 1s an increasing trend for large
muttnational comparies to look to a single
provider to secure their assets and protect their
people across ther mternational operations
Growth In international accounts 1s expected to
continue (see pages 26 27 30 and 31}

Investment in infrastructure growth

in New Markets

Increasing investment in transport energy
communications and other forms of
infrastructure 15 ncreasing the need for quality
securtty services across New Markets G4S has
a unique presence in these markets and s well
placed to benefit from this continued wvestment

Impact of technology

Our abity to supply and integrate manpower
senvices with technology = not just traditional
security systems but customer-facing IT
sysiems which provide enhanced management
nformation and nsk management capability —
gives us a strong competitive advantage

Mulu-service or service bundling

In New Markets customers are often looking
for bundled” services mcorpor ating securtty
with for example catering, clearung, health
& safety and other services With a long
hentage and a strong brand in New Markets
we are able to expand the services we
provide for existing contracts as well as
attract new customers

Fmancial statements Governance Business review

Shareholder information
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Strategy and investment proposition

VWe are focused on
driving outsourcing
across our key sectors
and our customer base.. .

Customer relationships

One of the man elements of our strategy 15 to dive autsourcing across our key sectors and

— customers see G4S as a strategic partner a solutions provider and an essertial part of ther own
sirategy delvery plans

We categorise our customers into different groups depending on the complexsty of the service
prowided and the nature of the relationstup This model shows the four different customer groups
and outlines the charactenstics of each of them

We measure our progress on strategik customer relationship developmenyt by analysing vanious
aspects of the service pravided the contr actual terms the strength and duration of the customer
relationship and the style of purchasing adopted by our customers Qur goal is for a significant
propertion of our customer relationships to be at the strategic fevel (total process outsourcer

or transformational partner}

In order to assess our progress during 2010, we analysed our relationships with 700 of our larger
customers across 40 countries representing around 50% of group revenues The analysis showed
that 55% of the sample were at the strategic level and we estimate this to equate to about 30% of
revenues at a total group level The results are shown in the pie charts We will update this analysis
regularly and use it as an ongaing indicator of our performance

customer base In orderto achieve this 1115 impaortant to have the nght level of customer relationship

GRAPH
REMOVED

Commodity buyer

- Single service buyer of manned securrty
simple security systems cash transportation

= Purchasing-driven process

= Short-term contracts

=+ Price 15 3 key drver

= | owest barners to change

Level |

IMAGE
REMOVED
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Security services bundler

GRAPH
REMOVED

Total process cutsourcer

Transformational partner

- Buys several services under separate contracts

- Bundles to gan pnice/volume advantage

= Purchasing driven with quality of service
(nputs) specfication from customer

= Buys a solution to a strategic problem under
a single contract measured on outputs

= Buys a solution to transform a business
process/problem

- Senior level refationship involved In
buying decision

=+ Short-term contracts

= Low barrers to change

- Concermed about risk and reputation,
but price sl a factor

-+ Seen as key partner in drving revenue
controllng cost, customer service or
protecting a cntical asset or reputation

=+ Senior/board or cvil servant level relanonship

Level 2

IMAGE
REMOVED

-» Long-term contract

= Long-term gutput-based contract

= Difficult 10 change

= High barmers to change

Level 3

IMAGE
REMOVED

GRAPHIC
REMOVED

Level 4

IMAGE
REMOVED

Increasing customer partnership

Business review Overview

Governance

Financial statements

Shareholder information
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Chairman’s statement

2010 was a difficult year for many businesses and G4S has not been
immune to the continuing effects of the giobal downturn. Many of
our customers have had to re-examine the value for money offered
by their service providers. Even governments and public authorities
are constrained in their ability to spend.

In arcumstances like these | behieve we can be particularly proud that we have
been able to deliver revenue and profit growth yet again and mantan our
margins Proud, but not complacent

in 2010, profit before interest, taxation and amortisaton improved by 4 29:*

to £527m and tumover increased 4 | %* to £7.397m The group’s profit margin
was maintained at 7 [% and adjusted eamings per share were up 7% to 21 6p
The directors are therefore able to recommend a final dvadend of 473p or
DKK 04082 per share, payable on 3 june 2011 With the intenrm dwvidend of

3 17p or DKK 0 2877 per share paid on |5 October 2010, the total dividend

for the year ended 31 December 2010 will be 790p or DKK 0 6959 per share

We have delivered another
strong performance in 2010 -
our sixth year of sustained revenue,
profit and dividend growth.

*To show a far companson
constant exxhange rates are assumed.

IMAGE
REMOVED
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*2006 to 2009 at 2010 exchange rates and excuding
all businesses dsposed of dunng the perod

Our bustnesses around the world have worked extremely hard n 2010 to
achieve these results — and | would like to thank every manager and employee

in the group for playing ther part In 2011 we will need to do even more and

we are ready for the challenge that lies ahead We continue to implement our
strategy of developing solutions for our customers over longer-term relationships

and we have changed cur management structure to allow this strategy to develop
and thnve We also continue to make acquisttons in those secunty-related solutions

areas which will add to our expertise and in businesses which will broaden our
geographical reach into new and mportant markets

As chairman, | do of course have particular responsibility for ensunng that the
board continues to do 1ts part in developing the group’s business and managing
the company in the best interests of its stakeholders As | mentioned last year.
we planned then to refresh the composition of the board and | am very pleased
to be able to report on how we have done this Thorelf Krarup, who had
been with the board since the group was founded by the merger between
Group 4 Falck and Secuncor in 2004, has retired and we have added two new
naon-executive directors Clare Spottiswoode and Winmie Fok Whilst good
corporate governance rghtly requires change to the make-up of the board to
ensure independence, 1t 1s also IMportant to mantain continuity and expenence,
particularly If the existing line-up 1s performing well 1 am sorry therefore that we
have lost Thoreif's experience in Clare and Winnie though, we have acquired
new and different expenence and expertse, and they are already adding to the
breadth of our debates

For the future, whilst the different parts of the world in which we operate
continue to be affected by the economic downturn in different ways and to
different extents, overall we know that performing well in 2011 will require
Just as much effort and innovation as was demonstrated by the group in 2010
I am confident that the strategy we have adopted and the way in which it is
being implemented, will give us the best chance of continuing to deliver value
to all our stakehotders

SIGNATURE
REMOVED

Alf Duch+-Pedersen
Chairman

GRAPH GRAPH
REMOVED REMOVED
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Chief Executive’s interview

We are looking to the

future - building on progress and
focusing on new opportunities.

G45 15 one of just 20 FTSE 100 companies that have delivered consecutive earnings growth over the past five years This
demonstrates the inherent strength of our business strategy and market posiions It also means we are well placed
for improved growth as global economies recover.

2010 performance

How would you summanse the
performance of the group in 20107

In 2010 we achieved our sixth consecutive
year of underfying revenue, profit and
dividend growth since the group was formed
in 2004, despite the significant economic
uncertamnties of the last two years

We delivered strong organic revenue
growth of 7% in developing markets
whuch now account for 29% of the groups
revenue and 33% of profits. We are encouraged
by signs of economic recovery in our larger
developed markets of the US and the UK

In addrion our mtegrated solsuions " strategy s
helping us to build market share with major
global customers

G455 one of just 20 companies in the FTSE 100
that have continued to deliver earnings
growth year-on-year over the past five
years — a great result aganst a difficult set of
arcurnstances and we are proud of everyone
in the orgamsation who has played thesr part
in enabling us 1o continue the earmings growth
trend throughout that time

What changes have you had to make as
a result of the economic pressures of the
last 18 months?

We conunually review our key procasses to
make sure they are efficient and that we are not
Carrying unnecessary costs — so very ittle diect
change has taken place as a result of the crsis

One of the largest costs to the group s pay =
with one of the largest prvate workforces in the
waorld, it 5 akey consideration for us As a result
of the economic downturn we have awarded
modest pay rises in economies where growth
continues (generally n hne wath RPY) but
elsewhere inmore challenging countries we
have implemented pay freezes to ensure that
pay remans in ine with business performance
and economic growth rates As growth was
challenging in the year we had to implement
some workforce reduction programmes in a few
countnes However, averall we ve ncreased our
employee numbers by 30000 dunng the year

Unfortunately we lost a number of contracts
in the year Some of the losses were the result
of speaific ssues such as US and Briush troops
withdrawing from Iraq and therefore no longer
needing our support Others were lost as the
result of a competitive tender process Losing
contracts s obvicusly disapponung, but we am
to learn from such losses to develop our future
bidding capabilities and improve service
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Towards the end of 2010, we implemented a
new management structure — not as a result
of the economic crisis but more wath an eye on
the future and making sure we have the right
management operating at the appropnate level
to drive the business forward

We have created four major regions and one
major dvision all with a Regional or Divisional CECY
with resporisibility for around £1 5bn revenues in
each Each of the CEOs has created an execuuve
management team which reflects the same
structure as the group executive represented
by key operational and strategic functions

We have also extended the group
executive team to include the key functional
areas of corporate communications and business
development to ensure that these topics are
gven the hughest profile and to input to the
group strategy as It conunues to develop

These changes have provided us with the
opportunity to ensure we have very high quality
management in all of the key posiions and where
necessary we have brought new people on board
I'm very excited about the opportuntties this
brngs both in terms of strategic development

for the business, but also for succession planning
and best pracuce shanng

What were the biggest challenges
that you faced in the year?

One of the key challenges was a shght shiftin
focus of some of our key customers — natwr ally n
a time of economic uncertanty thoughts switch
to shart-term 1ssues and cost control, which can
stifle creatmity and longer term strategic thinking
Some customer s are delaying decisions about
the long term, and n paricular on outsourang,
untll they feel they have come through the worst
of the current crisis | have no doubt that this will
be back on the agenda soon but we have sensed
an overall slowing in customers making sirategic
decsions in the last 12 months

The change of government in the UK market
created some challenges for our UK business

n the year As part of the Comprehensive
Spending Review we were tasked with helping
key UK Government departmenis 10 achieve
sigrificant savings which would assist in relieving
the UK budget pressures. In November 2010,
we announced that we had reached agreement
on anumber of cost saving witiatives with the
UK Government, achieved largety through
speafication amendments on exisung contracts.
In the fonger term, we believe there are a number
of areas where the private sector can defver
further cost savings to government as a result

of opportunities for mere extensive outsourting
to the private sector

In the cash solutions dviston the lowest
interest rates on record for many year s n
some countries had a short-term impact on cur
ability to grow the cash solutions business at the
histoncally high levels of the past few years Low
interest rates remove the mperative for the cash
cycle to operate at maximum effiaency and this
has impacted our growth That said, the great
work that our cash experts have done in terms
of managing the costs dunng the year has meant
that the businesses have still performed very welt
desprte these issues

Comirnuing to keep the workforce motivated
and looking to the future has been challenging during
the year when everywhere they turn there is talk
of recession and crisis, but | am glad to say that
we have a dedicated and hard working employee
base who have continued to detiver the results
despite thrs.,

Overview

Financial statements Governance Business review

Shareholder information
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Chief Executive's tnterview

Looking forward

We've put a strong
and experienced
management team
In place.

In 2010 {our new Regional CEQ roles were created

o represent 3 new geographic contmental management
structure that will further under pin the group s ghobal
strategi developiment. Three Regional CEO roles have
been filled by semor managers and one externally to
broaden the management team Koy senior fiinchional roles
for business development and corporate coMMuUNICatoNS
were also added to the Group Leecutive team

Nick Buckies Trevor Dighton
Group Chiel Executve Chief Financial Officer
IMAGE IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED
Sgren Lundsberg-Nielsen Ken Niven
Group General Counsel Drasional CEQ - Cash solubions
IMAGE IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED
Debbie McGrath Graham Levinsohn
Group Commurmcations Director Group Strategy and
IMAGE Development Director IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED

What were the highlights in terms
of business performance?

We performed well on all of the key financial
metrics Organic turnaver growth was 2 1%
operating profits were up by more than 4%
margins were mamtaned at 7 1% and we achieved
our operating cash flow target of 85% of PBITA

Ye announced our entry into the Brazihan
market in june 2010 with the acquisition of
Instalarme a specialist security systems company
This was closely followed by the further acqumssbon
of systems tntegrator Plantech Brazil is one of
the largest securtty markets in the world with

excellent growth prospects and has been a priority
market for us for some time

During the year, we have continued to develop
our abifity to offer international contracts to
major custormners ensuring high levels of security
for operations across nternauonal borders
Some of our major contract wins include large
nternational banking groups technology
organisations and pharmaceutical companies.

At the same time as part of our strategy
development we have created a group of

key sector experts with the ability to spread
exper tise and knowledge and to act as a catalyst
o drive busingss development in key sectors
Thus has resulted m strong resutts, with aviation
sector revenues up by nearly 30%, ports up by
64% and the il and gas sector growing by 35%
in 2010

There were some key contract wins during
the year including GSK internattonally Brussels
awport, Baghdad arport the Swedish Parhament,
Lukoil in Iraq and muluple contracts for our
CASH3150 product to name but a few

In order 10 continue to share best practice
develop our management and continue to plan
for future succession we created a Strategic
Leadership Network a group of 2round

25 senior managers and directors responsible for
a significant proportion of the group's revenuas
By investing in the development of this group

of leaders we can drive forward the delwery

of the groups sirategy over the longer termn

Qutside of the direct business performance,

we were pleased to be a founder signatory to
an industry-wide International Code of
Conduct (the * Code’ ) n November 2010,
which sets out principles for security operations
in so-¢afled complex ernwvironments’ — areas
experiencing or recovering from disaster or
unrest and where governments and the rule of
law are weak We hope that the Code will help
to drive up standards across the mdustry as the
private sector is called upon te provide increased
levels of services to governments and businesses
in difficull envirenments and continues 1o touch
the lves of milhons of people worldwide

Strategy

What is the current business
strategy for the group and has that
changedn the last 12 months?

There have been no changes to the business
strategy We still beleve there is long-term value
to be derved from creating secunty solutions
which solve customer problems, using our cash
cyde expertise 10 drive changes n banking policy
working closely with governments and leveraging
our strong market positons in developed and
New Markets We believe that this will drive
outsourcng, teduce commoditsation of security
services and deliver strong results for the group
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Group HR Director
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What progress have you made
on delivering the group strategy
duning 20107

Over all, what pleases me most s that customers
are recognising that G45 can add real
value to theiwr organisation Our postioning
has moved significantly and many more of our
conversations with customers are taking place

at the boardroom level and are covenng aspects
of nsk and reputation rather than basic securty
needs ft could partly be a result of the world

we now live in, but i get a strong feeling that
CUStOMErs are recognising that we can positively
influence their own strategy —whether that s
increasing thair own revenue managing their cost
base reduang thewr risk or helping to improve the
service that they provide to ther direct customers

We have ako made good progress in key
sectors with our sector specalists brninging
together group-wide capability and expertise to
enable us to bid for and win key contracts i areas
such as aviation major events justice services and
defence — something which wouldn't have been
possible two to three years ago

Outlook

What are the short-term priorities
for the group = perhaps for the next
12 to 18 months?

We saw some impr ovements in the second
half of 2010, but whilst some economies are
making a slow recovery others such as lreland
and Romania have shpped further nte negative
termtory and have proved even more challenging
Overall we have continued to grow the
business despite GDP being negative overall —
a strong achievernent against the econemic
backdrop of the recent past

S0 n 2011 we will continue 10 drive the
group strategy forward whilst bedding in the
new graup structure which will help us to make
faster, better decisions and ensure we continue
10 have good controls across the business

ke would be great to win some major
contracts in the first half of 2011 and we have
made an excellent start by beirg apponted the
official secunty serwices provider for the London
2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games | know our
business development teams are working hard to
ensure that we have a strong contract ppeline
going forward

We expect to step up our acquisition
activities with a particular focus on growing
our presence In the fast growing New Markets
We should spend around £200min 2011

What targets are you setting yourself
and your senior management team?’

Qur targets are unchanged We expect profits to
grow well ahead of worldwide GDP and over the
longer term, will continue to focus on mproving
our post tax return on invested capital a good
measure of strategic performance We expect
organic growth to return to high single digit levels
as eConomies Improve

How would you summanse the general
outlook for the group in the mid-term?

The group achieved strong results n 2010, with
businesses performing well across all markets
service bnes and customer segments We are
confident that our strategic plan which enhances
our ability to meet increasingly sophisticated
customer needs by adding new capabilities and
technologes to our offer, has put the group in a
strong positon tt allows us to maintan our longer
term growth momentum as we pursue attractive
global opportunities in our key target sectors

We will continue to build on our successes and
reman confident about the outlook for 201 when
we expect to deliver an improved organic revenue
growth performance whist continuing to maintain
our disciphne on margns and cash generatron

t
SIGNATURE |
REMOVED '
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Mick Buckles
Chied Exexutve Officer
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Strategy delivery

We deliver efficient and
bespoke security solutions
for our customers

Diverse market
and customer expertise

Qne of the strengths of GA4S 15 1ts bioad
customer and geogr aphic base We have
thousands of customers ranging from small local
compantes 1o some of the largest governments
and global corporations in the werld

The duration of contracts also varies — from high
profile annual contracts to secure sporgng or
entertanment events, to 25 year government
contracts for the construction and management
of prisons

We pride ourselves on focusing on customer
needs and delvering high quality customer
services — this 18 demonstrated in our customer
retenuon rates which average above 90%
annually across most regions

Qur goal is to build long-term refationships
with our customers so we can help them to

= Increase thewr revenues

- Manage their costs

- Manage ther nsks and protect thew
cntical assets

= Improve the service they deliver to
ther customers

How we manage our business

At 2 strategic level the CEQ and CFO monntor
the group s investments by the two main produgt
areas of secure solutions and cash solutions
which have different business models At an
operaucnal fevel, cur business s managed on

a geographic basis We have four major regions
and one major dvision, all with a Regional or
Dwisional CEQ each with respansibility for
around £1 Sbn revenues

Each region has a spread of market and cuttural
environments — ths s a key area of competrive
advantage for the group especally in New Markets.

best practice is shared, sething strategy and policy
The group has nvested In key sector expertise
and business devetopment capabiity which can
be leveraged across the businesses

\
The group execuuve s responsible for ensunng |
|
|
|

Managing international customers

(G4S created its Internauonal Accounts Dvision
(IAD) in 2008 to address the increasing needs of
global companies to ensure the fughest standards
of sacurtty and safety across operations in
mutuple countries

The IAD team has dedicated resources

around the world and overall responsibdity

for administenng muttinational customer
relauonships Regional directors oversee local
foreign field oper ations wrthin their respective
region and ensure they are compliant with global
policies and standards as well as local regulations

This unique programme has enabled the group |
to grow Its mternational accounts base and to |
win new global contracts in key sectors such

as technelogy, bankig and pharmaceuticals

Acquinng capability

REMOVED

Touchcom
In the last few years GA45 has made Securtzy comsultancy
a number of capability-bulding design and systems
acquisitions in areas such as risk GSL ntegrauon
consuftancy systems integration and  Management of uibeal sml
t Y SYS ch as Ol nfrastrycture and Creating addibonal cash
sector experuise 1 areas such as O XTI ML NEw MM MAGE management experise
and Gas, Utlies and Ports As a BOverTHTIeNt SeCtons New rvestrgations and REMOVED focused on central banks
result since 2008 G4S has invested and geograptues comphance skills consutiancy work
£800m in acquisiiions that contrbute
significant revenues and profits and
foine growth Al scamsuons e GRAPHICS
required to meet the groups stringent March 2008 REMOVED
retum on nvested capital targets
and are reviewed on a regular basis
RockSteady RONCO ArmorGroup
Expansion of magor Expans:on of mane Adcibonal sk n
event secunty and acton capabdity protectve secunty
safety capability sohsbons for overnments
and mudtinavonads.
New speaalst capabibtes
= mine acon and nsk
IMAGE consutung
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Top 10 International Accounts
Duvision customers

Leveraging expertise
across New Markets

G4S has an unnvalled geographic footprint
which has been developed over many years
That means its management has extensive
experience of working In sometimes

Case study

We're building on strong positions
in growth regions

During 20i0 G4S entered the dynamic Brazihan secunty
market Branl s the fifth largest secunty market in the
world with esumated annual revenues of around £4im
The miarket has sustanable growth expectations

complex ervironments, and has a detated supported by excellent economic prospects helped by
understanding of how to delver business vast natural resources and some one-off boosts from the
GRAPH results In these countries 2014 World Cup and 2016 Olympics
G5 entered Brazl through the acquisibon of (wo
REMOVED G455 able to export its knowladge and Sy<tems ntegraton companes — Instalrme and Plantech
expenence gained from more mature markets both kexders n then areas and with national coverage
into New Markets particularly in the areas Over thecourse of the next few years the group intends
of product developrnent and outsourang which o expand its secunty offenng 10 nchude nsk consutting
drives market growth whilst often improving andd manned security
standards in the industry
IMAGE
REMOVED
Hill & Assocs
Adesta
Brnging additonal
expertse I ports Instalarme
capabiity systeins | IMAGE Entry nto dynaric Brazi
mitegravon and project REMOVED market — leading secunty
nEnagement | E—— systerns busmess
GRAPHICS
REMOVED January 2011
All Star SecPoint NSSC Plantech
Extending secure Market leader « secunity Audiional consutting Leadng systems
fachves managernent systems in fast-grownng and specafist nuckear ntegravon busness
expertse n hgh Ghana market POwEr Bxperise n Braal
security govermiment
depariments and seciors
—————— -
| IMAGE | IMAGE
| REMOVED | REMOVED

-
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Resources

Ve have the optimum
level of resources in place
to ensure we deliver. ..

Overview

To be able io deliver our strategy and the best
value to customers we have to ensure we have
the optimum level of resources available to us
This includes

= Our people and values

= Technology

- The G4S brand and reputation

4 Financal resources

People

We aim 1o ensure that we recrue the right
people for the right roles and that ermnployees
feel istened to and supported in their
working lives We do this through focusing on
workforce stabdity and employee engagement
by means of one of the largest seres of global
employee surveys

625,000

*Number of empkffees at year end December 2010

North Amenca

54,00

Latin Amenca & Canbbean

51,600

We have 625000 employees and take great
pride in the important work they do to ensure
the security and safety of our customers and
ther assets Keeping our people safe 15 our man
priority through essential health and safety
standards and training

We also invest in the development of our
rmanagers to ensure that we have the expertise
10 continue 1o drive the strategy forward
through all levels of the organisation and ensure
high quality succession planning

Europe

122,100

IMAGE
REMOVED

Afnca

104400
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G4S aims to act responsibly «n how it manages relationships with customers,
communities, employees and other stakeholders The group values describe
what G45 stands for.

Best people
We always take care to employ the best people develop their competence, provide opportunity
and inspire them to hve our values

Teamwork and collaboration

We collaborate for the benefit of G45 as a whole

Customer focus

We have close, open relabionships with our customers that generate trust and we work
in partnershup for the muiuzl benefit of our organisations

Integrity

We can always be trusted 1o do the nght thing

Expertise
We develop and demonstrate our expertise through our innovative and leading edge approach
to treating and delivering the nght solution

Performance
We challenge ourselves to improve performance year-on-year to ¢ eate long-term sustanability

Technology expertise

The most efficent security solutions for customers
increasingly nvolve secunity systems and systems
integr ation expertise

G45 technology can be found in a dverse range
of markets including government education
finance transportation, healthcare and utilities
We serve these industnes throughout the world
protecung everything from small offices and
schoals o large multinational organisations
and high securtty government facilities

We design, manufacture install and maintain
leading edge secunty solutions to protect our
customers staff assets and premises

Middle East

46,900
In recent years G45 has widened its secunity
systemns expertise into New Markats such as
Brazil, with the acquisrtions of Instalarme and
Plantech and South Afnca with the acquisiuon
of Skycom G45 has also acquired leading secunty
systems integrators in key sectors such as ports
energy and ¢ritical national infrastructure through
the acquistions of Adesta and NSSC

We beteve the combined offering of nsk
consuliing manpower and technology 1s a key
differentiator for the group

Asia Paaific

245,600

IMAGE
REMOVED

Brand

G45S was created in 2004 through the merger
of Group 4 and Secuncor Today just seven years
later the G45S brand 1s widely recognised as a
leader in secunty solutions This 1s par tcularly the
case In our major developed markets and some
key New Markets where we are ane of the

few internauonal secunty companies with a
lexeal presence

Financial resources

The group continues to have strong cash flow
generation, equivalent to 85% of PBITA in 2010
ana this 1s one of the key performance indicators
for G4S management In additon the groups
funding positton 1s strong, with sufticient
headroom and avalable committed facihties to
finance current snvestment plans For more details
of our financial resources please see the Financial
review on pages 44 to 49

Financal review

44-49

Overview

Business review

Governance

Financial statements

Shareholder information
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Market overview

Focusing on structural growth
markets and sectors within the
global securtty market

The global market

£75bn

The potental global cutsourced setunty market bas
been estimated as having annual revenues of c£/5bn

Source Fresdon Fros
GAS anysns

GRAPH
REMOVED

& Subrvan, Tumer & Towmsend,

By sector

The largest outsourced sectors n the global
security market are areas such as government
and critical natonal nfraswructure {CNI) and
these sectors are where G45 has focused

NS strategy

By geography

The developed markets of the US and the UK
are some of the largest secunty markets in the
world However there are some large and
rapidly growing security markets i developing
economies such as Brazil Irag and Turkey

G4S currently derves more than 29% of its
revenues and 33% of its profits from these

iNew Markets With our recent entry into Braail,

they are fikely to be a growsng proporton of
group revenues and profits

Key secunty market trends

Balance the needs of customers to cut
costs and maintain security

Recent economic trends have put pressure on
the secunty industry to recognise the needs of
customers to cut costs without Increasing risks

The Industry has therefore had to be creative
with rts combination of technology and manpower
to remove costs without compromising securiy
levels or customer service standards

Innovative technology

This has seen security providers turning to
in-house or external technological innavations
such as access control remote monitonng and
incident capture and response — sometmes

in very remote or geogt aphically challenging
locations ~ without the overheads of large scale
manpower (see case studies on pages 24 to 31)

Consistency of global approach

Customers are also increasingly looking to the
secunty industry to provide a consistent approach
to managing their nsks worldwide (see cise studies
on pages 24 to 31} This has been the case in the
pharmaceutical and chemucals sectors, and 15 a key
driver of fuiure growih across aviation ports and
mariime, and ol and gas markets

Government outsourcing opportunities

Economic pressures will continue to drive

both creatimity and future opportunities for

the security industry In the UK G45 15 one of
20 leading government suppliers being asked

to help rebalance the country s budget deficit
We believe that in the medium-term outsourcing
opportunities will help us demonst ate our
innovation and give us addibional bong-term
growih potential

Governiment outsourcing opportunities are
expected to contnue in both developed and
emerging markets as the focus on security treats
wcreases and the pressure on public sector and
commeraal budgets Jead to more outsourang and
the chance to jeverage private sector innovation
(see case studies on pages 22 and 23)

Risk management

Finally secunty and risk management have to be
an ntegral part of corporate strategy In todays
challenging dimate and the secunity ndustry

1s working with customers to incorporate this
into the customers’ business (see case study

on page 25}
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G4S major markets
£100m+

With operations in more than 125 countnes, G45 1s truly a global securrty
services provider The map below shows the size of some of the larger
secunty markets (in £ revenue per annum) and within those markets the

scale of G4S's presence

G485 markets with revenues of more than £100m GA4S ruarkets with revenues of less than £100m Mo G45 operations
South/Central Europe
North Europe Turkey L1 500m
UK £6 000 Polang £1 D00m
Metherlands  £2000m Russia £1 000m Asia Pacific
Sweden £1 100m Romama £600m China £7000m
Belgiumn L700m Austria £500m Australid £1300m
Narth America Denmark £650m Crech £500m Thatand £600m
us £20000m Norway £500m Hungary £400m Malaysia £500m
Canatla £1 500m Finland £450m It edand £400m Taresan £400m
Mexico £1000m Irefand £400m Greece £400m Indonesia £100m
IMAGE
REMOVED
Latin Amenca Africa Middle East South Asia
Bradl £4000m South Afwa  £1 500m Irag £1 000 ndo £6%m
Argentna £1L000m Nigena £500m Israed £650m Kazadhastan  £400m

Colombia £750m
Peru £500m
Chie £450m
Vererueh £250m

Afganstan___ £500m

Sad Araba £400m

Financial statements Governance Business review Overview

Shareholder information
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Market overview continued

G4S major market positions - secure solutions

(A4S has strong secure solutions market posrtrans in most of the countnes
i which it operates The chart below shows G45 geographic presence and
hughhights those markets where G4S has a top three market position

125+

Countries where secure solubons aperates

Top 3 Below top 3

IMAGE
REMOVED

Brazl
MNew market entry n 2010
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G4S major market positions — cash solutions

G4S has cash solutions businesses in more than 70 countries
and in the majonty of those countnes is the market leader

70+

Countres where cash solutions operates

Nuinber | Number 2 Muamber 3 Below top 3

IMAGE
REMQOVED
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Investment proposition case studies

These case studies show the type of work we do for customers
to demonstrate our Investment proposition

Government partnerships

Providing cost
efficient

IMAGE
REMOVED

Developed Markets

UK

G4S 15 a major suppher to the UK Government
i a number of areas including

- Construction and management of priscns

= Tagging and monitoring of offenders
In the conmurity

= Facilties services for schools and
healthear e buldings

= Protection of UK embassies and other secure
faciliies in the UK and overseas

= Proviston of support services to the police
and armed services

The Comprehensive Spending Review conducted
by the UK Government in 2010 called on major
supphers to help the Government find significant
short-term savings At the same time, it highlighted
new opportunities where the Government
could outsource to the prvate sector in the
future to increase effioencies and make

further cost savings

In the medium term, the group beheves thei e

are a number of areas where the private sector
can dehver further cost savings as a1 esult of more
extensive outsourang and this will enable G45

to grow its market share in this area

= Short-term changes to contract specfications

- Short-term cpportunities through the
brdding pipeline

= Medum- and long-term opportunities through
more extensive cutsourang
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New Markets
South Africa

On | July 2011, Mangaung Correctronal

Cenire (MCC) celebrates rts tenth annversary
it wall be able 1o showcase a decade of successiut
contribution to the South Afncan correctional
enmvircnment, international accolades and
accomplishments, and the economi¢ impact

1 has had on the local Mangaung community

To enhance the safety of the community and
contnbute to a safer socety after the release
of Inmates, G4S invests heavily in the personal
development of offenders Professional staff
including social warkers psychologists and
education professicnals deliver vanous
developmentat programmes to address
offending behaviour

These interventions are also avalable to the
community and the focus 15 on ¢r eating secure
environments for children to grow up in and
preventing at risk behaviour” The schoot desk
project, run by MCC has donated | 119
revamped school desks to disadvantaged schocls
in the Mangaung area since its nception iy 2006
Six hundred Grade |1 and 12 learners receved
maths and saence education in the schoal
holday penod during the World Cup in 2010
contnbuting to improved pass rates in these
subjects, in ther final exams

IMAGE
REMOVED

= High quality care

=2 Numerous community imbiatives

=+ World-class reputation

= Bidding on four more private pnsons
in South Afnica

Business review
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Solutions approach

Leveraging expertise
around the world

Each of our indmdual areas of expertise 1s a dnver of value for the

group, but together they create a whole solution for a customer Exporting
our government expertise INto new countries, leveraging our cash solutions
model across New Markets and using our global risk management and
securty capabilities to protect some of the world's best known brands
across international markets, dnves even greater value for our mwvestors

IMAGE
REMOVED

Developed Markees

Introducing SecureTrax™
to the UK

One of the challenges within the secunty industry
15 the need to manage a large remote workforce,
while ensuring that the contracted tasks are
fulfilled G45 North America deaded to invest in
technology which would meet our specific needs
repor t i real tme and have an event monitoring
function thereby increasing the value of our
security personnel (n the field The inadent
management anatysis helps users identify trends
and implement preventative measures to avold
poterntial damage and associated costs

Learning from the experuse we have developed
in the Amencas, SecureTrax” will be deployed
nernationaly within G4S dunng 20 The
technology was launched in the UK security
market at the end of 2010, and 1s helping to
improve safety and secunty as well as saving time
and reduang costs for customers Pilot markets
wrthin which SecureTrax™ will be deployed
during the first half of 2011 include Europe Asia
Ausu atia and the Middle East

= Monitors remote workforce

- Real bme reporung

= Increases value of security personnel in the field

< Analyss of incident management data helps
wdentify trends and can prevent future nadents
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New Markets

Risk consultancy

G4S Risk Management s a leading provider of risk
mitigation secure support services and integraied
solutions to governments international agencies
smalt to medium sized businesses and multinational
corporations We enable organisations to operate
safely and securely wherever they are in the
werld, ncluding those emvironments that are
complex or sensrive

Our nisk consutting business works with chents
to help them identify assess and mitigate risks

to ther opesations This mutt-disaiplined team
brings together sector and subject matter
expertise enabling chents to manage their nisk
profie dynamically From cnsis response in the
Middle East, resihence planring in the UK through
to early development of sk miugation strategies
n sub-Saharan Afnca, risk consulting allows
chents to take advantage of opportunities
around the world

Core areas of expertise include geopolticat
nteligence on threais and hazards worldwide
the development of strategic plans to ensure
effective operational design and complete
project management, risk nutigation business
tontinuity and resihence and crisis management
for customers

= Risk consutung inibates and mamtains
relavonships al the most senior levels within
s customers Organisations

= Early involverment in design and oper ational
procedures maxrmises efficiency and
reduces costs

=+ Key role in cnisis management and ensunng
business continunty for customers

IMAGE
REMOVED

Business review
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Integrated security solutions

Global bespoke

security solutions
for customers

GA4S designs and manages secunty solutions that bnng together our capabiliies
including project management, nsk consultancy, secure faclities management,
physical security, inteligent systems and high quality securtty-trained personnel
to solve the secunity challenges of a broad range of customers across the world

IMAGE
REMOVED

Developed Markets

GSK

Designing and implementing an integrated
security solution for customers means we help
to solve their secunity challenges by offering

a bespoke solution for thesr requirements

A good example of this 1s our contract with
GlaxoSmithKiine {GSK) one of the world s
leading research-based phirmaceutical and
healthcare comparias (GSK 15 keen 1o ensure
the safety of ts employees, faciities and valuable
products on a global basis

In March 2010 G45 was awarded a five-year
international contract by GSK for the prowvision

of secunity services Under the contract, G45
centrally manages GSK's security services from
the UK deliverng consistent co-ordinated and
efficient operations traming and standards under
a four-part roll-out across GSK s entire secunty
portfolio in 79 countnes G435 offers a broad range
of securtty services to ensure the ight securtty
solution s delivered for each site

- Bespoke hgh quality security solution on
a global basis

= Consistency of approach helps develop global
KPls and data management

- Growth oppoitunities through
additonal services
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New Markets

Protecting critical
national infrastructure

In some developing markets there is a need

to protect mobile telephone masts particulary
when they are located in remote locations
Because of ther remoteness the masts have
on-site generators to power therm and due to
the value of the diesel that fuels the generators,
are vulnerable to damage and theft Histoncally
most protection has been carmed out by manned
secunity officers This 1s not ideal because of the
risk to them of potential attack

Our new service for customers 15 an integrated
solution of remote monitonng access control,
deterrent systems and a fast response team In
addrion we have created 2 one-stop ' service to
reduce costs to customers by being able to offer
faclities management at the sites 100 — supplying
fuel and first-level maintenance to the masts.

= Integrated solution — security and
facilities management

- Helps secure critical national nfrastructure
in remote locations

IMAGE
REMOVED

Business review
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Unrivalled cash solutions expertise

Driving efficiency
N cash management

Understanding and managing the cash cyde of a country is a care skill

of the group Central banks, commercal banks and retallers outsource ther
entire cash management to G45 as we have the capability and expenence
to drve substantial efficencies in the system whilst achieving the maximum
return for our customers over the long term

IMAGE
REMOVED

Developed Markets

G4S Cash Solutions UK

With a sustaned period of low interest rates
the drive to bank cash as quickly as possible has
reduced significantly within our customer base
This, combined with an economic downturn,
has led to some retalt and banking customers in
the UK rauonalising therr services The challenge
in the UK has been to find new ways to bring
efficiencies to our customers operations
Offering cormprehensive outsourcing selutions
and expert cash managernent technology

such as the revolutionary CASH360 system
(see page 39) G45 Cash Solutions UK s able

to create efficiencies for its customersin a
tough economic environment

With a relatively fixed cost-base G45 has also
worked pro-actively to reduce 1its operating
costs through continuous mprovement
programmes These have ranged from rmproved
staff engagement and enhanced customer
coemmunications to the implementation of

new technelogy to handle and pretect our
customers cash

=+ Smart collective agreements and engagement
wath all staff

- Engaging with customers to work on most
efficient routes

= Industry leaders in new technology
to reduce attacks

= Continuous mprovement programmes
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New Markets

Standard Chartered Bank

Standard Chartered Bank (SCB) celebrated

s E50th anmiversary in Hong Kong in 2009, and
G4S has enjoyed a long association with SCB in
the region both as a supplier and as a banking
customer Replenishing ATMs and collecting from
cash deposit machines are among the services
that 45 has historically provided alongside

a variety of othey suppliers who took care of
maintenance and technical issues With so many
Iinks in the chain, there was a possibility that
ATMs could be out of order or out of cash for
longer perods than acceptable

Since mid-2009 SCB has outsourced its entire
cash machine operations to G45 By gving

(45 responsibility for managing all aspects of

the ATM chain — SCB now has an end-to-end
solution Within six months this resulted in
improved service levels and therefore improved
customer satisfaction as well as providing greater
flexibility 10 the rofl-out of new machines

=+ End-to-end integrated solution

=+ Cost-effective

= Improved service levels and end
customner satisfaction

= Greater flexibdity 10 roll-out new equipment

IMAGE
REMOVED
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Strong New Markets positions

Structural growth
markets

Qur global presence, market share and experience of working 10 less
developed markets is unrvalled in almost any industry [t means that we
know what 1t takes to be successful in these markets and are well positioned
to maximise structural growth opportunities as they develop over tme

In many cases we are able to drive that development forward to the benefit
of our customers and our business

IMAGE
REMOVED

Developed Markets

Agilent

Aglent Technologies Inc (Agilent) i1s an analytical
instrument manufacturing company, with

more than 170 locations in nearly 30 countries
For nmany years it used more than a dozen
secunty suppliers around the world to fulfil its
secur ity requirements A few years ago, Agilent
decided it was time to move to one provider —
a one-stop shop that could provide all securnity
solutions in all ts markets

The general gudelines Agilent drew up to help
choose a single provider pointed to a corpany
with strong leadership deep knowledge
Investigative expertise technical support for
their worldwide security systems and the ability
o carry out ther exisung educational and nsk
assessment programimes to new levels

It was based en all these qualiues that G45

was selected and now provides manned security
in 14 countries at 48 sites and systems support
in 26 counirnes

= (545 chosen as a ' one-stop shop  to provide
all security solutions

= Prowvide a consistent approach across nearly
30 countnies

= Provide thought leadership and expertise
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New Markets

United Arab Emirates

G45 in UAE 1s truly a mutinationat business
employng 42 different nationalities ncluding

{1 different nationaliyes in the management team
The compettive strength of the group in UAE

15 due to the experience and local knowledge

of the management team and the:r ability to
provide a complete solution o customers

GA4Ss main customers in UJAE are government
agencees including embassies, criucal natronal
infrastructure and key sectors such as
telecommunications aviation financial nstitutions
and retail Many customer s expect the most
sophisticated security solutions avatable

The UAE business has alse experienced strong
growth through new exper tise and capabilities
acquired by the group over the last few years
Exarmples include specialist events such as

the Grand Prix and nsk consultancy through
Hill & Associates acquired in 2010

Ancther key area of competitive advantage

15 the quahty of G455 operational employees

in UAE Health & safety mnitiatives social and
welfare programmes employee engagement
and mentoring programmes for employees often

many thousands of mites from home are a key
differentiator for the business both as an
employer and with customers

= Strong and experenced managemert

IMAGE
REMOVED

= Sophisticated security sotutions requirements

=+ Employee welfare and mentoning programmes
are a competitive differentiator

= Strong growth through government agenaes
and specialist events

Business review
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Divisional review

Secure solutions

The secure solutions business provides a broad range of solutions
to both commercial and government customers. G4S secure solutions
uses rts nsk management and securtty expertise to encourage greater outsourcing
of commercial and government faciliies where security and safety are strategic
Issues — In areas such as ports, arports and the oll and gas sector This will result
In an increased number of long-term strategic customer partnerships across
the group

Sectors

GRAPH
REMOVED

Strategy

- Use our expertse and geographic presence to differentiate our business

= Drve outsourcing and minimise commoditisation of traditional secunty services

=+ Offer an mtegrated secunty soluton to customers

Key operational highlights

= Strong growth continued in New Markets

= Signs of recovery in some developed markets

- Strict cost control and improved business mix helped grow margins from 6 8% in 2009
to 69% n 2010

KPls

Duning 2010, the secure solutions business achieved good arganme growth of 2 8% and margins
were up on the same penod last year to 6 9%

GRAPH GRAPH
REMOVED REMOVED
GRAPH GRAPH
REMOVED REMOVED

*2006 to 2009 at J0L0 exchange rates and exchuding
2 businesses dsposed of dunng the penod

Services

G45 provides a range of secure solutrons
to customers including

= Risk management and consultancy services

- Secure faclty outsourang

-+ Electronic monitoring of offenders

+ Manned sequrity services

= Electronic security systems

< Momitoring and response services

- Management of adult and juvenile
custody faclkues

= Aviation security services

- Frre protecvon and emergency response

=+ Securtty traning services

- Project management

Contracts and relationships

The duration of contracts vanes — from high
profile annual events such as Wimbledon and the
Ryder Cup to 25 year pnivate prison contracts
However even when the contract terms zre
short, in practise many refationships become
long-term and result In coniracts renewed year
after year This s demonstrated in our customen
retention rates which average above 90% across
most regions.




$100bn

of part operators investment in bullding new
greendbromm fiekd terminals globally

480m

contaners beng imoved around the world every year
Contarwy and port facility secunty s an area of
growing focus

IMAGE
REMOVED

transport systemn through a full range of anation
oper ations spanning &l arports and 81 arlines
across 34 countres and at 20 ports worldwide

Aurport infrastructure 1s not expected to keep
up with passenger growth over the next

ten years, potentiafly resulting n a shortfall of
capacity in the order of one billlon passengers
Airports and airines will be looking to cost-
effecuve flexible secunity prowiders who have
consufting capability new technology ntegration
expertise and who can redesign systams

and interfaces

year container and port facility security 18 an area
of growing focus Key opportunities for the port
sector ke with the large internauonal private
port operators who have collectively comnmitted
more than $100bn of rwvestment in bulding new
green/brown field terminals globally to expand
theur portfolios and capaaty induding $60bn
announced recently in India

IMAGE
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Qiland Gas

With ever growing pressure on energy providers
to secure supphes for years to come through
nvestment in new production plants and the
protection of viial resources, security has come
to the fore in the energy and utilities sector

The market for security across much of the
energy market has been led by regulaion
particularly of nuclear power

Increased regulation is driving a focus on

cost efficiency robust asset protection and

on inteflgence and nsk-led secunty capabiiues
together with expenence of security provision
wirthin challenging and unpredictable ervironments

Security challenges within the energy and
utihtigs arena can be diverse — from protecung
the copper and metal contained within electricity
cables to ol or nuclear facdty nsk assessment
and pipeline protection

GA4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2010 k)
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Customer needs and drivers for key sectors
Government Government contracts accounted for around x
A sharper alobal focus on secutty n the past 34% of secure solutions 1evenues and 28% of ¢
decazrghasgle J to government ou);sourcmzdacross total G45 revenuesin 2010 and are spht broadly (4
- R g
a number of markets A history of successful :gsvu;;ede geographic areas — UK, US and Rest H
outsour ang within developed markets has é
bolstered a beliet n competition and confidence  We antiopate further government outsourcing
GRAPH in private sector nvolvement opportunities will ar s N developed markets
REMOVED as pressure on public spending ntensifies and
government departments seek to manage
their budgets. without compromising on service
delvery standards or the integrnty of vital front [
line public seraces This expertise particularly in 5
IMAGE Care and justice Services can then be exported E
REMOVED into developing markets S
8
=
u
E
M
Ports and Awrports In the ports sector, compliance with international E‘.
secunity standards and evolving ports legislation ¢
We ensure the safe passage of travellers crew by g
With 480 rull
and cargo and the efficiency of the mternatonal fs drving asstomes requirements. With mion g
contaners being moved around the world every It

Shareholder information
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Drvisional review

Secure solutions performance

“We believe our work with the UK
Government on its Comprehensive
Spending Review has delivered
significant cost savings for them and
provided potential further outscurang
opportunities for G45”

David Taylor-Smuth
Regional CEQ — Uk and Alnca

IMAGE
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Europe

Organic growth i Europe was 0 6% and margins
were shghtly huigher due to excellent cost control
across the region

UK & Ireland

There was good organic growth of 3 8% in the
UK & Ireland 2nd margins strengthened further
to 8 7% helped by continued strong performance
of the commercil and government businesses,
and despite revenue and margin reductions

in Ireland

Key UK Government contract wins in 2010
included a number of major contract extensions
such as

-+ taking over the national security contract for
the Department of Works and Pensions which
was mobilised on | January 2011

= a further extension of the Electromic Monrtonng
contactinto 2013

- strong growth n the services we deliver to the
Olympic Delivery Authority

= opening a new large pnson wing at HMP Pare

G45 15 bidding for a number of UK Government
contracts and has been shor thsted by the

Depar tment for Work and Pensions to bid to
delver welfare-to-work services n seven out of
the eleven UK regions We expect the resulis of
all these bids in 20f1 G4S signed a memorandum
cf understanding wath the UK Government which
will delver savings to the government largely
through re-desigring service prowvision

The secure solutions business consolidated its
position as the leading manned securtty provide:
in the UK with organic growth of 6% Comrmercial
contracts won include smart meter instaflation
contracts for four major utility prowviders
re-winning a thi ee year contract with Northern
Rail the UK's lar gest tran operating company,

a three year contract to provide secunty services
at Belfast City Avport and G4S continues to
roli-out global security contracis for international
clents such as GSK and Shell

Trading conditions in Ireland remained challenging
in 2010 but our underlying trading was helped

by prempt management action to address these
issues (G4S was part of the consortium that
delivered the new Dublin Cnminal Courts PFi
project ahead of schedule

Continental Europe

The Continental Europe region per formed well
aganst an extremely difficult economic backdrop
in Eastern Europe and we believe we have
continued to gan market share with our solutions
strategy outperforming single service provider s
Ower all organic growth was -1 9%, but margins
were slightly above the prior year at 54% due to
excellent cost control Revenues for the securty
systems business, which accounts for around

30% of Continental European secure solutions
dechined by 4% Strong performer s included
Norway, helped by the Oslo arport contract
and Netherlands where G45 recently won the
ProRad contract In Belgium G45 was successful
in winmung the Brussels arport secunty contract
for up to five years from February 2011 and
secunty for the European Commussion building
from Apnl 2011 In Sweden GAS has won the
contract for the Swedish Parhament Administrauon
from March 2011

In Israel G455 the preferred bidder for a PFI
polce tramning academy which has a 25 year
contract term and G45 has won two immigration
accommodation contracts in Cyprus

In Eastern Europe, we expect a retumn to
revenue growth in 2011, espeaially n markets
such as Kazakhstan and the Baltics, and
ncreased profitability after some re-structunng
N the region

North America

Organic growth in North Amenca was 2 2%

and margins were slightly higher due to a greater
proporton of solutions-based contracts, ngorous
cost control with reduced overtime levels and
lower employee tumove:

In the United States there was higher growth
in the commeraal sector dunng the second half
of the year and the business entered 2011 with
greater organic grawth momentum than twelve
months ago ‘Whilst the outlook for new US
federal government outsouraing contracts in the
short term 15 quite muted federal government
stimulus funding continues 1o drive the G45
Technology business with the opening 201 |
order book well above 2010 levels Government
at a state and local level will present more
opportunities as the pressure 10 look for more
effective pubhc service increases and leads to
greater use of the private sector over the
medien term

Recent contract awards include work in the
chemical federal and retail sectors and additional
locauons for Shel! and Cargilt Contracts re-won
nclude work for a nuclear power station and
county shenffs’ offices Owverall customer ratings
were excellent and further growth opportunities
exist both domestically and internationally with
the existing customer base as well as with

new prospects

All our recent acquisttions in the US performed
extremely well during 2010 and recorded
growth and financial performance erther in ling
with or ahead of expectations

In Canada the organic growth rate was over 6%
with a number of large contracts starting during
the second half Including Shell GSK the Canadian
Border Authority a large financial instizution and
Kingston Hospital in Ontanio In addion, with
support from around the group, the Canadian
business 15 bidding on the opportunity to provide
secunty solutions across arports in Canada

“Whilst the outlock for new LS
federal government cutsourang s
muted, federal government stimulus
spending continues to dnve the
(A4S technology business™

Grahame Gibson
Cheet Operaung Officer
Regiond CEQ - Amencas

IMAGE
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New Markets
Total Turnover PBITA Margins  Organic growth
im i % % | InNew Markets organic growth was excellent
2010 7009 2000 2009 2080 2009 2010 at 7 1% with SU'Oﬂg mprovements In margins in
Furope* 2,617 2612 180 (75 69% 67% 06% | Mmostregons ]
North America® 1,676 1524 96 8 57% 56% 22% | Organcerowthin Asia was 3 5% and margns §
" were lowar due to the loss of the DIAC contiact o
New Markets 1754 1502 143 131 B1x 82% T1% | in Austratia, as previously announced Excluding
Total secure solutians® 6,047 5738 419 3N 69% 68% 2 8% | Awustrala revenues were up 14 5% and margins
wetre 71% with strong revenue increases in
Exchange differences - 09 z @ Papua New Guinea, Palastan and the
At actual exchange rates 6,047 5668 419 388 Philippies India the largest market i the H
region achieved double-digit revenue growth ]
Europe Turnover PBITA Margms  Organic growth Qur msk consulung business Hill & Assocates 2
£m £m % % | delvered a very strong performance and will §
2000 2009 2010 2009 2000 2009 2010 | be leveraging its expertise nto the Middle East &
UK & helang® 179 11% 103 97 BT% 85% ey | 200
Continental Europe* 1,438 1476 77 78 54% 53% —19% I the Middle East growth continued to be
Total Eurone® 1817 262 180 175 6 9% 67% 0 6% excellent across the 1 egion with improved
ope : . margns of § 5% Qatar and UWAE performed
- particutarly strongly, manly as a result of the L]
America Turnover PBITA Margns  Organic growth | new arport contract in Qatar and federal wage 5
im £m % % | legistation in UAE In fraq as expected the £
w010 2009 1010 2009 2018 2009 W0 | work for LS forces has come to an end The US é
North Amenca*® 1,676 | 524 96 86 ST% Se% 2.2% | Embassy contract in Kabul, Afghamstan will
continue beyond | January 2011 as a result of
New Markets Turnover PBITA Margine  Organic growth the new ncumbent fahng to reahse the contract 2
£m an % % transition The work will continue for at least the S
2010 2009 1010 2009 2000 2009 1010 first four months of 2011 at an improved profit .‘.-E‘
o
Asz* 600 565 40 a1 &7% 8% 3 5% | Contriouton ki
Africa performed well with organic growth g
Middle East® 465 429 44 39 9.5% 9I% 8 2%
of 5 8% and margins of 99%, helped by strong 3
Adricat 333 33 33 99% 93% 58% | performances in Morocco, Uganda w
Latn America & Canbbean* 356 295 26 19 73% 64% 14 2% | Botswanaand Djibout: and in our Care g
. and justice services business In South Africa g
Iotal New Markets 1,754 1602 143 B B2% 8% TI% (A4S has a unique network of operations in Africa E
At constant exchange rates which provides an excellent platform to support &
our glebat chents working in key sectors such as 5
ol and gas, ports and mining 2
-£=
The Latn America & Caribbean region has £
performed well as a result of a number of large &
conteact wins in Argentina Brazi, Chile
Colombra, Ecuador Mexico and Puerto
Rico Overall for the region organic growth
was [42% and ma: gins were 7 3%
Case study

IMAGE
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Behavioural detection officers

Passengers at Heathrow are now being protected by a
new G45 tearn of undercover officers trained to detect
the smallest signs of suspoous behaviour

Araety a lack of iggage or taking photos can indicate
that someone  a potental high-risk, or they could
simply be a normal passenger — and the now team of
rme Behavioural Detecton Officers can now help

tell the difference

Blend ng searmiessly o the check i area the officers
use non-ntrusive observation and analysis techriques
1o whentfy potential threats and share inteligence with
unformed colleagues and the police
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Divisional review

Cash solutions

The cash solutions business manages cash for financial institutions Sectors

and retailers Our deep understanding of the cash cyde ensures that money
s maved safely and efficently around an econemy at considerable cost saving to
our customers, and allows thern to focus on their core businesses

GRAPH
REMOVED

Strategy Services

- Play a key rofe in the managemnert of the cash cycle on behalf of central banks commeraat banks

GA4S prowvides a wide range of secure
and retailer s, allowing them to focus on ther core business

logistics ncluding

=+ Use our developed market cash cycle expertse and track record to encourage central bank

= Finanaal nstitubon cash autsourcing
and finanaial institution outsourcing in New Markets

= ATM network management
= Continued roll-out of nnovative technology such as CASH340 (see page 39) £

= ATM cash management services

Key operational highlights

-+ ATM engineering services

=+ Continued strong performance in New Markets - Retat cash management solutions — CASH360

..)
Some service reductions due to low interest rates lower nflation and recession - Data and document management services

= Strict cost controt Iimrted impact on margins =+ Cash logistics

> CASH360 sales gaining momentum = Secure nternational transportaton of cash

KPIs and valuables

During 2010 the cash solutions business performed robustly in an extremely difficult economic Contracts/relationships
environment with organic growth of -1 1% Margins were 11 0%

The dur ation of contracts vary with most being
on an annual basis and those contracts requinng

a hugher capital intensity such as cash processing
GRAPH GRAPH or CASH360 beng usually five years duration
REMOVED REMOVED However even when the contract terms are

short, In practce many relationships becorme
tong term rolling over from one year to the next
This 15 demonstrated i our annual customer
retention rates which avet age above 90% across
most regions

GRAPH GRAPH
REMOVED REMOVED

*2006 o 2009 at 2013 exchange rates and excluding
alt businesses disposed of during the penod
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Customer needs and drivers for key sectors
Retall
cta o ,
Cash has existed for five millenmiz, and remains PY o §
king in the 2lst century Globally it 1s the preferred  of Europe s 388 bilhon retail payments "
IMAGE method of payment among consumers According  in 2008 made using cash -
to Retarl Banking Research's Future of Cash and é
REMOVED Payments ' repor t 77 5% of Europe’s 388 billion (o)
retail payments in 2008 were made using cash o
L J
We estimate the average retader can spend up we esumate the aver age retaler spends
to | 7% of turnover managing cash In the fiercely  around 1 7% of turmover managing cash
competriive retail sector where margins are o
becoming ever tighter and every penny counts, §
our retall customers continue to look for ways £
to minimise those costs IMAGE §
REMOQVED
z
=
[
E
S
Financial institutions Our banking customers want to maximise g
the efficiency of all therr operations, from 9
With ongins in cash handiing going back how hard their cash works for them to how i
many decades, our UK cash solutions =
thewr buldings and employees are protected i,
expertise has allowed us to develop long-
Our banking customers want pariners who
standing relationships with central and retail £
can operdte ther cash cycle at maximum g
banks in more then 70 countries In which =
efficency, bigh productvty and optimum
we operate our cash management services E
secunty, so ther money 1s kept moving around &
IMAGE the economy, ahwvays avalable to consumers and £
REMOVED 7 0 + not sat in bank deposits incurring central bank 3
mnterest charges 2
countnes in which we operate E
our cash management seraces &
IMAGE
REMOVED
Other
A portion of our cash solutions work is separate G451 applies its expenence and expertise
from the traditronal work that s done for 1N secure internmational transportation across
financial nstitutions and retailers. This speciabst a range of sectors, induding finance, nining,
work will vary from country 1o country, covenng  diamonds and jewellery pharmaceuticals and
areas such as toll coflections, creating wage government. In each instance, G451 protects
packets through to specialist sportng and the reputational and commercial nsk its chents
cultural events face throughout the transport process for
such commodities as precous metals
One business that prowides a specialised solution banknates credit cards diamonds and
15 G4S International {GA451), which meets the
controlled substances
global demand for safe relable transport of
valuable and vulnerable cargo
IMAGE
REMOVED IMAGE
REMOVED
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Cash solutions performance

Europe

Crganic growth in Europe was -2 8% and was
impacted by lower interest rates, lower iflation
and a reduction in some services by custormers
but cost control measures ensured margins
improved to 11 3%

In the UK & Ireland, the cash solutions business
performed very robustly despite a 3% revenue
dechne The first CASH360 sales have been
achieved in the UK with companies such as
CenterParcs and Burger King 2nd with a strong
pipeline of pilots The cash consuling business,
SMI (see page 39) acquired in 2009, continues

to per form well, gving us Increased exposure

to central banks around the world The travel
logistics company TLCS was divested as part of

a portfolio review resutbing in a profit on disposal
of £8m This was more than offset by restructuring
costs in the UK Treland and Sweden cash
solutions businesses and a sigrificant restructuring
in Romania as a result of a major downsizing of
the contr act with the state post office

Ireland continued to face a particularly
challenging economic environment but the
business has won the provision of cash sourong
for An Post (post office) pension payments
which will benefit 201

G45 international {see page 37}, the international
valuables transportation business achieved a
particularly strong performance with organic
growth of 9% and mproved margins helped

by higher commodity prices

Elsewhere in Continental Europe, orgamic growth
was affected by a reduction i cash transportation
and ATM services but continued strong growth
was achieved in Greece and in Belgium,

where G45 has won a number of banking
contracts

North America

In North Amer ica, the business it Canada
declined due the loss of the Bank of Montreal
contract

New Markets

Organic growth in New Markets was good

at 4 4% but margins were lower at F2 5% with
both numbers impacted by the previousty
announced loss of contracts in South Africa.
Excellent growth and strong margins were
achieved in UAE Qatar and Malaysia

Turnover PBITA Margins  Organic growth

£m £m % %

2010 2009 010 2003 2010 2009 2040

Europe* 891 919 101 100 3% 109% =2 8%

Naorth Amenica 106 110 4 S 318% 45% -3 6%

New Marksts 353 338 44 43 125% 145% 4.4%

Total cash sclutions 1,350 | 367 149 154 110% 113% -1 1%
Exchange differences - (26) - (2
At actual exchange rates L350 {34l 149 152

* At constant exchange rates

"Excellent growth and strong
margins were achieved in UAE,

Qatar and Malaysa "’

Dan Ryan “A sustaned penod of low interest

Regional CEQ P

—As?a Middle East IMAGE rates in some countries has had a short
REMOVED | term impact on our ability to grow

the cash solutions business However
excellent cost control dunng the year
has meant that the businesses have
stil performed very well "

Ken Nsven

IMAGE
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Drssional CEQ - Cash solutionsg IMAGE
REMOVED
Case study
Cash forecasting

CIMB Group Malaysias second largest financial mstitution
and (4S have proneered the use of an intellgent cash
management and forecastng system called WCom in the
Southeast Asilregion 0 a eulbicultural socety such as
Malayswy there are many rebgious festivals that attract
hundreds of thousands of devoiees and tounists every
year — the Hlom systein can anuopate the many
fluctuations which these events cause and match
avadability aganst demand This not only gz eases
efficency but reduces operating costs 0o
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Case study

SMI

Secura Monde Imtermational {SMP was acqured by
G450 2009 and 15 widely regarded as the world s
prinupal ndependent technical and commercial
adwisery company — specahsng m the markets and
technology of banknote paper making prninting and cash
cycle re-engineenng SMI has unique relationships with
central banks around the world based on its expertise
and 15 wor kang with G4S cash businesses to encourage
1etal and centr dl banks 10 vulsource more cash services

IMAGE
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Case study

Cash management
outsourcing in Kenya

G45 has enjoyed a 16-year prarinership with Citibank
Kenya. part of Citegroup the world s largest financial
services organsation They work together Lo provide
nnovatve ways of meeting the end customer s needs
Services include cash-n-u ansit, ATM management

wage preparition and distibution repatriation of foreign
currency 1o Its country of origin and fully-outsourced
cash processing

IMAGE
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Case study

CASH3560

CASH360 s a revolution in the way the world s leading
retailers manage cash In just over two years more than
50 retaders n eight countries have begun to use 1t to
automate then cash handing from the retal point of sale
o the resater s bank account [t ehminates oppo) tunities
for1abbery theft and fraud as well 35 offermg immediate
operationaf efficienues

“In Continental Europe, organic growth
was affected by a reduction in cash
transportation and AT™M services but
continued strong growth was achieved
in Greece and Belgum ™

Willemn van de Yen
Regional CEQ - Burope

IMAGE
REMOVED

To see nterviews with all the Regional and
Divisional CEOs talkng about 2010 business
per formance and outlook please see

httpdireports gds com/2010

Overview

Business review

Governance

Fmancial statements

Shareholder information
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Securing success through
responsible conduct.

As the world's largest secunty sofutions company, operating in more than
125 countries, we know that we can impact the lives of many, whether they
are employees, customers, nvestors or members of the general public going
about therr dally routines

It is our responsibility to make sure that the impact we have
is a positive one and that we are contributing to a safer and
more secure society for everyone.

Qur CSR Committee has been in place for more
than a year and 15 helping the organisation to gan
some real traction on key issues affecting the
business, our employees and the communiues in
which we operate The Committee 15 ensuring
that CSR remains a core element of the groups
strategy and that G4S businesses around the
world are aligned on out CSR goals

One of the biggest challenges for the gioup In
2011 will be to make sure we have adequate
procedures mn place 1o ensure we are compliant
with the UK Bribery Act K will be a challenge
but we are fully supportrve of effective legal
frameworks to ensure that business conducts
1iself ethucally and honestly

Over the next few pages we ouilne some of the
key areas of Corporate Soczl Responsibility for
the group and summarise the progress we have
made since we last reported 12 months ago
They are managed within the following four key
areas and more detail can alse be found in our
third CSR report

- Safeguarding our integnty

-+ Secunng our workforce

= Securing our environment

= Securing our communities

In the 2010 CSR report we have highlighted the
contnbution that G4S makes not just from an
economic point of view, but also explores how
we interact with groups of indmduals facng
hardship in our day-to-day work.

IMAGE
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For more mformation on our full report visit.
httpfireports gds com/2010

More information and detailed information
0 ouwr CSR Report, 2010

Managing our
business responsibly

CSR governance

In January 2010 we established a CSR Commitiee
to ensure that CSR issues rermain at the forefront
of the groups strategy and that we continue

to have a postive impact on pecple and
communities whilst contnbuting to a sustainable
futwr e for our business and everyone connected
toit

The CSR Committee reports nto the Audit
Committee in order to ensure that our CSR
swrategy 1s closely aligned to 1ssues such as sk
management audit and comphance

The Committee 1s chared by Mark Elhott

a GA4S plc non-executve director who has
extensive experience of CSR from tis 30 years
1 international business with global orgarusations
such as IBM

Stakeholder engagement

We contnue to Improve our communication
and engagement with key stakeholder groups to
ensure that our strategy 1s aligned 1o thewr needs
and that, as our C5R programmes develop we
seel nput and advice from those around us

Taking this proactive approach to raising global
standards has helped build G4S's reputation with
governments custome: s and employees while
ensunng we can deliver a sustainable retun for
our INvestors.

flust: anons of how stakehalder engagement
has shaped our approach ¢an be seen in our
stand alone CSR report.
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G4S plc Board

CSR benchmarking

in Aprl 2010 we commissioned Corporaie
Ciuzenship to conduct a benchmark analysis of
(545 CSR actrities versus 1ts industiy peer group
and best practice This enabled us to dentify
areas forimprovement and to ensure that our
(SR strategies develop in ine with best pracuce

IMAGE
REMOVED

Socially Responsible Investment

In May 2010 we were pleased that GES
Investment Services announced that we had
been removed from its exclude and engage iist
GES stated that 'over the last two years G45
has demonstrated substantial improvements in
its global management ot employee relations and
labour nghts and engaged constructively on these
and other 1ssues

IMAGE
REMOVED

Nomitnatwon

Audit Commuttee

Remuneration

Committee Commuttee
1
CSR Commuittee
[
Ethical trading and Ermployment ssues Health and safety
business practices
Workforce drversity Human rghts Clmate action
and nchrsion
Community and
socal nvestment

IMAGE
REMOVED

This was followead in December 2010 with the
inclusion of G45 in the Ethibel EXCELLENCE
Investment Register (see www ethibel o g)
Forum ETHIBEL supports investors in their
search for Socually Responsible Invesiment
(SRIy products that offer a far balance between
economic progress, environmental protecuon
and social justice

IMAGE
REMOVED

*“The establishment of the CSR
Commrttee has really helped to rase
the profile of CSR both wathin the
business and wrth external stakeholder
groups We have made significant
progress in some challenging areas
this year and expect that momentum
to continue throughout 2011

Mark Effiort
Non-exequtree director and
Charmnan of the CSR Commutiee

Fitnancial statements Governance Business review Qverview

Shareholder information
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Corporate Social Responsthility

Our approach, progress and goals

We have made good progress in the four key
areas of focus for the group during 2010 Below
we explain our approach summanse some of our
achievements and outline our future CSR prionties.

Safeguarding our integnty

(45 plays an important role in society

We make a difference by helping people to
operate in a safe and secure environment
wher e they can thrve and prosper Our size
and scale means we touch the lives of millions
of people across the globe and we have a duty
and desire to ensure the influence we have
makes a positive impact on the people and
communities in which we work

Integrity 15 one of the groups core values -
beng a responsible business partner emplayer,
customer and supphier 1s an important part of
our strategy and forms an essential foundaton
on which we carry out our business In our
view ethical behaviour of corporations should
not be just a reaction to regulabon o legal
compltance but a2 means of doing business
which grves customers, employees, partners
and communities the confidence that they

are working with an organiation which s

not prepared to compromise on standar ds

to achieve its financial cbjectives

Performance in 2010

Securing our people

As one of the world's largest private global
employers, our approach to people
management has a matenal impact on our
business and 15 a key focus for our management

Our customers nghtly expect high levels

of professionalism and commutment from G45
in all parts of our organisation They expect
thought leadership and inngovation in the design
and delwery of solutions which wilt mirurmise
nisk and improve the performance and
reputation of thew businesses They also expect
a consistently high quality of service delvery

To ensure that our people are fully engaged
and motvaied to meet customers' expectauons
we invest in and involve them so that they

feel engaged and motivated about being part
of G45 This 5 the key to sustained business
success We endeavour 10 continuousty Improve
levels of employee engagement, motivation,
exper tise and per formance and through doing
sa achieve Inu eased customer satsfaction

and the continued growth of our business

Performance in 2010

-+ Establshed an Anu-Cocruption Steenng Group to
emsure group-wide ettucal comphance and 1 fowus
on the implications of the LK Biibery Act

-+ Implemented a CSR Checkhst for assessing acquisitons
and mor nvestments

=+ Became a fourxler signatory to the new Intematonal
Cade of Conduct Tor private security providers which
sets out prinaples for security operations n so-callad
complex environments

=+ Became a sgnatory 10 the UN Global Compact the
nternabonal standard which promotes scaally
respoansible busnesy behaviour in the areas of human
rights labour environment and ant-corruption

=+ Implemented Improved Mandatory Secunty Controls
(based on the ISO staindard 77001} auross the group

= Increased number of mernal audits by 38%
from 1021w 11

=+ Introduced a group-wide sinplified Ethis Code whach
can be easly understood by o employess

Focus for 2011

=+ Continuad reduction in work-r elated accudents and
fatahues from 90 in 2009 10 59 n 7010

=+ Ethicat Employment Par tnership continued positvely

+ 131 Dversity & Inchusion assessments carmed out by
businesses representng 92% of the group and acton
plans for mprovements have been agreed

2 Gender dversity of the G4S pl board has inureased
with the appointment of two female non executive
drectorsn 1010

-+ Ingeased the of fernaless N the groups talent
pools from 1% 1 2009 to 20% 1n 2010

2 Lmplkowyee retention rates improved with the voluntary
wrnover rate lafing from 27% n 2009 to 225 n 2010

Focus for 2011

-+ Introduce core teans of health & safety expes ts
= Improve health & safety benchmarkng
= Contrwed reduction m health & safety nexdents

-+ Improvement in employee satisfaction and engagement
— survey o take place n 2001

- Rush assessment for UK Bribery Act comphance

=+ lmnprovesmnent 0 employee retenbon rates

= Enhanced audi processes o cover UK Bribery Act
imphcations

=+ Emsuring every country has local whistle-blowing
hotne n place

< knplenenting and promoting g plobal whistle-bkrwarg
hothine which 15 avadable to &l employees

= Further enplernentabon of Dveraty & Indusion strategy

=+ Contrwed postive progress with the implementation
of the Ettacal Employment Par tnershep

- Increase the membersinp of the Group Leadershp

Programme to 75 manages s across the group
{curTently 53)

(45 has become a
sgnatory 1o the UN
IMAGE Global Comnpact

REMQVED

More case studies and detailed information
n our CSR report 2010

Contnued reducton

n work-r elated accudents
and tatdlies mwor k-
telated accdents and
fackties fiom 50 n 2009
te 59 n 2010

IMAGE
REMOVED

More case studees and detailed information
in our CSRrepor t 7010
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Securing our environment

As an o1 ganisation that speciabises in managing
risk G4S recogrises that the threat to people
and infrastructure from dimate change 15 an
important and ongoing concem for our group
our customers and our employees

At G45 we are endeavouring to be the
leader in our Industry in measuring reporting
and reducing the intensity of our greenhouse
2as emissions Ve have set oursebves a

series of challenging targets to increase the
sustainabilrty of our operations and reduce
our carbon footpnnt.

{n partnershup with our customers employees
and suppliers, we are investing n energy
efficient technologies reducing waste and
encouraging our stakeholders to think about
the envircnmental impact of their decsions
with the am of teducing the resource footpnnt
of out operations

Performance in 2010

Securing our communities

The economic and soal impact of G4S reaches
well beyond its working environment and
touches the lves of milkons of pecple around
the world G45S provides funding volunteers
and services to a broad range of orgarusations
within the cormmuniues m which we Iive

and work with the majonty of our investment
being focused on the health, education welfare
and support of children and young people

Performance in 2010

= Measured the carbon emissions of businesces
representing #4% of the group

=+ Conducted a review of key comniunity projects
acress the group carred out durng 2010

=+ Achieved overall reducton i carbon nitersity of 5 4%

=+ Developed and expanded 4 global network
of envwonmental co-ondnators

= Implemented Greensione Carbon Managenent
System across the group to track and analyse
crhon enmissuons

- Introduced multiple programmes to reduce carton
ntensity across the group

Focus for 2011

=+ Continue to snplement carbon reduction strategees
to reduce carbon mtensity measured against revenue
by | 5% from 2009 1o 2017 {averagmg 4 5% pa)

<+ Systermatically measur e the caibon emissions
of at least 94% of the group

=+ Introduce a Green Buslding minimum standard
for new buikd or long lease facdites,

= Introduce measurement of waste and water
consurmpton to o Clhimaie Acuon Programme

Actueved owver 2l
IMAGE | menyorost
REMOVED

Morce case studies and detaded mformation
n our CSR repart 2010

-+ ldenufied 63 separate community nvesument
programmes with a combined value of £054 000
taking place across the world

< (G545 commurity programmes 1ouched the Ives of
22.500 adubts and chddren across 12 courtnes

Focus for 2011

- Conduct an annual revew of G45 mpact
m the community

- Conduct Econome. Impact Assessments of G345
operations n three Maor countries - South Alfrca,
India and Ch ke ~ zddinonal markets 1o foliow

G4s comnurty

IMAGE | motwerci22500
REMOVED adults and chddren

across 32 countnes

More case studies and detailed information
n our CSRreport 2010

There are two addronal areas of special focus
for 2011

Bribery Act

The UK Bribery Act 15 expected to come in to
force dunng 2011 Bunng 2010 the Anti-Comruption
Steering Group has been developing plans for its
implementaton dunng this year This will include

- Adapting alf current policies to ensure
compliance with the Act

=+ Communicating the detadl and implcations
of the Act with employees and other
affected parties

=+ Developing and implementing training
programmes to ensure all relevant staff are
aware of their obligations

= Establshing an independent global whistle-
blowing facilrty for repor ting non-complance

- Conducting a nisk assessment of key countnes
and business urits

- Developing the current audit processes and
content to incorporate additronal requirements
of the Act

Human rights

Whilst the group already takes its responsibility
for human nghts extremely sericusly and we

are clear about our obligatons and requirements
at a business urut or serwice level, we recognise
that it would be benefical to have a more systematic,
global approach to human nghts due dilgence

During 2011, we will conduct a risk assessment
based on the countrtes in which we operate
and the services that we provide and develop
a human rghts framewark and strategy for
implementation across the group

Overview

Business review

Governance

Financial statements

Shareholder information
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Financial review

We remain highly cash
generative and with the
recent renewal of our £1.1bn
revolving credit facility we remain
N a strong financial position

to help drive future growth.

We have achieved our sixth consecutive year of underlying revenue and profit
growth since the group was formed in 2004 and we have grown dividends
by 292% over the same period.

Basis of accounting Associates

The financial statements are presented n Included within PBITA 18 £5m (2009 £Im)
accordance with applicable law and International  in respect ofthe group’s share of profit from
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the  associates prnapally from the business of
Eurcpean Union ( adopted IFRSs™) The group's  Space Gatewayin the US which provides safety
significant accounting policies are detalled nnote  services 1o NASA and from MW-AIl Star akso
3 on pages 75 1o 80 and those that are most in the US, which joined the group in 2009 as
crrucal andfor require the greatest level of part of the acquisition of All Star Internattonal.
Judgement are discussed In note 4 on page 80

Acquisitions and acquisition-

Operating results related intangible assets

The overall results are commented upon by Investment in acquistions in the year amounted
the chairman in bus statement and operational to £65m This compnses a cash outlay of
trading 1s discussed in the operating review on £42m and deferred consideration of £23m
pages 4 1o 39 Profit from operations before Thus investment generated goodwill of £46m
amorusation of acquisiion-telated mangble and other acqusiion-related intangible assets of

assets and acquision—elated expenses (PBITA) £l4m In addiien the group incurted acquisiion
amounied to £527m, an increase of 54% on the costs of £4mwhich have been expensed

£500m 1in 2002 and an increase of 4% at constant .
exchange rates The group undertook several acquisibions in

the year the mest significant of which were the
purchase of the controlling intes est n SSE Do
Brasil Ltda the parent compary of Instalar me
Solugdes Eletrdnica Ltda ( Instalarme™) an
electromc software and hardware mtegration
company in Braz, Plantech Engenhana e Sistemas
Ltda { Plantech’) a leading mntegrator in the
Brazban secunty systems market and the entire
share capital of Skycom (Pty) Ltd {* Skycomn )

a market leader n the South Afncan secunty
systems market




G4S ple Anmual Report and Accounts 2010

45

IMAGE
REMOVED

In addition, the group mcreased its holding in an
Argentme business

The group undertook several acquisitions in the
pnor year, the most significant of which were
Adesta LLC 2 leading US systems integrator in
the design and oper ation of secunty systems and
command and control centres for government
and regulated services acquired on 31 December
2009 for $66m and All Star International one
of the premier faciliies management and base
operations support companies praviding
services to the US Government acquired on

23 November 2009 for $599m

Orther acquisiuions in the pror year included
the purchase of controlling interests in SecPont
Secunty Limrted 2 secunty solutions business
in Ghana Sunshine Youth Services a juvenile
justice business in the US CL Systems Limnted
a cash solutions business i Greater China,
SecuraMonde, a cash solutions business in the
UK NSSC, a US nsk consutting business in the
nuclear power mdustry and the public sector;
and Hill & Assocates Asias leading provider
of specaalst nsk mitigation consulung services

In additon the group completed the buy-cuts
of non-controling rterests in certain businesses
in New Markets during the prior year

The contnbution made by acquisitions to the
tesults of the group during the year s shown in
note |7 on pages 90 to 62

The charge for the year for the amortisation

of acquisthon-related intangible assets other
than goodwilt amounted to £88m Goodwill

15 not amortised Acguisition-r elated intangible
assets ncluded in the consehdated statement of
financial posiwon at 31 December 2013 amounted
to £2 147m goodwall and £286m other

Financing items

Finance income was £98m and finance costs
€203m grving a net finance cost of £105m

Net interest payable on net debt was £96m

This 1s an increase of B% over the 2009 cost

of £8%m due principally to the increase in the
groups average gross debt, The groups average
cost of gross borrowings in 2010 was 4 8%
compared to 4 7% in 2009 The cost baseg on
prevaling interest rates at 31 December 2010
was 4 2% compared to 4 5% at 31 December 2009

Atso included within finanang are other net
nterest costs of £3m (2009 £7m) and a net cost
of £6m (2009 £19m) in respect of movements

in the groups net reurement benefit obligations

Taxation

The taxatron charge of £102m prowided

upon profit from operations before amortisation
of acquisition-related intangible assets and
acquisition-related expenses, represents a tax
rate of 24% compared to 26% in 2009 The cash
tax rate s 20% compared to 7% in 2009

The groups target is to further reduce the
effective tax rate in the short-term This wall

be driven by the gradual reduction in UK
corporation tax rates, the ongoing rauonalisation
of the group’s legal structure and the elminayion
of fiscal mefficiencies The amortisation of
acquisition-related intangible assets gives nse

1o the release of the related proportion of the
delerred tax lability established when the assets
were acquired amounting to £25m

Overview

Business review

Governance

Financial statements

Shareholder information
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Finhanctal review

Disposals and
discontinued operations

The group disposed of its cash solubions business
in Fawan on 15 July 2010 and of Travel Logisties
Limited a UK expeditor of travel documents,

on 24 September 2010

During the prior year the group disposed

of s manned security business in France on

28 February 2009 In addiion, dunng the prior
year the group disposed of a number of smatl
businesses, ncluding the captive insurance
business in Luxembourg on 23 Decernber 2009,
as well as discontinuing the systems installation
business in Slovakia

The total consideration from business cisposals
in 2010 was £13m

The loss from discontinued operations in

2010 of £9m relates to the post-tax trading

of discontinued bustnesses and costs related to
business disposals made in pror years

The loss attributable to discontinued operations
n 2009 comprised a profit of £6rn i respect

of post-tax trading of discontinued businesses
and a loss of £i3m in respect of the disposals
made in the previous year

£245m

Profit for the year 2010

The contnbution 1o the tumnover and operating
profit of the group from discontinued operayons
15 shown i note & on pages 81 to 85 and ther
contrbution to net profit and cash flows s
detaled i note 7 on page 85

Profit for the year

Profit for the year was £245m compared 1o
£219m in 2009 The ina ease 1 epresents the
£27m increase in PBITA, the £9m decrease

In net interest cost and the £1m dectease in the
tax charge less the £5m increase in amortsation
of acquimtion-related intangible assets the £4m
acquisition-refated costs and the £2m ncrease

n foss from discontinued cper ations

Non-controlling interests

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests
was £22mn 2010 an increase on £17m for 2009,
reflecting non-controlling partner shares in the
group s organic and acquisitive growth less a
reduction in non-controling shares in net profits
consequent upon the group INcreasing Its
interests in certain subsidiares

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share from contnuing and
discorrinued operations was 15 9p compared

1o 14 4p for 2009 These earnings are unchanged
when calculated on a fully diluted basis which
allows for the potential impact of outstanding
share opuons

4.73p

Faal devidend recommended
hy the dueciors

Adjusted earnings, as analysed in note 16 on

page 89, excludes the result from discontinued
operations, amartisation of acquisiion-ralated
ntangible assets acquisition-related costs, and
retrement benefit obligations finanang tems,

all net of tax and better allows the assessment
of operational performance, the analysis of trends
overtime the comparnison of different businesses
and the projection of future performance
Adjusted eamings per shaie was 21 6p, an
increase of 7% on 20 2p for 2009

Dividends

The directors recommend a final dvidend

of 473p (DKK 0 4082) per share This represents
an ncrease of 14% upon the final dwvidend

for the year to 31 December 2009 of 4 |6p (DKK
073408) per share The nterm dvidend was 3 [7p
(DKK 0 2877) per share and the total dvidend

if approved will be 790p (DKK §6959) per share,
representing an Increase of 10% over the 718p
{DKK 0 5624) per share total dwidend for 2009

The proposed dwidend cover s 2 7 times
{2009 2 8 smes) on adjusted earnings
The groups intention ts that dvdends will
continue to increase broadly n line with
narmahsed adusted eamings
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Cash flow

The primary cash generaton focus of group management is on the percentage of operating profit

converted into cash From 2007 the group s target conversion rate was raised from 80% to 85%

Operating cash flow as defined for management purposes, was as follows

2010 209

£m £m

PBITA 527 500
Less share of profit from associates {5) (3]
PBITA befor e share of profit from associates (Group PBITA) 522 499
Deprecration amaorusation and profit on disposal of non-current assets 132 136
Movement in working caprtat and provisions {73) {15}
Net cash flow from capital expenditure (139) (17G)
Operatng cash flow 442 450
Operaung cash flow as a percentage of group PBITA 85% 0%

Overall operanng ¢ash generation for the year was good as a result of the mantenance of financial

disciplne across the orgarisation

The management oper ating cash flow calculation 1s reconciled to the net cash from operating activities

as disclosed n accordance wrth 1AS 7 Cash Flow Staternents as follows

010 2009

im £m

Cash flow from operating actmities (IAS 7 definrion) 448 509
MNet cash flow from caprtal expendriure (139) (170)
Discontinued operavons and other tems 14 13
Add-back additional retirement benefit contnbutions k] 30
Add-back tax pad 86 68
Operating cash flow (G4S definmon) - 442 450

Overview
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Financial statements
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Financial review

The groups free cash flow, as defined by managerment 15 anatysed as follows

w010 2009

£m £m

Operating cash flow 442 450
Net interest paid 94 87)
Tax pad (a6) (68)
New finance leases (4] (20}
Free cash flow 253 275

Free cash flow s reconciled to the total movement in net debt as folkows

Fiee cash flow 253 275
Oiscontinued oper ations (5} {13)
Additional retirernent benefit conttibutions (33) (30}
Net cash outfiow on acquisitions (56) {153)
Net cash inflow from disposals - (10)
Net cash flow from associates 3 2
Dwdends pad to non-controlling interests (12) (18)
Transactions with non-contralling interests 3) -
Shar e 1ssues less share purchases (10} (7}
Dmdends paid to equity holders of the parent (103) 94}
Net cash flow from hedging financial instruments - (10
Movement n net debt in the year 34 {58)
Foreign exchange transfation adjustments to net debt (27 N
Net debt at | January (1,433) {1.348)
Net debt at 31 December (1,426) (1433)

Net debt represents the group's total borrowings less cash cash equivalents and lquid investments

The components of net debt are detalled in note 3% on page 111

Financing and treasury activities

The groups treasury function is responsible

for ensuring the avardabiity of cost-elfective
finance and for managing the group’s financial risk
arsing from currency and interest rate volatiity
and counterparty credit Treasury s not a profit
centre and s not permitted to speculate n
financial Instruments The treasury departiments
polices are setby the board Treasury is subject
to the controls appropriate te the nsks it
manages These risks aie discussed in note 33
on pages (01 to 103

Financing

The group's funding posiion 1s strong with
sufficient headroom against avalable committed
faciliues with no debt maturing before 2013

The groups pnmary source of finance

a £1 ibn multcurrency revolving credit facility
provided by a consortium of lending banks

at amargn of 0 80% over LIBOR and maturing
on 10 March 2016

The group also has $550m in finanong from the
private placement of unsecured senior loan notes
on b March 2007, matunng at vanous dates
between 2014 and 2022 and pearing mterest

at rates between 5 77% and 6 06% The fixed
interast rates payable have been swapped into
Moating rates for the term of the notes at an
average margin of 0 60% over LIBOR

On 15 July 2008 the group completed a
further $514m and £69m private placement
of unsecured semtor [oan notes, maturing at
various dates between 2013 and 2020 and
bearng interest at rates between 6 09% and
756% The proceeds of the ssue were used to
reduce drawings aganst the previous revolving
credit faciity $265m of the US dollar receipts
have been swapped into sterling for the term
of the notes

On 9 March 2009, the group obtained a BBB
credit rating from Standard & Poors This credit

s ating supported the group's inaugural transaction
In the publc bond market 2 £350m note ssued
on 13 May 2009 beaning an mterest rate of 775%
and maturing n 2019
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At 3 December 2010 the group had
uncommitted faciities of £575m

Fhe group's net debt at 3| December 2010
of £1 426m represented a geanng of 90%
The group headroom at 3| December 2010
was £552m The group has sufficient capacity
to finance current nvestment plans

Interest rates

The group s nvestments and bortowings at

31 December 2010 were, with the exception

of the issue of pnivate placement notes in July
2008 and public notes in May 2009 at varable
rates of interest Inked to LIBOR and Eurbor
with the group's exposure being predominantly
to interest rate sk in US dollar and euro

The group s nterest risk policy requires treasury
to fix a proporticn of this exposure on a slding
scale utihsing Interest rate swaps The matunty
of these interest rate swaps at 31 December 2010
was hmited to four years The market value of
the Loan Note-related pay-varable recenve-fixed
swaps outstanding at 3| December 2010
accounted for as far value hedges, was a gan

of £55m The market value of the pay-fixed
receive-vartable swaps and the pay-fixed
receve-fixed cross-currency swaps outstanding
at 31 December 2010, accounted for as

cash flow hedges was a net gan of £23m

Foreign currency

The group has many overseas subsidianes

and associates denominated in vartous different
curvenges Treasury policy s to manage significant
translation nsks in respect of net oper ating
assets using foreign currency denormated loans,
where possible The group no longer uses
foreign exchange contracts to hedge the residual
poruon of net assets not hedged by way of
loans The group beheves cash flow should not
be put at nsk by these instruments in order 1o
preserve the carrying value of net asseis gven
the changed hquidity emvironment following the
global credit cnsis At 31 Decernber 2010 the
groups US dollar and euro net assets were
approximately 65% and 60% respectively
hedged by foreign currency loans

Exchange differences on the translation of foreign
operations ncluded n the consehdated statement
of comprehensive Income amount to a gan of
£41m {2009 loss of £64m} These differences

are net of a £27m loss (2009 £27m) on the
retranslation of net debt and a £nil cash outflow
(2009 L10m) from forward exchange contracts

Cash management

To assist the efficent management of the groups
interest costs and its short-term deposits,
overdrafts and revobang credit facility drawings,
the: group operates a global cash management
system At 3|1 December 2010, more than

130 group companies participated in the pool
Debit and credrt balances of £230m were

held within the cash pool and were offset for
reporting purposes

Retirement benefit obligations

The group's pnmary defined benefit retirement
benefit scheme 1s 1n the UK but 1t also operates
such schemes in a number of other countries,
particularly in Europe and North America

The latest full actuanal assessment of the three
sections of the UK scheme was carned out at

5 April 2009 The three secuons of the UK
scheme are the Group 4 scheme (approximately
8,000 members) the Secuncor scheme
(approximately 20 000 members) and the GSL
scheme {(approamately 2 000 members)
acquired in 2008 Thas assessment and those

of the groups other schemes have been updated
to 31 December 2010 The group's funding
shartfall on the vatuation basis specilied n

14519 Employee Benefits was £265m belore
tax or £191Im after tax (2009 £328m and
£236m respectively)

The valuation of gross kabiiies has barely
changed durng 2010, wath 2 £32m reduction

in habilities ansing from the announcement

by the government that pension increases will

be in line with CPl rathes than RP, accounted

for as a crednt to the statement of comprehensive
ncome, offset by the impact of the unwinding of
the discount on the habilues.

The net mpact of actuanal changes 1§ very small
The lower discount rate of 5 5% (2005 57%)
and an updating of the mortality assumptions
followang from the full actuanial valuation have
increased kabilties But the lower inflayion
assumption and lower than previously assumed
pay increases during 2010 have decreased
liabiliies Assets have increased in value during
the year in ine with the previous assumption, and
additional company contributions of £33m were
paid inte the schemes

The group beheves that over the very long term
in which retrement benefits become payable,
investment returns should eliminate the defiat
reported in the schemes in respect of past
service iabthties However in recogmition of the
regulatory obligations upon pension fund trustees
to address reported defiats, the group has agreed
a new deficit recovery plan with the trustees
dunng the year The new plan will see addiponat
cash contnbutions made to the scheme of
approximately £35mvin 2011 with modest

annual ncrements thereaftes

Corporate governance

The groups pohicies regarding risk management
and corporate governance are set out i the
Corporate Governance Statement on pages
59 10 6l

Going concern

The directors ar e confident that after making
enquiries and on the basis of cunent financal
projections and avallable fachiues, they have

a reasonable expectation that the group has
adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future For this
reason they continue to adopt the going concern
basis in preparng the financial statements

SIGNATURE
REMOVED

Trevor Dighton
Chief Financal Officer
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Group principal risks

Managing risk and limiting the
impact of any issue Is a core

skill of G45

Risk and potential impact

Mitgition

Price competition

The security industry comprises a number of
very competrive markets I particular manned
security markets can be fragmented with
refatively low economic barrers to entry and
the group competes with a wide vanety of
operators of varying sizes Actions taken by the
group’s competitors may place pressure upon
its pnang margins and profitabiity

=+ Group management continually monitors
competitor activity to ensure that the goup
can react quickly to any competitor actions
which would directly affect the group's resuits

= Alt business plans and strategic planning includes
competitor and SWOT analysis and the pricing
st: ategy for contracts is managed through
business unit and regional price approval levels
Significant pnce reductions require group capex
committee appioval

= The group mplemented a new customer
measurement process duning 2010 which
should further enhance competitor analysis

= In addition in 2011 the group will be
rolling out a new customer relationship
management system

Major changes in
market dynamics

Such changes in dynamics could Include new
technologies govermment legislation or customer
consohdation and could particularly if rapid or
unpredictable, impact the groupss revenues and
profitability Security can be a high profile ndustry
There is a wide and ever-changing vanety of
regulations applicable to the groups businesses
across the world with a recent development
beng an increase of restriction of foresgn
ownership in some countnes Failure or an inabiity
to comply with such regulations may adversely
affect the groups revenues and profitability

= The group performs strategic and business
planning at group division egion and business
urit level to ensure that specific local regulation
requirements are met. Monthly business umit
trading reviews ensure that market changes are
dentified quickly and actions taken to maintain
performance and ensure that business
objectives continue to be achveved

3 The group also monitors local markets and
engages with local governments around the
world involing the group legal department
where appropnate to ensure adherence to
regulatory requirements, to identify any
restrctions that could adversely impact the
groups actvities and take appr opriate actions

= The group has formed an anti-corruption
steering group which is working on addressing
the implications of the UK Bribery Act and
similar legislation

Poor operational
service delivery
Should the group fal to meet the operational

requirements of its customers it could mpact
is reputation contract retention and growth

= Group-wide operational procedures and
standards are in place and enforced in 2!l
business units There is also a robust supervision
structur e which allows management to monitor
the progress and delivery of the group’s
contracts and customer relationships

Onerous contractual obhigations

Should the group commut to sales contracts
specifying dsadvantageous pricing mechanisms,
unachievable service levels or excessive hability,
it could impact ts margins and profitabidity

= Any new contracts entered into are subject to
a defined appr oval process Standard contracts
are used whete practicable Non-standard
contracts which expose the group to matenal
nsk (e g unlimited hability) are subject to sk
assessment and depending on the level of nsk
exposure are refarred for regional or group
legal department review

= The group maintains a contract risk
database and managemeny systern to monitor
the ongoing rsks ivolved The contract
management system was subject to a major
upgrade dunng 2009

Information technology

Cyber attacks and inadents on G45 and cient
systems and services, espeaally around ¢ntical
national infrastructure, could result in financial
loss, breach of contract legal action and
reputational damage

2 The group employs IT specialists at all levels
and has i place mandatory minmum sacurty
controfs (relating to 35 speafic controls)

In addition penetration testing of networks
and systems 15 performed regularly to ensure
that key systems at e robust
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Our risk assessment and
management process

The group aperates around 160 businesses
spread over more than 125 countnes and across
arange of product areas Most of the risks
dentified below are market specfic 2nd so the
diversity of the group s operations means any
particular ssue should have 4 hmited impact

The group oper ates 4 management structure
that s appropriate to the scale and breadth of
its actvities and the internal audit department
operates under a wide remit to ensure stiict
adherence to group authorisation procedures
and control standards as outhned here

Risk and potential impact

Risk conwnittees
Group

Management meetings

Regions Rusks idertified

{and dlusters) and escatated based
on matenalty
Company
(and business functions)
Risk reporting system

Mitigation

Cash losses

The group s responsible for the cash held on
behalf of its customers Increases in the value

of cash lost through cnminal attack may increase
the costs of the group's insurance ‘Were there
to be falures in the comrol and reconciliation
processes surrounding customer cash these
could also adversely affect the groups profiabiirty

=+ The group has for mal systems and polcies in
place decumenting physical secunity procedures
and directives and adheres to a security
framework to help reduce the nsk of cash
losses

= The group also operates a captive Insurance
business unit to mtigate against the financial
nsk of losses and attacks

-+ All transactions ar e subject to stnct
authorisation limits and regular reconahations
of cash balances are performed for both cash
n ATMs and cash held on customers behalf

< In addiion there 1s regular repor ting of any
cash losses/attacks and audits of secunty are
performed in branches

= The group has in place regional cash
reconabation managers to increase the focus
on cash reconcikations throughout the group

Defined benefit
pension schemes

A prolonged period of poor asset returns and/or
unexpected ncreases in jongewity could reguire
ncreases in the current levels of addiional

cash contributions to defined benefit pension
schemes, which may constrain the group's ability
to nvest iy acquisitions or capitat expenditure,
adversely impacung its growth and profitabiity

=+ The performance of the group's pension
schemes and deficrt funding plans are reviewad
regularly by both the group and the trustees of
the schemes taking actuarial and ivestmeny
advice as necessary

= The results of these reviews are discussed
with the board and appropriate action 1s taken
Please refer to note 34 to the group accounts
for further details of the group s retrement
benefit plans and upcoming valuaions

= The group has begun a consultanon process
1o close the defined benefit scheme to future
accrual wiich should imit the growth in
future habilities

Inappropriate sourcing of staff

The groups greatest assei Is fis large and
committed workforce However, were the
group to source napproprate staff whether as
permanent employees, temporary workers or
sub-contractors the result could be detrnmental
to the group's reputation and could acversely
affect the groups growth and profitabiity

= The group has standard recruitment policies
and procedures in place designed te ensure
that only appropnate staff are recrurted
These indude formal vetting procedues carmied
out during application with formal sign-off that
the group standards have been met before a
new staff member temporary worker or
sub-contractor s able to commence work.

= There are controls and monitonng, such as
formal compliance reviews by regional human
resources management designed to ensure
business unit compliance with these standards

- Particular attenvon 1s gven to acquired
businesses to ensure that they meet the
group standards

Financing

If due to adverse financial market condrtons,
nsufficient or cnly very costly financiat funding
were available the group might not bein a
position to implernent its strategy or invest in
acquisitions or capital expenditure adversely
impacting its growth and profitablity This
includes possible bank bankruptcy loss of
headroom particularly from movement of
exchange rates, unavailability of bank, bond

or ather sources of finanang and downgrading
of the GA4S credit rating.

- The group treasury department monitors
and follows pohaes to mitigate aganst hquidity
refinancing and curtencylexchange rate nsks
Refer to note 33 to the group accounts for
more details

=+ The group s historcal main source of funding
has been a revohing bank facility of £1 Ibn
whithwas renewed in March 201t urd 2006
Recently the group has sought 1o diversify
1ts sowrees of finance by 1ssuing a number of
prwvate placement bonds in the US and more
recently a public bond n the UK These have
spread out the refinanang requirements ovet
the next ten years to ensure the group has
access to sufficent funds to meet its business
and strategic plans

Overview

Business review

Governance

Financial statements

Sharehokder information
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Board of directors

A board with

diverse

skills to manage

the company
best Interests
of its stakeho

N the

Iders

IMAGE
REMOCVED

Alf Duch-Pedersen
Chawrman
Alfwas appointed to the board in May 2004 and

became chairman of the board in june 2006 He
15 also chairman of the Nomination Commuttee

Alf's career has involved managing muttnational
compantes based in both Scandinavia and the
UK and covening a range of industries from
manufacturing and financial services to food
and food products

He was president and chief executive of Tryg-
Baluca A/S from 1991 1o 1997 and fulfilled the
same roles at Darisco AJS from 1997 to 2006
He has been chairman of the board of Danske
Bank A/S since 2004 {and a2 member of its
board of diector s since 2000} although he has
announced his intention to reure from that post
on 29 March 2011

Age 64
IMAGE IMAGE IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED REMOVED
Lord Condon Clare Spottiswoode Mark Seligman

Deputy chairman and
senior independent director

Lord Condon was appointed to the board in May
2004 He became deputy charrman of the board
n September 2006 and 15 chasrman of the
Remuneration Committee, a member of the
Audit and Nomination Committees and the
semor independent director

Paul joined the Metropolitan Police in 1967 and,
after holding vanous seror appointments in the
pobce force including a penod as Chiel Constable
of Kent, he served as Comnussioner of the
Metropolitan Police between 1993 and 2000

He was created a hfe peer in 2001 and 1s an
advisor to international sports governing bodies
and a member of the Adwsory Board of Vidient
Systems Inc.

Non-executive director

Non-executive director

Clare was apponted to the board in June 2010
and s a member of the Remuneration
Committee

A mathemaucan and economisy by training,
Clares career has included ume at the UK
Treasury as director general of Ofgas the UK
gas regulator and as pohcyholder advocate for
Norwich Unmions with-profits pohicyholders at
Aviva In addiion she has set up and managed
her o businesses and has considerable
expertence in the gas and ol sectors

Clare s charman of Gas Strategies Group
Limited a non-executve director of Tullow
Oil plc. EnergySolutions Inc and llika plc and
a member of the Independent Commuission
on Banking

Age &4

Aga 57

Mark was appointed to the board in January 2006
and 15 the charman of the Audrit Committee and
a member of the Remunerauon Committee

Hawving qualified as a chartered accountant

with Price Waterhouse Mark spent 12 years
with SG Warburg before jonung BZW in 1995
Then, following the takeover of BZW he became
Head of UK westment Banking at CSFB and
subsequently deputy chaiman of CSFB Europe

In 2003, he became charnan of UK Investment
Banking for CSFB and in 2005 became a senior
adwisor to Credit Suisse Europe

He s an alternate member of the Panel on
Takeovers and Mergers, charman of the Industnal
Development Adwisory Board a member of

the Regional Growth Fund Advisory Panel and

a non-executive director of BG Group plc.

Age 55
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IMAGE
REMOVED

Nick Buckles

IMAGE
REMOVED

Trevor Dighton

IMAGE
REMOVED

Grahame Gibson

Chief executive

Chief financial officer

Chuef operating officer

Nick was appointed to the board in May 2004
and was the company’s deputy chief exacutive
and chief operating officer before becaming
chief executive in July 2005

Nick joined Securicor in 1985 as 2 projects
accountant In 1996 he was appointed managing
director of Secuncor Cash Services (UK} and
became chief executive of the secunty division
of Securicor n 1999

He was appointed to the board of Securicor
plc in 2000 and became 1ts chief executive In
January 2002

Age 50

IMAGE
REMOVED

Mark Eliott

Trevor was appeinted to the board in May 2004

An accountant, he joined Securicor in 1995 after a
previous career which incleded posts in both the
accountancy profession and in industry including
five years in Papua New Guinea, three years in
Zambua and seven years with BET plc

He joined Securicor's vehicle services dwision
in 1995 was appointed finance director of its
security division in 1997 and became s deputy
group finance director n 2001

He was apponted to the board of Secunicor plc
as group finance diectot n June 2002

Trevor became the company s chief financial
officer n july 2004

Age 61

IMAGE
REMOVED

Winme Kin Wah Fok

Grahame was appointed to the board In
Aprl 2005

He joined Group 4 in 1983, starting as finance
director (UK) followed by a number of semior
roles, incleding deputy managing director (LK}
vice president {corporate strategy) vice president
(finance and administration) vice presidert
operations (central & south eastern Europe and
UK} and chief operating officer of Group 4 Falck

In July 2004, he became the group's dvisional
president for Americas & New Markets

Grahame became chief oper ating officer in
Juty 2005

Age 58

IMAGE
REMOVED

Bo Lerenius

Non-executive director

Nonm-executive director

Non-executive director

Mark was appointed to the board in September
2006 and 1s a member of the Remuneration and
Normination Committees

Based i the USA, he worked for [BM between
1970 and 2008 having occupied a number of
semor management positions incduding General
Manager, IBM Europe, Middle East and Afinca,
where he was responsible for the company s
operations in more than 110 countnes

Mark is the non-executive chairman of QinetiQ
Group PLC and a non-executve director of
Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier Group plc,
a member of the supervisory board of Reed
Elsevier NV and chainman of Reed Elsevier's
remuneration committee

Age 61

Winnie was appointed to the board in October
2010 and 15 a member of the Audit Committee

An accountant by traning. Winnies career has
involved management roles In finance audit and
corporate advisory companies and a wide range
of roles i asset management firms investing
with a focus in Asia

VWinnie 1s an adwvisor to Husqvama, a seror
adwvisor to Investor AB and a non-executive
director of Volvo Car Corporauon AB SKF
and Kemira Oy

Age 51

Bo was appointed to the board in May 2004 and
1s a member of the Audit and Remuneration
Committees

After a diverse early business career he served
as chiel execuuve of Emstromgruppen AR a
Swedish bulding matenals company, between
1985 and 1992 when he joined Stena Line AB
wherg he was chiefl executive and vice chairman
In 1999, he became group chief exacutive of
Assocoated Briush Ports Holdings pic

He 1s now the non-executve chairman of
Mouchel Group Pic and Koole Tanktransport BV
a non-executive director of Land Secunties
Group plc and Thomas Cook Group Pl
honerary vice president of the Swedish Chamber
of Commerce for the United Kingdom and

a senior advisor to the infrastructure fund of
Swedish venture capital group EQT

Age 64

Fnancal statements Governance Business review Overview
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Executive management team

IMAGE
REMOVED

Nick Buckles

IMAGE
REMOVED

Trevor Dighton

IMAGE
REMOVED

Grahame Gibson

Chuef executive officer

Chief financial officer

Nick has worked in the security ingustry for
26 years focusing throughout this time on the
commercial and strategic aspects of all areas
of secunity services

After a variety of commertial roles throughout
the group he was responsible for driving significant
profit improvements in many Secuncor businesses
throughout the 1990s as a business uniz managing
director and dmsionat chief executive of the
secunty division He was also instrumental in the
development of Securicors security sector focus
becorrung group chief executive in 2002 and in
bringing together Group 4 Faick and Secuncor to
create the new combined group Nick became
chuef executive of G4S in July 2005 Nick s
charman of the Ligue Internationale des Socetes
de Surveillance, she international association

of leading security companies

IMAGE
REMOVED

Debbie McGrath

Trevor has worked in the security ndustry

for 25 years After several years in both the
accountancy professien and commerce working
in the finance function and general management.
he joined BET in 1986 as finance director of then
Secunty and Communications Division

Trevor joined Secuncor n 1995 and, following

a number of years as finance director of the
security civision, he was appointed to the board
of Securicor plc in june 2002 as group finance
director He became chief finanaal officer of G45
in July 2004

Trevor s a Fellow of the Chartered Instriute
of Management Accountants

IMAGE
REMOVED

Graham Levinsohn

Chief operating officer and
Regional CEO ~ Americas

Grahamae has been involved 1 the security
industry for 28 years, having joined Group 4's UK
operating company in 1983 as finance dwectar

Since that ume Grahame has held a number

of operational, management and board positons
in the UK USA, Denmark, the Nethertands

and Awustria

His broad experience of the secunty industry

and management of businesses across a diverse
range of cultures has been nvaluable to the group
throughout its development Grahame joined

the board of G435 plc n April 2005

Grahame is a board member of the Ligue
Internationale des Societes de Surverllance

IMAGE
REMOVED

David Taylor-Srith

Group Communications director

Debbe s Group Commurnications Director, heading
the corporate communications team which focuses
on the groups key audiences — nvestors media
government. employees and customers, Debbie has
a broad range of experence in marketing, corporate
communicatons brand development and
wplesmentation and cnsis communicabions. Prior to
the merger between Group 4 Falck and Securicor
Debbie was employed in a number of sermior
marketing and communicasons roles within the
Secuncer group from 1993 to 2004

Before joining Secuncor Debbre had ako held
marketng positions with ICC Information Group
and Honeywell Bull Debbe 15 ako charman of the
8l South East Regional Counal (the representatve
body for 2l CBI member comparwes based in the
Soush East of England and the Thames Valey) and a
member of the C8l Chairmens Committee which
takes the lead responsibility for settng the CBI's
position on all policy matters

Group Strategy and Development
director

Grazham has more than |7 years expenence n
the security mdustry having joined Secuncor Cash
Services in 1994 as general manager — marketing,
Since then Graham has held a number of
commeraal and ine management positions In
boih the cash and security Ines of business
Graham was responsible for the creation of the
UK Cash Centres ouisourcing business in 2001
as managing director before mowing on to
become dvisional managing director for G45
Cash Services UX and then regional president —
Nordies He became group strategy &
development director in 2008 and moved

on to the Executive Committes in 2010

Regional CEO - UK and Africa

Dawad was appointed as Regional CEQ — UK
and Afnca in july 2010 having previousty been
CEQ GASUK and Irefand and dasional
managing deector of G45 justice Services

He joined the Group in 1998 as managing
director of Hong Kong and a member of the
Asia Pacific Board followang a successful earlier
career where he held senior roles with jargine
Matheson ORBIS and Operation Raleigh

Pror to the he was a Briush army officer and
served in Northern Ireland Germany England
and in Cyprus with the United Nauons

Dawvid 15 2 Fellow of the Royal Geographical
Society He has sat on the board of several
charues, and currently sits on the board of
WWEF-UK, In 2003 he was awarded the MBE

in recogniton of his charitable actwities overseas
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IMAGE
REMOVED

Seren Lundsberg-Nielsen

IMAGE
REMOVED

Ken Niven

IMAGE
REMOVED

Irene Cowden

Group general counsel

Divisional CEQ = Cash solutions

Group HR director

Seren began his career as a lawyer in Denmark
and since |984 he has had a wide range of legal
experience as general counsel for intemationzl
groups in Denmark, Belgum and the US before
Joning Group 4 Faick n 2001 as general counsel
Seren has been involved 1n a wide range of
successful mergers and acquisrions during his
career, including the acquisition of Wackenhut
and the merger of Group 4 Falck and Securicor
Saren now has overall responsibility for all nternal
and external legal services for G4S as well as the
group’s INsurance programme

Seren s a member of the Danish Bar and Law
Socety a member of the adwvisory board of the
Darush UK Chamber of Commerce and author
of the book * Executive Management Contracts
published in Denmark.

IMAGE
REMOVED

Willem van de Ven

Ken has 15 years expenence in the securty ndusty
having joined Securicor n 1996 as operatons
director of the UK cash services business where he
was later promoted to managing director and was
instrumerital in the development of new product
areas induding cash centre outsourcing and
establishing Secuncor’s ndependent ATM network.,

Ken was appointed to his current role in July 2004
and 1s responsible for the groups cash solutions
dmsion which includes all of the major cash
sohsbions businass units, and for sharng cash
solutions best pracuce throughout the entre
organisanon Ken joned the securty industry
lollowing a successful career within the logistics
mandagement ndustry where he held senior roles
at Express Foods, Bxel Logistics and Coce-Cola

Ken is president of ESTA, the European cash
services assoaation and 1s a member of the
Chartered Insutute of Logstics and Transport.

IMAGE
REMOVED

Dan Ryan

Regional CEO - Europe

Regional CEO - Asia Middle East

Willem has served nearty 20 years with G45 and
its corporate predecessors in Hofland He started
out in the former Randstad group where he
becarne Regional Director Willem then served
as HR director and managing director of the
Netherlands secunty company Randon which
was subsequently acquired by Securicor in Apnil
2003 Willem was apponted as Secuncors
regronal managing director (Afnca), becorning the
regional president for G45 Africa (Sub-Sahara)
after the merger in 2004

In July 2010 Willem was appointed regional
CEO - Europe

Dan joned G45 n August 2010 from global
logistics and transportation company Neptune
Onent Lines (NOL) where he held a number of
senior management posiuons including regional
presdent for Greater Chuina for NOLs APL and
APLL dwsions and regional president for the
Middle East for the APL dnvision and regional
president for Furope for the group s APL Logistics
dmvision He was a member of the NOL Group
Executive Team

He also held vanous managing director positions
for NOL including Middle East. Hong Kong/South
China and Indonesia and a regionzl head for

the Middle East a dunng his 20-year career with

the group

Dan is also a Charter Member of the Middle East
Logistics/Supply Chain Management Forum, Hong
Kong Liner Shipping Assotiation and the Amencan
Chamber of Commerce — Shangha

Irene has spent her career in HR management,
specialising n employee relations organssational
development talent management and
compensation issues She has been involved In
major change projects Including the cultural and
integration aspects of mergers and acquisiuons as
well as large scale organusational change involving
workforee restructuning, working in partnership
with major trade unions

Irene has worked n the security industry for
33 years and has held director level positions
at business unit, divisional and corporate level
She was appointed to the board of Secuncor plc
1n 2002 as group HR director

Irene s a member of the Chartered Institute
of Persoonel and Development (MCIPD)

Business review Overview

Governance

Financial statements

Shareholder information
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Report of the directors
For the year ended 3| December 2010

The directors have pleasur e in presenting therr Annual Report together with the audited financial statements of G45S plc and the consolidated financial
statements of that comparny and ts subsidiaries associated undertakings and joint ventures ( the group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010

45 ple has its primary listing on the London Stock Exchange and a secondary listing on the Copenhagen Stack Exchange

| Principal activities of the group
45 ple 15 a parent company with subsidianes assotiated undertakings and jont ventures

The principal actwities of the group compnise the provision of secur e solutions {including manned securtty services care and justice services and securty
systems) and cash solutions (including the management and transportation of cash and valuables) as well as the undertaking of other outsourced business
processes in sectors where security and safety risks are considered a strategic threat

2 Group results
The consolidated resutt for the year 1s shown in the consohidated income statement on page 69

Details of the development and performance of the groups business during the year, its position at the year end, future developments prinaipal risks

and uncertainties and prospects of the group and other informaton which fulfils the requirements of the Business Review are contaned on pages 10to 5l
and are incorporated n this report by :eference The Corporate Governance Statement set out on pages 59 to 61 15 also ncorporated in this report

by reference The group's financial risk management oyjectives and policies i elation 1o 1ts use of financial mstruments and 1ts exposure to price, o edit,
hquidity and cash-flow nsk, to the extent materal are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financal statements on pages 101 to 13

3 Dwvidends

The directors propose the following net dnidend for the year

2 Interim dadend of 3 17p (DKK 0 2877) per share pad on |5 October 2010
= Final dividend ot 4 73p (DKK 04(82) per share payable on 3 June 20I1#

Sharehclders on the Danish VP register will receve ther didends in Danish kroner Shareholders who hold therr shares through CREST or in certificated
form wall receve then dvidends n sterting unless they prefer to recesve Darish kroner, in which case they should apply n wr iting ta the Registrars by no later
than 4 May 2011

{* Shareholder s on the VP Services register will be paid on & June, as 3 June 15 a pubhc holiday n Denmark)

4 Significant business acquisitions, disposals and developments

In January 2010 90% of International Muly Services Limited was acgus ed in Senegal

In March 2010 GA4S Secunity Services Ltd was disposed of in Serbia

In May 2010 25% of Search Cr ganizacion de Seguridad S A was acguired in Argentina taking G45s stake to 75%
In June 2010 SSE Do Brasil Ltda the parent comparny of Instalarme Solugdes Eletrénica Ltda was acquired in Braz)
In July 2010 49% of Falcon Travel was acquired m the UAE

In July 2010 the business and assets of Western Investigatons Pty Ltd were acquired in Australia

In August 2010 51% of Plantech Engenheiria E Sistemas S A was acquired in Brazil

In September 2010 Skycom (Pty} Ltd and Impro Distribution and Support (Kzn) (Pty) wer e acquired n South Africa
In December 2010 Guernsey Awr Conditioning Limited was acquired in Guernsey

In May 2010 40% of the G4S businass n Kazakhstan was disposed of

In May 2010 50% of Activos Compartidos S A was disposed of n Argentina

In September 2010, Travel Logstics Limited was disposed of in the UK

5 Capital

The authonsed and issued share caprtal of G45 pic at 31 Decernber 2010 15 set out on page 110 (note 37 to the consoldated financial statements)
There were 1410 618,639 shares in ssue as at 14 March 2011

Information concerning the company s shares held under option 1s set out on page 110 (note 37 to the consolidated finangal staterments)

Resolutions granting the directors power, subject to certain condtions, to allot and make market purchases of the company s shares will be proposed at the
company s Annual General Meeting The resolutions are set aut in the Notice of Meeting on pages 125 to 127 and further explanasion is provided on pages
128 and 129 At 3| December 2010 the directors had authonty in accordance with a resolution passed at the company s Annual General Meeting held on
28 May 2010 to make market purchases of up to 141,000,000 of the company's shares

The company does rot hold any t: easury shares as such However the 5029 315 shares held within the G4S Employee Benefit Trust { the Trust ) and
referred to on page HO (note 38 to the consolidated financial statement) are accounted for as treasury shares The Trust has warved its right to recene
dmdends in respect of the company s shares which it held dunng the peniod under review
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6 Research and development expenditure

Research in connection with the developmenit of new services and products and the improvement of those currendy provided by the group s carned
out conunuously Research and development witten off to the income statement duning the year amountad to £5m (2009 £6m)

7 Payment of suppliers

It 15 the company s and the group s policy 1o pay supplers in accordance with the payment terms negotiated with them Thus, prompt paymentis normally
made to those supphers meeting therr obligations The company and the group do not fellow any formal code or standard on payment practice

At 31 December 2010 the trade creditors of the company represented 28 days (2009 31 days) of annual purchases.
At 31 December 2010 the consolidated trade credrtors of the group represented 33 days (2009 37 days) of annual purchases

8 Employees

To ensure that the group's employees are fully engaged and motvated to meet customers’ expectations, the group invests n and involves them so that they
feel engaged and motivated about beaing part of G45 The group endeavours to continuously improve levels of emplayee engagement, motivation exper tise
and performance and through doing so achieve increased customer satisfaction and the continued growth of the business

Businesses communicate with ther employees through a vanety of means such as magazines meetings, intranets et¢ to ensure they are kapt abreast of
matters of concern to them, including the performance of the business Employees are consulted on a regular basis, through their representatives where
appropriate so that thetr views can be taken into account when decsions are made which are likely to affect their interests

This focus on developing the groups people has continued dunng the year wrth the ¢ eation of talent pools at all levels of the organisation and the
development of group-wide leadership programmes to support succession planning. To ensure potential emplayees are attracted from alf backgrounds
and to make the best use of therr capabiities and potential the group alse continues to Invest in developing a Giverse and inclusive workplace This includes
appointing promoting and developing employees in accordance with ther tafents and aptitudes, regardless of any disabilty To encourage loyalty and retan
employees skills the group also aims to retain existing employees wha become disabled wherever possible A self assessment tool has been launched te
measure progress and drive future strategy in this area, and the plans developed as a result of the self assessments are now being implemented for 2011

Another key strand of the groups people strategy 1s health and safety, and performance in this area 15 contnually reviewed and chaltenged by the board
demonstrating the importance attached to this issue throughout G45 All businesses are assessed regularty against the group health and safety medel and
minimum standards to ensure ther strategy 1s focused wy the appropeate areas and sulficient progress 1s being achieved In 2010 the clearest benefit of this
rigorous approach to health and safety has been the continuing reduction in work-related fatalities

The Ethucal Employment Partnership entered into with UNIin 2008 has had a posiuve impact on the business over the last two years with strong
relationships bringing benefits for employees as well as the cormpany The relationship at a global level between (G45 and UN has continued to develop
positively over this tme and in many developing markets labour relations have also entered new, constructive phases murranng the many constructive
relationships enjoyed n our developed markets

Together this progress in talent, diver sity and inclusion health and safety and social dialogue have helped increase employee engagement and motvation
across G45, ewdenced by a significant reduction in employee tumeover dunng the year Further details of the groups approach in these areas can be found
N the group’s separate CSR Report

9 Political and charitable contributions

The group remams comimitted Lo the support of chanties, the community, job creation and trarng Chanitable contnbutions by the company during the
year amounted 10 £375 000

Charttable contnbutions made by the group in the UK amounted to £63 000 The purposes for which such contrnbutions were made and the amount
donated to each purpose were chid welfare £20000 health and medical £22 000 local communrivies £16 000 NGOs £2 000, poverty reliel £1 000
and sports. £2 000

In addition, G4S encourages businesses around the group to play thew part n engaging with and helping to improve therr local commuriyies In 2010 G4S
completed rts first review of its regional and country managed community svestment activity around the world The review ook a clear snapshot of G45
community actvity identifying 10 core community programmes across the globe including amongst others pro bono contrbutions in goods and services
and projects with local partners providing schoching for underpravieged chidren Further detalls regarding community progr ammes can be found in the
group’s 2050 CSR report.

The company and its subsidianies have made no contnbuticns durng the year to political parties carmying on actvities or o candidates seeking election
within the EU

One of the company s subsicdianes in the US has however made contnbutions totaling $18 000 in aggregate to a number of candidates seeking election
and organisations carrying on actvities in the US
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Report of the directors continued

10 Substantial holdings
The directors have been notified of the following substantial shareholdings at 14 farch 2011 i the ordinary capital of G45 plc

Harms Associates LP 85,135,700 (5 04%)

Prudential ple group of companies 71384 444 {506%)

BlackRock, Inc 70 570.646 (5 00%)

Legal & General Group Pic 56 054,546 (397%)
1l Auditor

A resolution to re-appoint KPMG Audit Plc chartered accountants, as auditor to the company and for therr remuneration to be fixed by the directors will
be submitted to the Annual General Meeting

12 Directors

The dwectors biographical detads of whom are contained on pages 52 and 53 held office throughout the year with the exception of Clare Spotuswoode
who was appointed on 14 fune 2010 and Winnie Fok who was appointed on | October 2010

Thorlelf Krarup was a director throughout the year and retired from the board on 3| January 2011

I accordance with the code prowisions on re-election of directors in the UX Corporate Gavernance Caode, each of the continuing directors will offer
themselves for re-election (or, In the cases of Clare Spottiswoode and Winnie Fok election) The board believes that the directors standing for re-election
passess expenence and expertise relevant to the company s oper ations, that they conunue to be effective that they are committed to the success of the
company; and that they should be re-elected at the Annual Gener al Meeting

Ms Spotuswoode and Ms Fok have been appointed 1o the board since the last Annual General Meeting and so they would In any event be required to retire
In accordance with the companys articles of association Being elgible they offer themselves for elecuon The board beleves that Ms Spottiswoodes wide
expenence of both the public and private sectors in many parts of the world and Ms Fok's extensive business background and intimate knowledge

of the Asian markets will add significant value to the board and therefore recommends that each of them s elected at the Annual General Meeting

The contracts of service of the executive directors have no unexpired term since they are not for a fixed term They are terminable at |2 months’ notice
None of the non-executive directors has a contract of service

The company has executed deeds of indemnity for the benefit of each of the directors In respect of habilties which may attach to them in thewr capacity

as director's of the company These deeds are qualfying third party ndemnity provisions as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006 and have
been in effect since 3 November 2006 for each of the directors other than Ms Spottiswoode and Ms Fok (whose indemnities have been in effect since

14 June 2010 and | Ociober 2010 respectvely) Copies of the forms of indemnity are available on the company’s website In addition, indemruties have been
grantad by the company in favour of certan of the directors of certan of the group’s subsidianes in Germany and the Nethertands The company has
mantaned a directors and officers labilty msurance policy throughout the year under review

Details of drectors imterests (induding their family s interests) in the share caprtal of G45 plc and of the directors remuneration are set out on
pages 62 to 66

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this diectors repart confirm that so far as they are each aware, there 15 no relevant audit
mformation of which the company s auditor 1s unaware and each director has taken all the steps that he o she ought to have taken as g director to miake him
or herself aware of any relevant audit nformation and to estatshsh that the company s auditor s aware of that information

iNone of the directors had a matenal iterest in any contract significant to the business of the group during the financial year
By order of the board

Peter David
Secretary

14 March 2011
The Manor
Manor Royal

Crawicy
Wiest Susses B0 Ui
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Corporate governance statement

The boards statement on the company's corporate governance performance s based on the Combined Code on Corporate Governance pubhshed in
June 2008 { the Combined Code’) which 1s avatlable on the Financial Reporting Councils website (httpfhwaww fre.org uk/corporate/combnedcode cfim)

The Combined Code reguires companies to disclose how they apply the code s main principles, and to confirm that they comply with the code s prowvisions
or where they do not comply 10 provide a careful and clear explanation of therr non-comphance which anns to illustrate how therr actual practices
are consistent with the code s principles and contribute to good governance

(a) Application of Combined Code principles

The board compnises the non-executive chairman (Alf Duch-Pedersen), a non-executive deputy charman {Lord Condon) five other non-executive
directors the chief executive (Nick Buckles) the chief fimancial officer (Trevor Dighton) and the chief operating officer {Grahame Gibson) The board
consaiders all the non-executive dir ectors to be Independent The senior independent director 1s Lord Condon

The company s artcles of assocation requice that all contnuing directors are subject to election by shareholders at the next Annual General Meeting
followng their appointment and that they submit themselves for re-election at least every three years and that at ledst one third of the directors not
standing for elecuon for the first ime stand for re-election at each Annual General Meeting However n accordance with the code prowision on re-electicn
of directors n the UK Corporate Governance Code which replaces the Combined Code and will apply 1o the company s Annual General Meeting in 2011
all the directors will stand for election or re-election at that meeting

Membership of the three boar d committees is as follows

Audit Committee

Mark Seligrman {chairmar)

Lord Condon

Winre Fok (joned October 2010)

Bo Lerenius

Remuneration Comnuttee

Lord Condon (chairman)

Mark Elkott

Bo Lerenius

Mark Sehgman

Clare Spottiswoode (joined June 2010)

Nomination Committee
Alf Duch-Pedersen (charman}
Lord Condon

Mark Eliott

Mr Setigman 15 the member of the Audit Committee with recent and relevant financial expenence Thorlerf Krarup was a member of the Audit Committee
throughout the year to 31 December 2010 and until his retrement from the board on 31 January 2011 Winnie Fok jened the Audit Committee
on | October 2010

Clare Spottiswoode joined the Remuneration Commrttee on {4 june 2010
The terms of reference of each of the above committees are avallable on the company s website

h s intended that the chairmen of the three comrmittees will be available to answer questions at the Annual General Meeting which 1s an important
opportunity for communication between the board and shareholders particularly private shareholders. Following each resolution at the Annual General
Meeting, the meeting s mformed of the numbers of proxy votes cast and the same information s subsequently publshed on the company s websre

There were eght board meetngs durng the year ended 31 December 2010 One of the meetings was also an extended board and strategy sesson at which
presentations on development and implementation of the company s strategy were made to the board by serior executives One of the board meetings was
held in Hong Kong 1o enable the board to have greater nteraction with some of the group s businesses In Asia All members attended each of the board
meeungs except that Messrs Ellictt Krarup and Sebgman were each absent from one meeting and Ms Spottiswoode was absent from two (her inability

to attend such meeungs having been advised at the ume of her appontment} Some non-executive directors also attended meetings and conferences held
by vanous regions and business units i order to gain a doser understanding of the group

At each meeting the board receves reports from the chief executive the chief financial officer and the company secretary an HR report which includes
summartes of developments on HR and health and safety matters and an investor relations report which includes analysts reviews and any comments
recerved from mayor shareholders since the previous board meeting, After meetngs of the board committees, the respective committee charmen report
to the board on the matiers considered by each committes. In addion the board receves monthly management accounts.

There are seven board meetings scheduled for the current year, ncluding an extended, two-day, strategy review session

.

There 13 a detalled schedule of matters reserved to the board which s set out under twelve separate categones. strategy and management, structure and
capnial, financial reporting and controks ntemal contrels, contracts; communicauon, board membership and other appointments; remuneration delegation
of authority corporate governanke matters polces, and other By way of example board approval s required for major investmants. including the acquisiion
or disposal of any business worth more than £5m any changes to the groups long-term objectives and commerual sirategy: and the annual operaung and
capital expenditure budgets
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Corporate governance statement conunued

(a) Application of Combined Code principles continued

Each of the directors has disclosed to the board any situations which apply to them as a result of which they have or may have an interest which conflicts
or may conflict with the interests of the company In accordance with the company’s articles of association, the board has authonsed such matters

The affected directors did not vote when thew own positions were considered Where the board deemed it appropnate such authorisation was given
subject to certan conditions The board reviews such matier s on a regular basis

In the year under review, the Audit Comnuttee met four tmes the Remuneration Commuttee met six tmes and the Nomination Cormnittee met twice
All members attended each of the meetings except that Ms Spottiswoode and Mr Lereruus were each absent from one meeting of the Remuner ation
Commuttee

The performance of the board and rts committees has been evaluated using a questionnaire-based self assessment process which was introduced and
informed by the external consuftancy which conducted an evaluation of the performance of the board and the board's committees m 2008 [n addition the
charman held ndmiguat meetings with directors 1o discuss thewr performance and their view of the board as a whole Reports generated by this process have
been considered by the board the charman and by each of the Audit. Remuneration and Nomination Committees and a number of actions have been
agreed as 2 mears of improving performance As a result, the board will have greater interaction with the groupss businesses and customers, there

wilt be mere detaled feedback to the board from investor contacts and board strategy sessions wil be faciitated so as to maximise non-executive director
involvement The Remuneration Committee condluded that its members should undertake external training courses where appropriate and the Audit
Commuttee 15 to benchmark its performance against other companies audit committees and recommended best practice

The chairman held meetings with the non-executive directors without the executives present and a review of the performance of the charman by the
non-executive directors without the charman present was led by the semor independent director

The chief executive and the chief financal officer hold regutar meetings with iIndividual institutional shareholders to discuss the group’s strategy and financial
performance, atthough price sensitive information 1s never divulged at these meetings It 1s intended that all the directors will attend the company’s Annual
General Meeting and will be available to answer questions from shareholders

The Nomination Commuttee 1s responsible for making recommendations on board appointments and on maintaining a balance of skills and experience
on the board and its committees tast year it consider ed the skill sets of the existing directors and compared them with what would be the ideal skills and
experience of the board in order ta di aw up a specificat:on for new non-executive diectors External search consultants were then engaged to seek out
candidates who met these requirements and, as a result two new board members were apponted Both the committee and the board tself have given
consideration to the succession planmng process for the group's senior executives

Audit Committee meetings are attended by representatives of the group auditor the chief financial officer the group financial controller the head of
group internal audit and the company secretar y The committee considers the group’s annual and half-yearly financial staterents and any questions raised
by the auditor on the financral statements and financial systems It also reviews amaongst other matters the groupss finangal reporting and nternal auditing
processes, whistle-blowing arrangements, nsk management procedures and internal controls

The Audit Committee has recommended that the board reappoints the existing external audrtor having reviewed its pet formance of audit services for

the company reports on the parformance of the firm as a whole s ndependence given the non-audit services 1t provides to the group and s policy

and practice on audit partner rotation, as well as the cost of its services The committee will keep the matter of the choice of external auditor under review
at regular intervals

The Audit Cornmitiee has established a policy on the provision by the external auditor of nan-audit services, so as to ensure that the ndependence of the
audit 15 not compromised Besides the formal audit function, the auditor 1s permitted to provide consuttation and due diligence services related to mergers
and acquisiiions, audits of employee benefit plans reviews of internal accounting and control policies, general advice on financial reporting standards and
corporate tax services The audrtor 1s prohibrted & om providing other services without specific permission from the Audit Committee The value of
nen-audit services provided by the auditor must not exceed the fees charged for the statutory audit save in the event of a major transformation deal

The auditor has wnitten 1o the Audit Committee confirming that, in its cpinion it is independent and that it complies with the Auditing Practices Board
Ethical Standards The Audit Caommittee s exasting policy on the provision by the external auditor of non-audit services is to be reviewed in the Iight of the
Guidance on Audit Committees issued by the Finanaial Reporting Counal published in December 2010 Details of the fees paid to the auditor for audit
services audit-related services and other non-audit services s prowided n note 10 to the consohdated financial statements on page 86

The work of the Remuneration Committee 1s more fully described in the Directors Remuneration Report which appears on pages 62 to 66

(b) Compliance with provisions of Combined Code

The company comptlied throughout the year under review with the provisions set out n Section | of the Combined Code

(¢) Risk management and internal control

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the group s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness The systern 1s designed to
manage: ather than eliminate the nsk of falure to achieve business objectves and can only provide reasenable and not absolute assurance against matenal
nnsstatement or loss

The risks associated with the groups actvities are reviewed regularty by the board, which considers major nisks and evaluates their mpact on the group
Policies and procedures which are reviewed and monitored by the head of group mternaf audit are in place to deal with any matters which may be
considered by the board to presert significant exposure
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(c) Risk management and internal control continued
The key features of the group s nsk management process, which was in place throughout the year under review and since, are
= A common risk management framework™® is used to provide a profite of those nsks which may have an impact on the achievement of business objectves

= Each significant nsk is documented showing an overview of the risk, how the nsk is managed and any mprovement actons The nisk profites ensure that
internal audit reviews of the adequacy, application and effecuveness of nsk management and internal conirols are targeted on the key rsks

= Risk management committees have been established at regional divisional and group level The regional and divisional committees meet at least annually
and the group comimittee meets quarterly A standard agenda covering sk and control issues 1s considered at each ineeting and risk profiles are reviewed
ardd updated at each meeting

= Resk and control seli-evaluation exercises are undertaken for each operating company for most companies at least twice a year, and updated risk profiles
are prepared Similar exertises are undertaken as part of the integration process for all major acquisibons. The resufts of the company risk evaluations
are assessed by the regional and divisional nsk management committees®

The process which is reviewed regularly by the board in accordance with the internal control guidance for directors n the Combined Code, 15 carmed out
under the averall supervision of the group risk management committee This committee which reports to the Audit Committee indudes both the chief
executive and the chief financal officer

The Audit Committee undertakes a high level review of risk management and intermal contral Both the divisional and 1 egional risk management commitiees
and the group nsk management committee receve internal audit reports and regular reports on risks They monitor the actions taken to manage nsks

The internal controt system includes clearty defined reporting lines and authorisation procedures a comprehensive budgeting and monthiy reporting system
and wntten policies and procedures In addrtion to a wide range of internal audit reports, senior management also receive assurance from other sources
including security inspections third-party reviews company financial control reviews external audit reports summanes of whistle-blowing activity and risk
and control self-evaluations

The group has in place robust internal control and nsk management systems for financal reporting. The group has a single global consolidation system which
is used for both internal management reporting budgeung and planning as well as external reporting The group has a comprehensive budgeting process
with the budget being approved by the board For ecasts for the year are reported at least quarterly Actual results at business unit +egion/division andg group
level are reported monthly and variances are reviewed A programme of business internat financial reviews is performed by a finance team from either
region/dmsion or group to check the accuracy of financial reporting and compliance with the group finance manual

The board has reviewed the group's nsk management and internal control system for the year to 31 December 2010 by considenng reports from the Audit
Committee and has taken account of events since 31 December 2010

By order of the board

Peter David
Secretary
14 March 2041

* Begaunse Wackennut Servces. Inc. ("SI *) s govermed through a proxy agreement under wnich the group © excuded fom acces: 10 operaaond nfomaton 1t Nt sUbect 1o the same sk
management process as s appked L0 other group corpanues. The board has however satrsfied rself as to the adequacy of the intermat conursl processes adop.ed by WSl wihich ndude a rh revew
by an extermal acsor
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Directors’ remuneration report
at 31 December 201G

This report, prepared on behalf of and approved by the board, provides details of the remuneration of each of the directors and sets out the compariy s
remuneraton policies for the current {inancial year and subject to ongoing review, for subsequent financal years The 1eport will be put to the company’s
Annuil General Meeting for approval by the shareholders

The Remuneration Committee met six times during the penod under review The members of the committee all of whom are considered

to be ndependent. are Lord Condon (charrman) Mark Ellott, Bo Leremus Mark Seligman and Clare Spotuswoode Ms Spattiswoode was appointed

to the committee on 14 June 2010 The commuttee 1s responsible for setting all aspects of the remuneration of the charman, the executive directors,

the eight other members of the group executive committee and the company secretary It is also responsible for the operation of the company s share plans
fts terms of reference are avaidable on the company s website

Bunng the year, the committee recerved advice from Towers Watson UK Limited! { Towers Watson ) as the commttee s appointed adwisors on execuive
and senior management remuneration matters Towers Watson has also provided managerment remuneration informaton and retrement benefits advice

1o the company during the pertod under review In this regard, the committee 15 satisfied that any potental conflicts are managed appropriately Ther terms
of appointment are available on the company s website In addiion Althos Limited! { Alithos"'} has been appainted by the commuttee to venfy the calculation
of certain elements of payments due under the company s performance share plan Alithos has not provided any other services to the company duning the
perod under review

MNick Buckles chief executive provided guidance to the committee on remuneraton packages for servor executives within the group Fur thes guidance was
recenved from the groups MR director, Irene Cowden Neither M Buckles nor Mrs Cowden participated in discussions regarding thesr own remuneration

Remuneration policy

The policy for the remuner ation of the executive directors and the executive management team asms to achieve
= the ability 10 attract retan and motivate high calibre executives,

= a strong link between executive reward and the groups performance

-+ ahgniment of the mterests of the executives and the shareholders, and

=+ provision of Incentive arrangements which focus appropriately on both annual 2nd longes -term performance

In terms of market posiioring the overall objectve s 1o achieve remuneraton levels which provide a market compeutwve base salary wath the opportunity to
earm above market norms through the company's iIncentive schemes on the delivery of supenor performance A significant proportron of total remuneration
15 therefore related to performance through participation in both short-term and long-ter m incentive schemes On average the performance-related
element of reruneration for executive directors amounts to around 50% of the total package for target performance and around 65% of the total package
for stretch performance The committee believes that the current balance 1s appropriate given its desire to ensure a strong ink between performance and
remuneration whilst at the same tme avoiding a system which might incentivise inappropnate risk-taking The balance between long and short-term
incentives and between basic salary and per formance-related bonuses s therefore kept under close review but the committes 1s satsfied that the existing
long-term incentve scheme allied to the claw back processes and minimum shareholding requirements which were introduced last year, provide suitable
controls and incentives which are designed to avoid rewarding excessive nsk taking or behaviour amed at short term, unsustainable gains The committee
does not antikipate any change to this policy in 2041

GRAPH GRAPH
REMOVED REMOVYED

The comimittee 15 also satsfied that the incentive structure for the board does not rase ervironmental, socal or governance nsks by inadvertently mouvating
uresponsible behaviour

Bonus payrents do not form part of salary for pension purposes

| Towes Watson and Alchos have each grven, and 1ot wthdrawn, their winitten to-sent 1o the ssue of th's dooumen with the mchusion of the referendce 10 thes respectve na —es in the for and
conta: m atuch they appear Cop-e.sa’mecmmleﬁeﬁmmdablefmmpcc on at tre comparty s regstered o ce.
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Elements of remuneration

(a) Base salary and benefits

The salares of the executive directors are reviewed with effect from | January each year Intenm salary reviews may be carned out following significant changes
in responsibility The salanes take account of a benchmarking exercise based on similarty sized companies with a significant part of thewr business overseas and
also refiect responsibiity ndimdual performance, internal refatvities and salary and other market information suppled by Towers Watson Benefits include
penston arrangements and the prowsion of a company car {or a cash allowance in kew of a car), health insurance and lfe assurance Base salanes for the
executive directors have trafed competrive mid-market normis for some tme and wer e frazen in 2009 and agan n 2010 in view of the wider economic
environment As ndicated in last year's report, this position was not consistent with the company s long-standing competitive market remuneraton policy
Hawing carefully taken into consder ation the pay and employment conditions across the group as well as the commeraal needs of the business the committee
has decded to increase base salaries n 2011 for Messrs Buckles and Dighton te £830000 and £510:000 respectively and for Mi Gibson to $917112 and
£53444 The mpact of these changes 15 to align total remuneration for executive directors more closely with the committee s overall remuneration policy

(b) Performance-related bonus scheme

For the year under review, the executive directors participated in an annual per formance-related bonus scheme payments under which were dependent on
the attanment of defined PBTA {profit before tax and amortisation) targets of the group, adjusted for the effect of any exceptional tems and discontinued
operations and using constant exchange rates The committee beheves that PBTA best reflects the various key drvers of business success within the group
The maximum bonus entitlerent for the executive directors 1s an amount equal to 125% of base salary (150% in the case of the chief executive) 60% of
maximum bonus entitlement was payable on achievement of the budgeted target and the amount of bonus iIncreased on a straight-line basis up to H0% of
maximum bonus entitlement for achievernent of a stretch profit target Any bonus due above 50% of the indvidual s maximurn bonus entitiement would be
awarded as deferred shares which would not vest for three years For achievement of a threshold level of profits which is at least 95% of the budgeted profit
target, a bonus payment of 35% of maxamum bonus entrtfement was due with no bonus payable for performance below threshold For achievement
between the 95% threshold and or-tar get performance, the level of bonus payable increases on a st aight-ine basis

A claw back provision applies under which any deferred awards under the scheme can be clawed back if the year s profit figur es are restated materially in ine
with a recommendation by the Audit Comnuttes within two years of the year end

The group performed well n 2010 in what were agan very difficult economic condrtions, PBTA increased by £23m (£17m at 2009 constant exchange rates)
exceeding the threshold of £4F1 9m, but faling below the target which was £433 ém The commuttee has therefore sgreed that the resulting bonus payment
will be at 52 95% of maximum bonus entitiernent

The PBTA target used for the above scheme is the same as the company’s budgeted PBTA for the corresponding perad {assuming constant exchange rates)
The PBTA target 1s adjusted for any material non-budgeted changes which take place during the year such as acquistons disposals etc Thus for example,
should a planned disposal not be completed by the year end the committee reserves the right to rensert the operating profit or loss for the business in
questron in the actual and budgesed PBTA targets

For 2011 only the maximum bonus entitiernent will remain unchanged atthough threshold and budgeted target bonus opportunity will be equivalent to 50%
and 752 respectively of maximum bonus entitlement

(c) Performance Share Plan {long-term incentive plan)

The Performance Share Flan (PSP} was introduced i July 2004 Under the PSP the executive directors and certan other senior executives recerve
condiicnal allocations of the company's shares which are released to them only on the achievement of demanding performance targets

The maximum annual award of shares payable under the PSP 1s two and a half times base salary The annual award approved by the committee for the year
under review s two times base salary for the chief executive one and a half imes base salary for the other executive directors and one tmes salary for senior
executives below beard level The extent to which allocations of shares under the PSP vest 1s determmined as to two-thirds of the award, by the company s
normalised earnings per share (EPS) growth relative to the UK retail prices index (UK RPI) over a single three-yaar penod and, as to the remaining third of
the award, by the company s ranking by reference to TSR {lotal shareholder return, being share pnce growth plus dvdends paid) using 2 bespoke global
group of 16 support services companies as a comparator group, agan over a single three-year period

The following targets apply to two-thirds of awards with the three-year EPS period ending on 31 December in the third year (50 for the year under review
the penod ends on 3t December 2012)

Average annual growth in EPS Proportion of alfocation vesting
Less than RP} + 6% per annum Nl

RPI + 6% per annum (i8% over three years) 25%

RPI + 6—11% per annum Pro-rata between 25% and 100%
RPI + 11% per annum (33% over three years) 100%

in respect of awards made from March 2011 omwards the inflation measure apphed to EPS will be CPlweighted according to the groups geographical
revenue sources and the lower end of the range will be plus 4% per annum rather than the existing plus 6% per annum

The following targets apply to the remaning one third of each award granted

Rankang of the company against the bespoke comparator group by reference to TSR Proportion of allocation vesting
Below median N

Median 25%

Between median and upper quartile Pro-rata between 25% and 100%
Upper guartle 100%

in addition particpants in the PSP will recerve a further share awar d with a value equivalent 1o the dwdends which would have been paid in respect of future
PSP awards vesting at the end of the performance period

Furthernore, there will only be a transfer of shares under the finat third iIf the Remuneration Commitiee 1s satsfied that such a transfer is reflective of the
company s undertying perfor mance

.
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Elements of remuneration continued

{c) Performance Share Plan (long-term incentive plan) continued

The committee believes that a combination of EPS growth and TSR targets is the most appropnate performance measure for the per formance share plan
as 1t prowvides a transparent method of assessing the company s performance both in terms of underying financial performance and returns to shareholders
The company calculates whether the EPS performance targets have been achieved by reference to the company s audited accounts which provide an accessible
and objective measure of the company s earnings per share, whilst TSR ranking 1s determined by Towers Watson whose hindings are venfied by Alithos

Awards will not normally vest where an employee ceases to be employed within the group unless cessation of employment is due to death Inury, disability,
redundancy retrement or following a change of control of or sale outside the group of his or her employing company Inthese situations vesting will cecur
m the normal course and the performance targets will need to be satsfied Such awards would be pro-rated relative to 36 months based on the number
of months which have elapsed from the award date 10 the date of leaving, rounded up to the next month The commuttes does however retain the ability
to alfow for a greater award to vest if it considers it to be appropriate In exceptional arcumstances

Following a review of the vesting condiions by the committee in the year, PSP awards from March 2011 will include an inflation measure applied to EPS based
on consumer price indices (CPls) weighted according to the groups geographical revenue sources rather than UK RPI The commuttee believes this approach
mare accur ately reflects the global profile of the gioup The EPS range will be international CPl plus 4% per annum to 11% per annum which the committee
beleves is required to mantain an appropriate degree of challenge and stretch in the plan in ight of the company s future prospects in a challenging economic
cimate The TSR comparator group will also be expanded to 17 companies in respect of awards made fiom March 2011 onwards

The company s current pclicy 1s 1o use market purchased shares to satisfy performance share plan awards

The Remuneration Committee beheves that continued shareholding by executive directors will strengthen the alignment of their interests with shareholders
interests Accardingly a formal poficy has been adapted under which executive directors are required to retain 50% of after-tax PSP vestings until a total
sharebolding equal to 100% of base salary (150% for the chief executive} 1s achieved

Fees, service contracts and letters of appointment

The chairmans annual fee 15 £270000 The annual fee for the non-executive directors which 15 set by the char man and the executive diectors 15 £54 (00
with a further £44 550 for the role of deputy chairman £16 700 for the charmanship of each of the Audit and Remuneration Committees and £10,000
for the role of senior independent director No other fees are paid for membership of the board commitiees These fees are subject to perodic review
which takes into account comparative fee levels in other groups of a similar size and the antiopated tme commitment for the non-executive directors

The service contracis of those who served as executive drectors durng the period are dated as follows

Nick Buckies 2 june 2004
Trevor Dighton 2 June 2004
Grahame Gibson 6 December 2006

The contracts of Messrs Buckles, Dighton and Gibson are terminable by the company on 12 months notice The ¢ontracts are terminable by the executve
directors on 12 months nouce There are no quidated damages prowsions for cormpensation payable upon earty terrmnation but the company reserves the right
10 pdy salary n leu of notice The drectors contracts do not provide for the payment of 2 guaranteed bonus in the event of termination | 1s the company's pokcy
that it should be able to terminate service contracts of executive directors on na more than 12 months notce and that payments for termyination of contract are
resincted to the value of salary and other contractual entitiements for the notice penod The Rernunerabion Comimittee would consider the apphcation of mitgation
obligations i relation to any termination payments The committee is satisfied that the current an angements are appropnate 2nd i bne with best practice

The chairman and the other non-executive directors do not have service contracts but letters of appointment Ms Spottiswoode s and Ms Fok s two-year
terms of appontment began on 14 June 2040 and | October 2010 respectvely Mr Eliott and Mr Setigman have each been g anted two-year extensions

1o their terms of appointment Those extensions began respectively on | September 2009 and | January 2011 The other non-executive directors have
each been granted two-year extensions to therr letters of appointment such extensions having begun on 19 May 2010 All contnuing directors are required
to stand for re-election by the shareholders at least once every three years although they have agreed to submit themselves for re-election annually

in accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

tu1s the company's policy that executive directors may each hold not more than one external non-executive appontment and may retain any assocated fees
Mr Buckles was a non-executive director of Armva ple untl 27 August 2010 for which he received fees of £52 500 i the year ended 31 December 2010
Neither of the other executive directors currerttly holds an external non-executive appointment

Performance graph

This performance graph shows the total cumulative shareholder return of
the company over the five years 10 the end of December 2010 based on a
hypotheucal shareholding worth £100 compared with the return achieved
by the FTSE 100 consutuent comparves over the same penod The directors
beleve this to be an appropriate form of broad equity market index aganst
which to base a companson gven the size and geographic coverage

of the company and the fact that the comparny is nsell a member of the
FTSE 100 The graph also comgpares the company s performance over the GRAPH
same peniod wrih the bespoke group of companies which s used now for REMOVED
comparative total sharehelde: return purposes in the company s performance
share plan The values atinbutable to the bespoke comparator group
comparnies have been weighted in accordance with the market capitalisaton
of the companies catculated at spot exchange rates as at each year end

The peer group currently comprises. Atkins Brambles Bnnk s, Bunzl Capita
Compass, Garda G45 Hays MITIE, Prosegur Rentokil Infial Rexam
Securstas Serco and Sodexo
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The following informat:on has heen audited

Base salaries and bonuses

Sene’ts
(exchuding Pe-orma~ce
Salary and pension Relaed 2010 2009
Fees contnbuton) Sonus’' Total Total
I3 £ 4 L I3
Chairman (non-executive)
Alf Duch-Pedersen 270000 - - 270,000 270,000
Executwe directors
MNick Buckles (see notes | & 2 below) 761400 50034 &04742 1,416,176 1,656 251
Trevor Dighton (see notes | & 2 below) 475240 35,782 314549 825,571 945,574
Grahame Gibson (see notes 1, 2, 3 & 4 below) 627986 57.13% 415648 1,100,773 | 225437
Other non-executive directors
Lord Condon ¥25,350 - - 125,350 125350
Mark Elhott 54,100 - - 54,100 54100
Wirnie Fok (appointed | October 2010) 13,525 - - 13,525 -
Thorlei Kiarup 54,100 - - 54,100 61,058
Bo Lerenius 54,100 - - 54,100 54,10C
Mark Sebgman 70800 - - 70,800 63842
Clare Spotuswoode (apponted 14 June 2010) 29304 - - 29,304 -
Total 2,535%905 142,955 1334939 4,013,799 4459712
Notes,

| The benefits pad o d rectors ocluded tre prowsion of a company car or a cash allowark e i ey thereaf priva e medical msu=nce Ncome protecton on long term cisability ke 2ssurance persians
achvict and in Mr Cibson s tase certain housing cests

~

Anty bonus dut sbeve. 50X of the indmda al s masxnmum entitlernent, (1507 of base salary ter Mr Buckdes nd 1256 tor Messrs Dighton and Gibson) will be aw anded as de forred G4 shares The nuniber
of shars wh chwill be awarde d will be the amou telbonous i g eston dided by the averag: of the desing prices of the company s ordi ary shart. over the shrec days mmedia.ely follwng the dnte
of thes Lompany 5 prelirunay resulls a~nounce~eot on 15 March 20101

[

The company pakt s lares 1 ountng. o USS 72 992 fo flghts between the UK md be USA for Mr G bsonsw ik iid chdd e This sum s Lasable n the USA 1~ nor inchuded w the fiu es above.

S

Mr Gitmor recenves pa-t of his salary n sterhing and part m USS The LSS eloment fias been tramka od in7o stering for the purpeses of b sala y ot the exchange rates prevaling ncach month nwtich
M1 Gibs.nowds paed

The annual base salanes of the executive directors and the annual fees of the non-executive directors at 31 December 2010 were

Executve directors

Nick Buckles £761 400
Trevor Chighton £475,240
Grahame Gibson £5] 887 & $89C400
MNon-exscutive airectors £
Alf Duch-Pedersen (chairman) 270000
Lord Condon 125350
Mark Elliott 54,100
Winne Fok 54100
Thorlerf Ksarup (retired 31 January 2011) 54100
Bo Lerenws 54 100
Mark Selgman 70,800
Clare Spottswoode 34100

Directors’ interests in Performance Share Plan

Srarey awaded Mar<ct poce
condiuonally Dat o a*date Vesting 2007
A3lnRm duneg year awa of warg date awards A3l iz |0
Nick Buckles 1987612 587500 220310 26190 p 220313 483250 2,091,862
Trevar Dighton 1002,877 275023 ' 298 860 979,040

Grahame Gibson 1107298 301 17 " 336480 1,071,935
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Directors’ remuneration report contnued

Directors’ interests in Performance Share Plan continued

The conditians subject to which allocations of shares vest under this plan are descnbed under (¢} Performance Share Plan on pages 63 and 64
Burng the year under review the following performance share plan awards vested

MNick Buckles — 483,250 shares gross (100% vested, 414 446 shares refeased after tax and NIC)

Trevor Dighton — 298,860 shares gross (100% vested 256 309 shares released after tax and NIC)

Grahame Gibson — 336,480 shares gross (100% vested 259019 shares released after tax, NIC eic)

The market price at date of award (6 June 2007) was 212 50p per share, Messrs Buckles and Dighton pard the tax habilites associated with the EPS portion
of ther awards i cash at the ume of the accelerated vesung of those awards on 23 March 2010 and so did not rely on the sale of part of ther award to
fund that liability The TSR portion of thew awards, and all of Mr Gibson s award vested on 7 June 2010 and shares were sold to meet PAYE habdities ansing
therefiom The market prices at these vesting dates {23 March 2010 and 7 June 2010) were 263 20p and 266 50p per share respectively

Directors’ interests i shares of G4S plc (unaudited)

(including awards of deferred shares but excluding shares awarded condizonally under the performance share plan as shown above)

At3NI2 10 AT 1209
Nk Buckles 2,083,147 | 602 194
tard Condon 1,029 2029
Trevor Dighton 1,339,558 F 052 06l
Alf Duch-Pedersen 128,560 128 560
Mark Elhott 25,000 25000
Winmie Fok 20,000 -
Grahame Gibson 868,033 927382
Thorleit Krarup {retired 31 January 2011} 3,206 3206
Bo Leremus 16,000 16000
Mark Sefigman 75,496 50496
Clare Spattswoode - -

Allinterests shown above are benefical

There have been no changes In the directors haldings since 31 December 2010

As at 31 December 2010, each of Nick Buckles Trevor Dighton and Grahame Gibson also had a deemed nterest in 5029 315 ordinary shares held
in the G435 Employee Benefit Trust

Directors’ pension entitlements

For the pened under review, both Nick Buckles and Trevor Drghton partiaipated in non-contnbutory categonies of the group s defined benefit pension
schemes with a normal retrement age of 60 Mr Dighton accrued pension at a rate of 1/30ths and Mr Buckles accrued pension at a rate of 1/52ths of ther
fina! pensionable salarnies Therr rates of accrual have not changed in the time since they joined the Scheme An actuanal reduction 1s applied to pensions
payable before normal retirernent age Pension can continue to accrue at the same rates beyond normal retirement age

For death before retirement a capital sum equal to four tmes pensionable salary 1s payable, together wath a spouse s pension of 50% of the member's
prospective pension at the age of 60 plus a return of any contributions paid prior to the admission to the non-contributory category

For death in retirement, a spouse s pension of 50% of the member s pre-commutation pension ss payable,

Post retrement pension micreases are payable at the rate of 5% per annum in respect of pension earmed up to 31 December 1994 and in ine with
the increase in the Retall Prices Index subject to a maximuim of 5% per annum in respect of pension earned after that date

With effect from 6 Apnl 2006 Mr Gibson opted for enhanced protect:on and recerves a salary supplement in keu of pension of 40% of his basic salary
Pension entitlemenis and corresponding transfer values increased as follows during the 12 months ended 31 December 2010 (all figures are in £000s)

I~creage Valus of net Total change Transfer value Transfer vake

Gross ngreasse accrued pens on Total accrued nerease v B tranyer of accrued of accrued

i accued net of pension at acurud over value durng pension at pension at

pengion'® nlation ) HN2Hom penod® penoc™ INthom 3114090

Nick Buckles 15 4 36l 69 852 7,106 6,255
Trevor Dighton 16 13 ns 305 378 2,742 21364
Grahame Gibson - -7 230 —125 357 4,041 3,684

Nazes
{1} Fens on accruals shown are the armounits wixch wiaukd be pad annually on ~strement basec on service 10 the end of the year with the excepuon ot Mt Gibson whase acanual endes on S Apnl 2096,
(ir) Transter values have beer caloulatzd n accordance with the curvent transfer value basis adopted by the trustres of the (43 Penson Scresme.

{) The value of netancrease (4] represermss the rcremental value (o the drector o his service dunng e year calcubited on e assumgtion that servie ermenated a- the year-e~d b u bases
on the mcrease in accruec pe~sion (2) with e exception o Mr Gibsor whise acerual enced on 5 Apnl 2006,

(v} Mr Gibson recewves a sahry suppleent in keu of pension of 40% of hus base safary

Lord Condon wa-/@ fmolm

Charman of the Rermuneration Committee
4 March 2011
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect
of the annual report and the financial statements

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annuat Report and the group and parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the directors (o prepare group and parent company financial statements for each financial year Under that law they are required to
prepare the group financial statements i accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law and have electad to prepare the parent company
financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (U< Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affars

of the group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that period In prepanng each of the group and parent company financial statements the
directors are required to

= select surtable accounting polices and then apply them consistently;
= make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.
= for the group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU

= for the parent company financial statements state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disdosed and explaned in the parent company financial statements and

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s INappropnate to presume that the group and the parent company will conunue in
business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are suffivent to show and explain the parent company s transactions and disclose
with teasonable accuracy at any tme the financial posttron of the parent company and enable them to ensur e that its financial statements comply wath the
Compares Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the group and to
prevent and detect fraud and ather inegularities

Under applhcable law and regulations the directors are also responsible for prepaning a Directors’ Report Duectors Remuneration Report and Corporaie
Governance Statement that comphes with that law and those regulations

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial wformation included on the company s website Legislation in
the UK governing the preparation and dissermmation of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jJunsdictions

Durectors’ Responsibility Statement

Each of the dwectors the names of whom are set out on pages 52 and 53 of this annual report confirm that, to the best of his or her knowledge the financial
statements in this annuat report have been prepared in accordance with the apphicable accounting standards and give a true and far view of the assets
liabimes financial position and profit of the company and the group taken as a whole and the directors' report, induding the Business Review on pagas 10
to 51 ncludes a far review of the development and performance of the business and the pesruion of the company and the group taken as a whole together
wrth a desciiption of the prinapal nisks and uncertainties they face

The statement of director s responsibiiities was approved by a duly authonsed committee of the board of directors on 14 March 2011 and signed on its
behalf by Trevor Dighton, Cheef financial officer

Trevor Dighton
Cheef financu officer
14 March 2014
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Independent auditor’s report to the members
of G4S plc

We have audited the financiat stateaments of G45 ple for the year ended 31 December 2010 set out on pages 69 to 124 The financal reporting framework
that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements 1s apphcable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSS) as adopted
by the EU The financal reporting framework that has been applied in the preparauon of the parent company financial statements is applicable law andg UK
Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report is made solely to the company’s members as a body n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them i an audrtor s report and for no other
purpose To the fullest extent permutted by law we do not accept or assume resporsibiity to anyone other than the comparny and the company s members
as a body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responstbilities of directors and auditors

As explained mare fully i the Directors Responsibilities Statement set out on page 67 the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being sausfied that they geve a true and fair view Our responsibility ss to audrt, and express an opwion on the financal staterments in
accordance with applicable law ang International Standards on Audrting (UK and Ireland} Those standards require us to comply with the Auditng Practices
Board s (APB s} Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the APB s website at www fre org uk/apb/scope/private cfm

Opinton on financial statements
In our opinion

= the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the g oups and of the parent company's affairs as at 3 December 2010 and of the group’s
profit for the year then ended

=+ the group financial statements have been properly prepared'n accordance wath IFRSs as adopted by the EU

- the parent company financial statements have been propes by prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,

< the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the ¢ equirements of the Comparies Act 2006 and as regards the group financial
statements Article 4 of the iAS Regulation

Qpinion on other matters prescribed by the Compantes Act 2006

In our opinion

= the part of the Directors Remuner ation Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and

< the information given n the Directors’ Report for the financiat yeas for winch the financial statements are prepared s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the fellowing
Under the Comparies Act 2006 we are required to report 1o you if, n our opirion

=+ adequate accounting 1ecords have not been kept by the parent company or rewrns adequate for owr audit have not been receved from branches not
wisited by us, or

=+ the pa: ent company financal statements and the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement wath the accounting
records and returns, or

= certan disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made or

= we have not receved all the informauion and explanations we require for our audit
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

=+ the directors statement, set out on page 67 1n relation to going concern and

- the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 59 to 61 relating to the company s comphiance with the nine prowvistons of the June 2008
Combined Code specified for our review; and

= certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on directors remuneration

A G Cates (Senor Statutory Audrion)

for and on behall of KPMG Audit Plc Statirtory Auditor .
Chartered Accountants

15 Camada Square

t ondon

Fha 5L

11 March 2011
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2010
2010 2009
Notes £m £m

Continuing aperations
Revenue 56 7,397 7009
Profit from operations before amortisatien of acquisiton-related mtangible assets H

and share of profit from assocates 511 499 s
Share of profit from assocates 5 | 3
Profit from operations before amortisation of acquisition-related

intangible assets (PBITA) - 6 527 500
Amorusation of acquistion-related iIntangible assets (88) (83
Acquisiion-related expenses {4) - :
Profit from operations before interest and taxation (PBIT) 68 435 417 §
Finance income 0 98 82 §
Finance costs 13 (203) {196) E
Profit before taxation (PBT) 330 303
Taxation
— Before amortisation of acquisition-related intangible assets (102) {100)
— On amortsation of acquistion-related intangible assets 15 23
—On acquisiion-related expenses [ - §

I (76) 77) E

Profit after taxation 254 226 §
Loss from discontinued operations 7 " [€)]
Profic for the year 245 219
Atrbutable t £
Equity holders of the parent 223 02 E
Non-controling inter ests 22 7 B
Profit for the year 245 29 T;:
Earmings per share attributable to equity shareholders of the parent 16 b
For profit from continuing operauons -
Basic and diuted 16.5p 149p
For profit from ¢ontinuing and discontinued operations
Basic and diluted 15 9p 144p

Shareholder infformation
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 Decembes 2010

2010 2009

Mote £m fm
Profit for the year 245 219
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 41 (%3
Change in far value of met investment hedging financial instruments - 29
Change in far value of cash fiow hedging financial instruments 15 (23)
Actuanal iosses on defined retirement benefit schemes 15 63)
Tax on items taken directly to equity 14 (n 17
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 60 {128)
Total comprehensive income for the year 305 9l
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 283 74
Non-controlling interests 22 t7

Total comprehensive income for the year 305 9l
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n

Consolidated statement of financial position

At 31 December 2010

2010

2009

Notes im m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill 19 2,147 2049
Other acquisition-related intangible assets 19 286 359
Other intangible assets 19 71 69
Property plant and equipment b 580 546
lrvesiment in associates n 10 7
Trade and other recewables 25 138 11
Deferred tax assets 3% 161 178
3,393 3,319
Current assets
Inventones 23 84 78
Irwestments 4 82 84
Trade and other recervables 25 1,463 1,351
Cash and cash equivalents 8 351 309
Assets classified as held for sale 27 - 29
1,980 1,851
Total assets 6 5,373 5170
LIABEILITIES
Current habilities
Bank over drafts 29 (45) {38)
Bank loans 29 (H3) (146)
Qbligations under finance leases 0 (¢1)) 23
Trade and other payables 3 (1,208) (1.106)
Current tax habilities . (58) {54
Retrement benefit obligations 34 (L)) (55)
Provistons 35 33) (30)
Liabilities associated with assets classiied as held for sale 7 - (3N
(1,539) (1,483)
Non-current habilities
Bank loans 29 (574) (516)
Loan notes 29 (1,153) (1 n?y
QObligatons under finance leases 36 (4" (63)
Trade and other payables E]] (48) (43)
Retrement benefit obligations 34 {245) (313)
Provisions 15 (44) (73)
Deferred tax labimies 3% (98) (122)
(2,211) 2247y
Total habilities 6 (3,750) (3.730)
Net assets 1,623 | 440
EQUITY
Share capital 37 153 353
Share premum and reserves 38 1,224 1,054
Equrty attnbutable to equrty holders of the parent 1,577 1407
Non-controling interests 46 33
Total equity 1,623 1440

The consohdated financial statements were approved biy the board of directors and authonsed for issue on 14 March 201

Nick Buckles
Duector

ey were signed on its bepalfby——e———

Trvvur D-ghton

—
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Consolidated statement of cash flow
For the year ended 3! December 2010

2010 2009
Notes £m im
Profit before taxation 330 303
Adjustments for
Finance income (98) (82)
Finance costs 203 196
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 131 121
Amortisauon of acquisition-related intangible assets B8 83
Amortisation of ether ntangible assets 17 15
Acquisiton-related expenses 4 -
Profit on disposal of property plant and equipment and intangible assets other than acquistion-related (16) -
Profit on disposal of subsidianes (8) -
Share of profit from associates (3) {n
Equity-settfed transactions 7 7
Operating cash flow before movements in working capital 653 642
(Increase)/decraase in inventones (2) 2
(Increase)/decrease in recevables (83) t
Increase in payables 43 5
Decreasa in provisions (32) (26)
Decrease in retirement benefit obligations (40) (33)
Net cash flow from operating activities of continuing operations 519 591
Net cash used by operating activities of discontinued operations (5) (14)
Cash generated by operations 534 577
Tax pad a6) (¢8)
Net cash flow from operating activities 448 509
Investing activities
Interest received H 12
Cash flow from associates k] 2
Putchases of property, plant ang equipment and intangible assets other than acquistion-related (179) (187)
Proceeds on disposal of property plant and equipment and intangible assets
other than acquisition-related 40 17
Acquisimon of subsicharies (59 (128
Net cash balances acquired/(disposed of) 7 {12)
Disposal of subsidianes 9 8
Sate/{purchase) of Investments 5 ()]
Own shares purchased {10) (10)
Net cash used in investing activities (173) (299)
Financing activities
Share ssues - 3
Dradends paig to non-controlbng interests (12) (18)
Dmidends paid to equity shareholders of the parent {103) 94
Proceeds on issue of loan notes - 347
Repayment of revolving credit faciities with proceeds from sssue of loan notes - (347
Other net movement n borrowngs (18) 24
Transactions with non-controling mterests 3) (30)
Interest pad (105) 99
iNet cash flow from hedging finanaal instruments - (10)
Repayment of obligations under finance leases (20) (24

Net cash flow from financing activities (¢11}] (248)
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Consolidated statement of cash flow continued
For the year ended 31 Decemnber 2010

2010 2009

Notes £m fm

Net increase/(decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 39 14 (38)
Cash cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the beginrung of the year 2% 361 >
Effect of foreign exchange rate fluctuations on cash held | (38 g
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the end of the year 8 306 B 6
3
¢
¢
3
&
g
g
E
L3
-]
\
H]
g
E
]
g
E
g
g
('S
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Share Share Rataned Hedging Translagon Me ger Reserve for Total
capral premiLm earmings reserve® reserva® reserve® awn shares® reserves
£m &m &m {m

At | January 2009 352 256 252 47 00 426 {12) 1427
Total comprehensive ncome

attrbutable to equity

shareholders of the parent - - 140 4 (70} - - 74
Shares issued | 2 - - - - - 3
Dnadends declared - - {94) - - - - (54)
Own shares purchased - - - - - - 10y {10}
Own shares awarded - - (10) - - - 10 -
Equity-settfed transactions - - 7 - — - - 7
At 3| December 2009 353 258 295 “43) 130 426 12 1407
At | January 2010 353 258 295 (43} 130 426 12 1407
Total comprehensive income

attributable 10 equity

shareholders of the parent - - 238 1l 34 - - 283
Dwidends declared - - (103} - - - - (103)
Own shares purchased - - - - - - (10 {10
Gwn shares awarded - — (10} - - - 10 -
Transacuons with non-

controlling interests - - ) - - - - 7
Equity-settled transactions - - 7 - - - - 7
At 3| December 1010 353 258 410 (32) 164 426 (12) 1,577

*See Note 39
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 General information

(45 pic 1s a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Comparies Act 1985 The consolidated financal statements ncorporate the financial
statements of the company and enutes (its subsidianes) controlled by the company {collectively compnising the group) and the group s interest in associates
and jointly controlled entries made up to 31 December each year The nature of the groups operations and its princpal actvities are set Ut N Nete 6 and
within the Business Review on pages 10 to 39 and 44 to 49 The group operates throughout the world and in a wide range of functional currencies, the most
significant being the euro the US dollar and stering The groupss financial staterments are presented in sterling, as the group s pnimary isting 1s in the UK
Foreign operations are ncluded n accordance with the policies set out n note 3 The address of the registered office s given on page 132

2 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financal statements of the group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporung Standards adopied lor use
in the European Union (adopted IFRSs) The company has elected to prepare its parent company financial staternents in accordance with UK Gener ally
Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP} These are presented on pages |16 to 124

3 Significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the group have been prepared under the going concern basis and using the historical cost basis except for the
revaluation of certan non-current assats and financial Instrements The principal accounting pohcies adopted are set out below Judgements made by the
directors in the applicaton of these accounting policies which have a significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant nsk of
materal adjustment are discussed in note 4 Further infor mation on the gong concern assessment 1s given i1 the Financial Review on pages 44 1o 49 and
in note 33 on pages 10( 1o 103

The compai ative consoldated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2009 has been restated to reflect the completion duning 2010 of the ntal
accounting in respect of acquisiions made during 2009 Adjustments made to the provisional calculation of the far values of assets and habilities acquied
amount to £5m, with an equivalent increase in the reported value of goodwill The impact of these adjustments on the net assets acquired 1s presented in
note 17

The presentation of the consoldated financial statements has been changed to round results 1o the nearest £Im whereas previously they were rounded to
the nearest £0 Im This change has required the 2009 figures to be restated and as a result there are some immatenal inconsistencies between the restated
rounded 2009 figures in the 2010 accounts compared to the same figures disclosed to the nearest £0 Im in the 2009 accounts In addition there may be
smmateral rounding inconsistencies between the notes to the accounts and the primary statements for the 2009 figuies

{b) Basis of consolidation

Subsidianes

Subsidiaries are entrses controlled by the group Control s achieved whet e the group hds the power to govern the financil and operating policies

of an mnvestee entity 5o as to oblan benefits from s actvities determined either by the groups ownership percentage or by the terms of any shareholder
agreement,

On acquisition the assets and habilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired business are measured at ther fair values at the date of acquisiion The cost
of acquisrion 1s measured as the acquisition date fair values of the assets transferred to the vendor and does not include transaction costs The cost of
acquistton In respect of acquistions made prior to | January 2010 included transaction costs and has not been restated Any excess of the cost of acquistion
over the far values of the identifiable net assets acquired 1 recognised as goodwall Any deficency in the cost of acquistion betow the far values of the
wdentfiable net assets acquired (1 e discount on acquisiion} 1s credited to the ncome statement in the year of acquistuon

The cost of acqusition indludes the present value of deferved consideration payable including that in respect of put options held by nen-controling
shareholders, as estmated at the date of acqusstion For acquisiions prior to | January 2010 subsequertt changes 10 the present value of the estimate of
contingent consideration and any difference upon final settlement of such a hiability are recognised as adustments to the cost of acquisiion For acquisitions
after | January 2010 such changes are recogrised in the Income statement Non-controlling inte: ests are stated at thewr proportion of the fair values of the
assets and babdities recogrised Profits and losses are applied in the proporuon of ther respective ownership to the interest of the parent and 10 the
non-coniroling nterest.

The results of subsidienies acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consohdated income statement from the effactive date of control
or up to the effective date of disposal as appropnate

Jomt ventures
A joint venture 1s a comractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an econonuic actmvty that is subject to joint control, in that strategic
financial and operating decisions require the unanmous consent of the parties

The groups imterest in joint ventures 1s accounted for using the proportionate consolidation method whereby the groups share of the results and assets and
labiities of a jontly-controlled entity 1s combined Iine by hine with simitar tems in the groups consolidated financal statements

Assoaates
An associate 1s an entity over which the group 1s i a position to exerase significant influence but not control or jont control, through partiapation in the
financial and operating pohcy decsions of the Investee

The results and assets and kabilites of associates are ncorpor ated n the group s consolidated financul statements usng the equity method of accounting,
Investments in associates are carned in the consobdated statement of financial posiuon at cost as adjusted by post-acquisitbon changes in the group s share

of the net assets of the associates less any mpairment in the value of individual investments Losses of the associates i1 excess of the groups interest in those
assoqiates are not recognised

Trunsactions elmngted on consofidation
Allintra-group transactions balances income and expenses are elmmated on consolidabon Where a group company transacts with a jont venture or
associate of the group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the groups nterest n the relevant jontt venture or assocate

Overview

Business review
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Financial statements

Shareholder information



76 GA4S plc  Annual Report and Accounts 2010

Notes to the consolidated financial statements contnued

3 Significant accounting policies continued

(c) Foreign currencies

The financral statements of each of the group's businesses are prepared in the functional currency applicable to that business Transactions in currencies other
than the functional currency are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions At each balance sheet date monetary assets
and habilties which are denaominated in other currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date Non-monetary assets and fabilities cammed at far
wvalue which are denominated i other currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the far value was determined Non-mionetary items
measured at histerical cost denominated in other currencies are not retranslated Gains and losses arsing on retranslation are included in the Income
statement for the period

On consolidation, the assets and liabifiies of the group s overseas operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on their acquisition are
translated into sterling at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date Income and expenses are translated nto sterling at the average exchange rates
for the penod (unless this1s not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rate prevailing on the transaction dates i which case ncoeme and
expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions) Exchange differences arsing are recognised in equity together with exchange differences ansing on
monetary items that are in substance a part of the group’s net investment in foreign oper ations, and on borrowings and other currency Nstruments
designated as hedges of such investments whet e and to the extent that the hedges are deemed to be effective On dispesal translation differences are
recognised in the iIncome statement in the penod in which the operation 15 disposed of

(d) Denvative fmancial instruments and hedge accounting

In accordance with its ireasury policy, the group only holds or 1ssues dervative financial instruments to manage the groups exposure 1o financial risk not for
trading purpases Such financial risk :ncludes the interest rsk on the groupss variable-rate borrowings the far value nisk on the group's fixed-rate borrowings,
commodity risk in relation to rts diesel consumption and foreign exchange risk on transactions, on the transtation of the group s results and on the translation
of the group’s net assets measured in foreign currencies The group manages these rsks through a range of denvatwve financal nstruments, ncluding interest
rate swaps fixed rate agreements commodity swaps commaodity options forward foreign exchange contracts and cuerency swaps

Derwatve finanoal instruments are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial posivon as financial assets or habities at far value Far value 1s
measured using one of the valuation techriques based on one of the three following valuation hierarchies as set out N IFRS 7 (Amended)

Level | — quoted prices (Lnadjusted) n active markets for identical assets or liabiliues

Level 2 —inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or habiity erther diectly (e as prices) or indirectly
{1e dernved from prices) and

Level 3 —inputs for the a»set or hability that are not based on cbservable market data (unobservable inputs)

The gain ar loss on remeasurement to fair value 1s recognised immediately in the ncome staternent, unless the dervatives qualify for hedge accounting Where
dervatives do qualify for hedge accounting the treatment of any resuliant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged as described below

Faur value hedge
The change in the far value of both the hedging nstrument and the related portion of the hedged item is recognised immediately i the Income statement

Canh flow hedge

The change In the far value of the portion of the hedging Instrument that 1s determined to be an effective hedge s recognised in equity and subsequently
recycled to the income statement when the hedged cash flow impacts the ncome statement The ineffectve portion of the farr value of the hedging
instrument 1s recognised mmediately in the income statement

Net investment hedge

The change in the fair value of the portion of the hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognised in equity and subsequently
recycled to the ncome statement when the hedged net iInvestrent impacts the ncome statement The neffective portion of the farr value of the hedging
instrument is recognised mmedately in the Income statement

{e) Intangible assets

Goodwill

All businass combinations are accouried for by the apphcation of the acquisiton method Goodwil ansing on consohdation represents the excess of the

cost of acquisition over the groups interest in the far value of the rlentifiable assets and liabidities and contingent habilities of a subsichary, assocrate or
tantly-contralled entity at the date of acquistion No goodwill anses on the acqusition of an addrtional interest from a non-controlling inter est In a subsidiary
as this 15 accounted for as an equity transaction Goodwaill s stated at cost, kess any accumulated impairment losses and s tested annually for impasrment or
more frequently if there are Indications that amounts may be impawed In respect of associates the carrying amount of goodwaill s Included within the

net nvestment in associates On disposal of a subsidiary associate or jontly controlled entity the attnbutable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal

Goodwilt anising on acquistions before transition to IFRS on | January 2004 has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts, subject to being tested for
impawment at that date Goodwill wnitten off to reserves under UK GAAFP prior to 1998 has not been reinstated and s not included in determining any
subsequent profit or loss on disposal

Acquistuon-refated miangible assets

Intangible assets on acquisitions that are erther separable or arsing from contractual nghts are recognised at far value at the date of acquisition Such
acquistion-related intangible assets include trademarks technology customer contracts and customer relavonships The farr value of acquistion-related
intangible assets 1s determined by reference to market prices of similar assets, where such information 1s available, or by the use of appropnate valuauon
techniques including the royalty relef method and the excess earmings method

Acquisition-related intangble assets are amortised by equal annual instalments over thewr expected economic bife The directors review acquisition-related
ntangible assets on an ongoing basis and, where appropnate, provide for any impairment in value

The estimated useful lves are as follows:

Trademarks up to a maximum of five years

Customer contracts and customer relationships up to a maximum of ten years
Tachnology up to a maximum of five years
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3 Significant accounting policies continued
(e) Intangible assets continued

Other intangible asse!s - development expendiure

Development expenditure represents expenditure ncurred in establishing new serwices ang products of the group Such expendrture s recognised as an
intangible asset only if the following can be demonstrated the expenditure creates an identificble asset ris cost can be measured rebiably, it is probable that «t
will generate (Uture econormic benefits, it 15 techmically and commercially feasible and the group has sufficent resources to complete development In all other
nstances the cost of such expenditure 15 taken directly to the income statement

Capitased development expenditure 1s amortsed over the peniod during which the expenditure 1s expected to be revenue-produaing, up 1o 4 maximum
of ten years The directors review the caprtahsed development expenditure on an ongoing basis and where appropnate, provide for any smparment in value

Research expenditure 1s written oft in the year n which it s ncurred

Other mtangible ossets — software

Computer software 1s capitabsed as an intangible asset if such expendrture (both internally generated and externally purchased) creates an identifiable asset
if 1ts cost can be measured reliably and if it 1s probable that i will generate future economic benefits Capitalised computer softwat e is stated at cost net of
amortkabon and any provision for imparment Amortisation 1s charged on software s as to write-cff the cost of the assets to their estimated residual values
by equal annual instalments over their expected useful economic ives up to a maximum of eight years

{f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 15 stated at cost net of accumulated depreciaton and any provision for mparment Depreciation 1s provided on all proper ty
plant and equipment other than freehold land Depreciation is calculated so as 1o write-off the cost of the assets to therr estimated residual values by equal

annual Instaiments over therr expected useful economic lives as follows
Freehold and long teasshold buidings up to 50 years

Short leasehold buildings (under 50 years) over the Iife of the lease
Equipment and motor vehicles one to ten years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over thewr expected useful economic lives on the same basis as owned assets or where shorter over the
term of the relevant lease

Where significant, the residual values and the useful economic ives of property plant and equipment are re-assessed annually The directors review the
carrying value of property, plant and equipment on an ongeng bauws and, where appropnate, provide for any imparrment in value

(g) Financial instruments
Financial assets and bnanciat lzbilkives are recognised when the group becomes a pai ty to the contr actual provisions of the Instruments

Trade recenables

Trade recevables do not carry interest and are stated initially at their far value The carrying amount of trade recenvables 15 reduced through the use of an
allowance account The group prowdes for bad debts based upon an analysis of those that are past due 1 accordance with local condiions and past default
experence

Service CONCCSSIOn gsseLs

Under the terms of a Private Finance Initiative (PFI) or sirilar project the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset remain fargely with the purchaser of
the assocated services In such cases the group's interest in the asset 1s classified as a financial asset and included at its discounted value within trade and
other recevables to the extent to which the group has an unconditional right to receve cash from the grantor of the concession for the construction of the
asset To the extent that the group has the right to charge for the use of such an asset conditional upon the extent of the use the group recogrises an
irtangible asset

Cunent asset investments
Current asset Investments comprise investments in securities, which are dassified as held-for-trading They are initially recogrused at cost. incduding transaction
costs, and subsequently measured at fair value Gains and losses ansing from changes in fair value are recognised n the iIncome statement

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equwalents comprise cash balances and call depasits Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the groups
cash management are ncluded as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement

Interest-beanng borrowings

Interest-beaning bank overdrafts koans and loan notes are recognised at the value of proceeds 1eceived net of direct 1ssue costs Finance charges
including premiums payable on settlement or redempuion and direct 1ssue costs are recognised in the ncome statement on an accrual basis using
the effective Interest method

Trade payables
Trade payables are not nterest-beanng and are stated wutally at far value

Equity mstruments
Equity instruments issued by the group are recorded at the value of proceeds recenved net of direct issue costs

{h) Inventones

Inventones are valued at the lower of cost and net reaksable value Cost represents expenditure incurred in the ordnary course of business In bringing
wventenes to thewr present condition and location and indudes appropriate overheads Cost 1s calculated using either the weighted average or the first-in-
first-out method Net reaksable value 15 based on estmated seling price less further costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposat Provision
15 made for obsolete, slow-moving or defective riems where appropnate
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

3 Significant accounting policies continued

(1) Impairment

The carrying value of the groups assets with the exception of nventones and deferred tax asseis 1s reviewed on an ongoing basis {or any indication
of impairment and If any such indication exists the assets recoverable amount 15 estimatea An impairment koss 1$ recognised in the income staternent
whenever the carrying value of an asset or fts cash-generating unit exceeds 1ts recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset 1s the greater of its net selling price and its value in use, where value in use 15 assessed as the estimated pre-tax future
cash flows derving from the asset discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate which reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the nsks speafic 1o the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely ndependent cash flows the recoverable amount 1s determined with
respect to the cash-generating unit to which the asset attaches

The recoverable amount of goodwill 1s tested annually through assessing the carrying values of the cash-generating urits to which the goodwill attaches
An imparrment loss recogrised in respect of a cash-generating unit 15 allocated first 5o as o reduce the carryng value of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit, and then 1o reduce the carrying value of the other assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill s not reversed In respect of any other asset, an unpairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine its recoverable amount The amount of the reversal is iimited such that the assets carrying amount does not exceed that which
would have been determined (after depreciation and amortrsation) f no impairment toss had been recognised

()) Repurchase of share capital

When share caprtal recogrised as equity 1s repurchased the amount of the consideration paild nduding directly attributable costs net of any tax effects, s
recogrised as a deduction from equity Where repurchased shares are held by an employee benefit trust they are classified as treasury shares and presented
as a deduction from equity

(k) Employee benefits

Reurement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
dealt with as payments to defined contribution schemes where the groups obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those ansing in a defined
centnbution retirement benefits scheme

For defined benefit schemes the cost of providing benefits is deter mined using the projected unit ¢ edit method, with actuanal valuatuons being carmed

out at each balance sheet date The discount rate used is the yield at the balance sheet date on AA credit rated corporate bonds that have matunity dates
approximating to the terms of the groups obligations The expected finance iIncome on assets and the finance cost on labilities are recognised in the incorme
statement as components of finance income and finance cost respectively Actuanal gans and losses are recognised in fullin the penod in which they occur
and presented outside the micome statement i the conschidated statement of comprehensive income

Past service cost 1s recognised immedaately to the extent that the benefits are already vested Otherwise itis amortised on a straight-line basis over the
average penod until the benefits vest

Changes to the value of accrued benefits arising from government action are accounied for as changes in actuanal assurptions following the guidance issted
by the UK ASB mn UITF 48 Accountng imphcations of the replacement of the Retarl Prices Index with the Consurmer Prices index for Reurement Benefus

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated staternent of financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit obbgation
as adjusted for uni ecogrvsed past service cost, reduced by the fan value of scheme assets Any asset resutting from this calculation 1s kmited to unrecognised
past service cost plus the present value of avalable refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme

Long-term service benefits
The groups net obligation m respect of long-term service benefits other than retirement benefits represents the present value of the future benefit that
employees have eamed at the balance sheet date, less the far value of scheme assets out of which the cbligations are to be settled directly

Shere-based payments

The group 1ssues equity-setiled share-based payments to certan employees The far value of share-based payments 15 deterrmined at the date of grant
and expensed, with a corresponding increase In equity, on a siraight-ine basis over the vesting penod based on the group s estmate of the shares that will
eventually vest. The amount expensed 15 adjusted over the vesting penod for changes in the esumate of the number of shares that will eventually vest, save
for changes resutting from any market-1 elated performance condiions

(1) Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when a present legal or constructive obligation esasts for a future hability in respect of a past event and where the amount of

the obligabion can be estmated reliably ems within provisions include onerous loss-making contracts, external daims against the group s captve nsurance
businesses, costs of meeting lease requiremertis on unoccupied properties costs of replacing assets where there 1s a present contractual obkgation and
restructusng prowisions for the costs of a business reorganisation where the plans are sufficiently detaled and where the appropriate communication to
those affected has been undertaken at the balance sheet date

Where the ume value of meney s matenal provisions are stated at the present value of the expected expenditure using an appropnate discount rate

{m) Revenue recognition

Revenue

Revenue represents amounts recenvable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business and 1s measured at the fair vatue of the
consideration recerved or receivable net of discounts VAT and other sales related taxes Revenue for manned securty and cash sotutions products and for
requrning senvices In secunty sysiems products s recognised to reflect the pernod in which the service 1s prownded Revenue on securtty systems installations
s recogmsed either on completion in respect of product sales o iIn accordance wath the stage of completion method inrespect of construction contracts
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3 Significant accounting policies continued
{m) Revenue recognition continued

Constructron contracts

Where significant, secunty system installations with a contract duration in excess of one month are accounted for as construction contracts Where the
outcome of 4 construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract

actrity at the balance sheet date Thrs 1s normally measured by the propor tion that contract costs incurred for work 1o date bear to the estimated 1otal

contract costs except where this would not be representatve of the stage of completion Varmations n contract work clams and incentive paymenits are
ncluded 1o the extent that # 1s bkely that they will be agreed with the customer

Where the autcome of a construction contract cannot be esimated reliably contract revenue 15 recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that are
deemed likely to be recoverable Contract costs are recognised as expenses as they are incurred Where it 1s probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue the expected loss 1s recognised immediately as an expense

Construction contr acts are recognised on the consolidated statement of finanaizl posiion at cost plus profit recognised to daie less proviston for foreseeable
losses and less progress billings Balances are not offset

Government grants

Govermment grants in respect of items expensed in the income staternent are recogrused as deductions from the associated expenditure Government
grants in respect of property plant and equipment are treated as deferred income and released to the income statement over the lives of the related assets
Interest

Interest income 15 accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal cutstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable This is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected Ife of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount

Diadend income

Dridend income from mvestments 15 recognised when the shareholders' nghts to recerve payment have been established

{n) Borrow:ng costs

Borrow:ing costs that are directly attmbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset Other bon owing costs are recognised as an expense n the INcome statement

{0} Profit from operations

Profit from operations s stated after the share of results of associates but before finance income and finance costs Exceptional tems of particular
sigruficance including restructuring costs, are nduded wathin profit from operations but are disclosed separately

(p) Income taxes

Taxs recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to iters recognised in equity In wich case it 1s recognised in equity The tax
expense repr esents the sum of current tax and deferred tax

Current tax 1s based on taxable profit lor the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as repor ted in the ncome staterment because it excludes tems
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and ft further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The groups liabiity
for current tax 15 calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 15 the tax expected o be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habrities in the consolidated
financial statemenits and the comrespanding tax bases used n the computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet iability method
Deferred tax habiites are generally recognised for zll taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised 10 the extent that ft 15 probable that
taxable profits will be avaitable aganst which deducuble temporary differences can be utitsed Such assets and habiries are not recognised of the temporary
difference anses from the imbial recogrition of goodwill in a business combination or from the intial recogmition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and labiliues i a transaction that affects nerther the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax habilitres are recoprised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures, except where the
group is able to control the reversal of the tempoerary difference and t1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of each deferred tax asset 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced 1o the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficent
taxable profits will be available to allow afl or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax s measured based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting perod

{q) Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantially all of the rsks and rewards of ownership to the lessee All other leases
are classfied as operating leases This classification can be a matter of fine judgemernt.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised at the inception of the lease at their fair value ot iflower at the present value of the minrnum lease payments
The comresponding liabihity to the lessor s ncluded in the consohidated statement of financial posiion as a finance lease obligation Amounts due from lessees
under finance leases are recorded as recervables at the amountt of the groups net nvestment in the leases Lease payments made or receved are apportioned

between finance charges or income and the reduction of the lease habilty or asset 50 as to produce a constant rate of interest on the cutstanding balance of
the liablity or asset.

Rentals payable or recewvable under operating leases are charged or credited to ncome on a straight-ine bawis over the lease term as are incenves 1o enter
Into operating leases.
(r) Operating segments

An operaung segmant 1s a component of the group that engages in business actvities from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses, Inchuding revenues
and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the group's other components. All operaung segments operating results are revewed regularly by the groups
CEO to make decsions 1out resources to be allocated to the segment and assess sts performance and for which discrete financial information 1s available

Financial scatements Governance Busness review Overview

Shareholder information
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Notes to the consohdated finanaal statements continued

3 Significant accounting policies continued

{s) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
Nan-current assets {and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and far value less costs to sell

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if thew carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction 1ather than through
conmunuing use This condrion s regarded as met only when the sale 1s highly probable and the asset (or dsposal group) 5 available for immediate sale in s
present condition The group must be committed to the sale which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification

A disconunued operaton s 3 component of the group s business that represents a separate major lne of business o geographical area of operations or 15
a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale, that has been disposed of has been abandoned or meets the ¢teria to be classified as held for sale

(t) Dividend distribution
Dividends are recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period n which they are paid or approved by the shai eholders in gener 2l meeting

(u) Adoption of new and revised accounting standards and interpretations

Standards and interpretations 1ssued by the IASB are only applicable if endorsed by the EU The following revisions to IFRS will be applicable in future penods
subject 1o endorsement where applicable

-» Revised IAS 24 Related Farty Disclosures 1s appheable for 2011 This standard amends the defintion of related parties and modifies certan disclosures

= Amendments to IFRS 7 Financua! Instruments Drsclosures are apphicable for 2011 The amendments state that qualitative disclosures should be made in the
context of the quantitative disclosures to better enable users 1o evaluate an entity's exposure to nsks ansing from financial instruments

-+ Amendments to IFRIC 14 IAS |19 The Limit on o Defined Benefit Asset, Miumurn Funding Requirements and thewr interaction1s apphcable for 2011 These
amendrments remove consequences ansing from the treatment of prepayments wher e there s a minimum funding requirement.

= Amendments to IAS | Presentution of Finuncial Statements are apphicable for 20! The amendments clanfy that disaggregaton of changes in each
component of equity arsing from transactions recognised m other compr ehensive income also (s required to be presented, but may be presented ether
in the staterment of changes in equity or In the notes

The group does not consider that any other standards, amendments or nterpretatons issued by the JASB, but not yet applicable will have a significant
impact on the finanoal statements

4 Accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformuty with IFRS requires management to make judgements estimates and assumptions that affect the
applcation of the groups accounting policies, which are described in note 3, with respect to the camying amounts of assets and habibties at the date

of the financial statements the disclosure of conuingent assets and habilites at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of ncome
and expenses during the reporting perod These judgements estimates and associated assumptions are based on histoncal experience and varous other
factors that are bebeved to be reasonable under the arcumstances, ncluding eurrent and expected economic conditions and in some cases actuanal
techmques Although these judgements, estmates and associated assumptions are based on management's best knowledge of current events and
crcumstances the actual results may differ

Esumates and undertying assumptions are reviewed on an ongaing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the penad in which the estimate
1s revised and in any future penods affected

The judgements estmates and assumptions which are of most significance to the group are detaled belaw

Valuation of acquired businesses

The wnital accounting for an acquisition involves identifyang and determining the fair values to be assigned to wdentifiable assets habilities and contingent
lizbilires as well as the acquisition cost. In some instances, this imibial accounting can onty be determined provisionally by the end of the penod in which the
acquisition 15 effected because the far values and/or the cost 15 not known wath full certanty In such an event, the initial accounting can be completed using
provisional values with any adjustments to those provisional values bemng compleied within 12 months of the acquisition date Additionally, in determining the
far value of acquistion-related intangible assets in the absence of market prices for similar assets valuation techmiques are apphed These techniques use a
vanety of estmates including projected future results and expected future cash flows discounted using the weighted average cost of capntal relevant to the
acquistion Furthermore management make an assessment of the useful economic Iife of acquired intangible assets upon recognition Full details of the fair
values of assets and habilities of acquired businesses are presented n note 17

Assessment of the recoverable amounts in respect of assets tested for impairment

The group tests tangible and intangible assets including goodwal for impairment on an annual basis or more frequently if there are indications that amounts
may bewmpared The impairment analyss for such assets rs based pnnapally upon discounted estinated future cash flows from the use and eventual disposal
of the assets. Such an analyss ndudes an estmation of the future antiopated results and cash flows annual growth rates and the appropniate discount rates
The full methodology ana results of the group s imparment testing 15 presented n note 19

Valuation of retirement benefit obligations

The vahration of defined retirement benefit schemes is arrived at usng the adwice of quahfied independent actuaries who use the projected unit credht
method for determirsng the groups obhigations. This methodology requires the use of a vanety of assumptions and esumates ncluding the appropnate
discount rate the expected retumn on scheme assets mortality assumptions future service and eamings increases of employees and nflavon Full detads
of the group's retirement benefit obliganons, INcluding an analysis of the sensitvity of the calculations to the key assumptions are presented in note 34
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5 Revenue
An analysis of the groupss revenue 15 as follows
2010 2009
Notes €en £m
Continuing operations b4
Sale of goods 125 158 £
Rendering of services 7,064 6727 &
Revenue from construcuion contracts 208 124
Revenue from continuing operations as presented in the consolidated income statement 6 1,397 7009
Discontinued operations ;’
Sale of goods I - E
Rendering of services 1 34 2
Revenue from construction contracts - 7 é
Revenue from discontinued operations 67 3 4
Other operating Income
Interest income 1l 13 o
Net gan in farr value of loan note dervative financial instruments and hedged items - | E
Expected return on defined ret ement benefit scheme assets 87 68 S
Total other operating income 98 8 &
6 Operating segments £
The group operates in two core product areas secure solutions and cash solutions which represent the group’s reportable segments For each of the £
reportable segments the groups CEO {the chief operating decision maker) reviews intemal management reports on a regulat basis The group oper ates on ‘;:
a wor ldwade basis and denves a substantial proportion of its reveriue PBITA and PBIT from each of the followsng geographical regions Europe (compnsing =
the United Kingdom and Ireland, and Conunental Europe), North America, and New Markets (comprising the Middle East and Gulf States Laun Amenca and §
the Caribbean Afnca, and Asia Pacific) g
Segment nformation 15 presented below *
Revenue by reportable segment g
< g D d Contu:umg Discontrusa g
aperations operations Total OPErauons qperations Tota
2010 2010 2010 2009 2009 Wy E
£m im £m i €m m &
Secure solutions 2
UK and Ireland 1,179 - 1,179 1139 - 39| &
Conunental Europe 1,438 ] 1,439 1498 34 1,532 @
Europe 2,617 | 2,618 2,637 34 2671
North Amenca 1,676 - 1,676 1,495 - 1 495
Middle East and Guif States 465 - 465 425 - 425
Latin Amenca and the Canbbean 354 - 356 283 - 283
Africa 333 - 333 306 - 306
Asia Pacific 400 - 600 522 - 522
New Markets 1,754 - 1,754 1536 - 1536
Total secure solutions 6,047 1 6,048 5,668 34 5702
Cash solutions
Europe 891 - 891 929 - 929
North Amenca 106 - 106 9 - 99
New Markets 353 2 355 313 7 320
Total cash solutions 1,350 2 1,352 1341 7 1,348
Total revenue 1,397 3 7,400 7009 41 7050
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6 Operating segments continued

Revenue by geographical area

Total Tatal

2010 2009

fm £m

UK and Ireland*® 1,657 1,629

Continental Europe 1,852 1971

Europe 3,509 3,600

North Amenca 1,782 1 594

Middle East and Gulf States 521 476

Latin America and the Canbbean 412 327

Africa 458 427

Asia Pacific 718 626

New Markets 2,109 | 856

Total revenue 71,400 7050

* UK and Ireland revenue inchudes €1 548m relaung to the UX (2009 £1 508m)
Revenue from internal and external customers by reportable segment
Total gross Total gross

segment Incer-segment External segme t Inter seg~ent Extermal

revenue revenue revenue revenue revenue eyenue

2010 2010 2010 2009 009 2003

£m im im £m ém m

Secure sofutions 6,055 @ 6,048 STt &) 5702

Cash solutions 1,353 n 1,352 1348 - }348

Total revenue 7,408 (8) 7,400 7059 [§)] 7050

Inter segent sales are charged at prevahng market pnces
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6 Operating segments continued
PBITA by reportable segment
Contimuing Disconanued Conuwmng Drscontirues
operations operations Total APEraLINg operauons Total
1o 2010 2010 2009 2009 009 3
im im im [ im £m E
Secure solutions E
UK and Iretand 103 - 103 97 - 97 ©
Continental Europe 77 (6) 71 80 {2)] 6%
Eurcpe 180 (6) 174 177 {n 166
North America 96 - 96 85 n B4 ]
Middle East and Guilf States 44 - 44 38 - B[ }
Latin America and the Caribbean 26 - 26 18 - 18] g
Alfrica 13 - 33 29 - B| s
Asia Pacific 40 - 40 4 - 41 .
New Markets 143 - 143 126 - 126
Total secure salutions 419 (6) 413 388 {3 376
Cash solutions
Eurcpe 101 - 101 102 - 2 e
North Amenca 4 - 4 4 - 4 é
New Markets 44 3) 41 46 7)) 44 g
Total cash solutions 149 3) 146 152 @ 5o ¢
Total PBITA before head office costs 568 (%) 559 540 (14} 526
Head office costs {41 - (41) (40) - (s0) E
Total PBITA 527 (¢4 518 500 (5] 486 g
PBITA by geographical area T;'
Europe 281 ® 278 279 {n 68 &
North Amernca 100 - 100 89 M gg
New Markets 187 3) 184 172 @ 17
Total PBITA before head office costs 568 ® 559 540 (4 526 é
Head office costs {41 - (41) 40y - 40
Total PBITA 527 [¢)] 518 500 (4) 486 E
p:
Result by reportable segment E
Conunumng Driscostinued Conurung Discontnnuec v
operations operations Tocal operzuons op2rauons Total
2010 2010 2010 009 2009 7009
£m £m im in &m im
Total PBITA 527 (t)] 518 500 (14) 486
Amaortisation of acquisition-related
ntangible assets (88) - (88) (83} - (83)
Acquisibon-related costs {4 - (4 - - -
Total PBIT 435 ()] 426 417 (1) 403
Secure solutions 351 (6) 345 330 (12) 318
Cash solutions 125 3) 122 127 @ 125
Head office costs “n - “n (40} - (40)
Total PBIT 435 (¢)] 426 417 {14) 403

Continu ng PBIT as statec above s equal 1o PRIT as desdosed n the income state-rent. Dscontnued PBIT as stated above s 2nalysed i note 7
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6 Operating segments contnued

Segment assets and habilities
The following information s analysed by reportable segment and by the geographical area in which the assets are located

1010 009

Total assets Lm [£3)]
By reportable segment
Secure solutions 3,428 3,256
Cash solutions 1,181 1140
Head office 207 194
Inter-segment trading balances (133) (98)
Total segment operating assets 4,653 4492
By geographical area

UK and Ireland* 1,516 1555

Continental Europe 887 923
Europe 2,403 2478
North Amenca 1,032 972

Middle East and Guif States 204 168

Latin America and the Canbbean 229 147

Africa o0 276

Asia Pacific 411 355
New Markets L144 946
Head office 207 194
Inter -segment tr ading balances 133) 98)
Total segment operating assets 4,653 4492
Non-operating assets 710 678
Total assets 5,373 5170

2010 2009

Total atilitres Em fm
By reportable segment
Secure solutions (1,140) (1055)
Cash solutions (247) (204)
Head office (26) (57)
Inter-segment trading balances 133 98
Total segment operating habihties (1,280) (1,218)
Non-operating habilities (2,470) (2512
Total labilities (3,750) (3730}

* UK and Ireland operating assets ndude £1418m of assets relatng to the UK (2309~ £] 435m)

Assets and habiities relating to 2009 have been re-analysed between teportable segments and geographical areas to be consistent with the groupings used

for revenue and PBITA

MNon-operatng assets and habibbes compnse financial assets and habilties taxation assets and habiliies and retw ement benefit obiigations.

Included within operating and non-operating assets are £l (2009 £3m) and £mil (2009 £26m) respectively relating to assets classified as held for sale

Included within operating and non-operating habikues are £ril (2009 £1im) and £rd (2009 £20m) respectively relating to kabriues assocrated with assets

classified as held for sale Disposal groups are analysed in note 27
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6 Operating segments continued
Other information
Depreciation Depreciztior
and Capital anc Caputal
amaortisaton additions amoriasaton addions z
2010 010 2009 H
By reportable segment £m £m £m im &
Secure solutions 148 202 165 250 &
Cash sclutions 86 63 53 86
Head office 2 4 | 16
TJotal 236 269 219 53
i
>
Caputal Capital g
additions additions H
2010 009 €
By geographical area &m m a2
a
UK and Ireland 50 &3
Continental Europe 62 66
Europe 112 132
North America 48 "3
Middle East and Gulf States [ 8 §
Latin Amernica and the Canbbean 66 [ g
Africa I 43 §
Asia Paaific 12 43 ©
New Markets 105 105
-~ Head office 4 3 &
[
Total 269 353 E
8
7 Discontinued operations g
[x ]
Oper ations qualfying as discontinued m 2009 compnsed the security services business in France which principally comprised Group 4 Securicor SAS =
the systems installation business n Siovakia the secur ity services business in Germany which prinaipally compnised G4S Sicherhertsdienste GmbH and G435
Sicherhertssysteme GmbH, and the cash solutions business i Taiwan, which was disposed of on 15 july 2010 No further businesses qualfied as discontinued c
during 2010 g
The results of the discontinued operations which have been included in the consolidated income statement are presented below E
2010 002 E
£m fm .g
Revenue 3 4 2
Expenses (12} (35) é
Operatng loss befcre merest and 1axation (PBIT) 0] (14
Attributable tax credit - 20
Total operating {loss)/profit for the year " 6
Loss on disposal of discontinued oper ations - (13)
Net lass attrioutable 1o discontinued operauons (9) ]

The attributable tax credit n 2009 relates to the recognetton of previously unrecognised tax attrbutes in G4S Government Services Inc a US group company

The effect of discontinued operitions on segment results 15 disclosed n note 6

Cash flows from discontinued cperations included in the consolidated cash flow statement are as follows.

010 005

£m £m
Net cash flows from operating actvities (5 {14}
Net cash flows from investing activiies ) )

Net cash flows from finanang actvities (25) *
[£1)] {22)
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Notes to the consohdated financral statements continued

8 Profit from operations before interest and taxation (PBIT)

The income statement can be analysed as follows.

2010 009
Continuing operations tn £m
Revenue 7,397 7009
Cost of sales (5.81F) {5473)
Gross profit 1,586 1,536
Administration expenses i (1,156) (t120)
Share of profit from associates i 5 }
PBIT 435 417
Included within administration expenses 1s £88m (2009 £83m) of amortisation of acquisition-related intangible assets and £4m (2009 £nil) of
acquistion-related expenses
Revenue and expenses relaung to discontinued operations are disclosed in note 7
9 Profit from operations
Profit ft om continuing and discontinued operations has been arrved at after chargingf{crediing)
1010 2009
£m £m
Cost of sales
Cost of nventores recognised as an expense 102 92
Write-down of nventories to net realisable value 1 -
Administration expenses
Amortisation of acquisition-related intangible assets a8 83
Amortisation of other ntangible assets 17 15
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 131 121
Profit on disposal of property plant and equipment and intangible assets other than acquistion-related {16} -
Profit on disposal of subsidianes (8) -
Impairment of trade recevables 5 a
Lingation settlements 1 I
Research and developrment expendrture 5 6
Operating lease rentals payable 142 131
Operating sub-lease rentals recevable {13) (10)
Cost of equaty-settled transactions 7 7
Government grants recenved as a contnbution towards wage costs m ()]
Net foreign translaton adjustments - 2
10 Auditor's remuneration
2010 2009
im im
Fees payable to the company's audrtor for the audit of the company's annual report and accounts | |
Fees payable to the company s auditor and its associates for other services.
The audit of the company's subsidianes pursuant to legislaton 5 4

Corporate finance services
Fees payable to other audiiors for the audit of the company s subsidiznies pursuant Lo legislaton

In additson, the group paid £04m (2009 £04m) for wwation services.

The Corperate governance staiement on pages 59 1o 6l outhines the company s establshed policy for ensunng that audit ndependence 1 not compromised

through the provision by the company's audtor of other services.
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11 Staff costs and employees
The average monthly number of employees, in conunuing and discontinued operaitons, including executive directors was.
20t0 2009
Number Number
By reportable segment 3
Secure slutions B ’ 563,519 542044 ;
Cash selutions 52,678 50804 ©
Not allocated ncluding shared administration and head office 129 116
Total average number of employess 616,326 591964
3
By geographical area g
Europe 124,580 129479 &
North Amenca 54,599 sur7 g
New Markets 437,018 402192 a
Nat allocated including shared administration and head office 129 116
Total average number of employees 616,326 592964
Ther aggregate remuneration n continuing and discontinued operauons comprised v
2010 2009 g
im £m E
Wages and salanes 4,240 4060 f.;"
Socil securtty costs 510 505
Employee benefits 152 £58
Total staff costs 4,902 473§
£
Information on directors remuneration, share aptions, long-tersn ncentive plans and penston contributions and entitlernents 1s set out in the _§
Directors’ remuneration report on pages 62 10 66 §
2
12 Finance income =
2010 2009
im im
Interest mcomie on cash cash equivalents and nvestments 8 12 é
Other interest ncome 3 | -E
Expected return on defined retrement berefit scheme assets 87 68 3
Loss arsing from change i fair value of derwative finanoal instruments hedging loan notes {16) {53) 2
Gan ansing from far value adjustment to the hedged loan note items 16 54 é
Towdl finance mcome 98 82
13 Finance costs
2010 2009
im Im
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 23 28
Interest on loan notes ’ i 75 66
Interest on obligabions under finance feases é 7
Other interest charges [ 8
Total group borrowing costs 1o 109
Finance costs on defined retrement benefit obligations 93 87
Total finance costs 203 96

Included wathin nterest on bank overdrafts and loans 1s a charge of £14m 2009 £12m) relating to cash flow hedges that were transferred from equity

during the year
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14 Taxation

Continuing Discontinued Contnung Discontirued
operatons operzuons Toral OpErATONS operatons Total
2010 2010 2010 2009 2009 2009
£m Im £m [ £m fm
Current taxation expense/{credit)
UK corporation tax 1S - 15 19 - 19
Overseas tax 79 - 79 73 {1} 72
Adustments in respect of prior years
UK corporation tax - - - (3) - (3)
Qverseas tax (8) - (8) g - 9
Total current taxation expense/(credit) Bé - 86 98 ()] 97
Deferred taxation (credit)/expense
{see note 38)
Current year ({)) - {n {14} (19) 33
Adustments in respect of prior years I - I N - (€3]
Total deferred taxation credit (10) - {10) (21 (19 (40)
Total Income tax expense/{credit) for the year 76 - 76 77 (20) 57

UK corporation tax s calculated at 28% (2009 28%) of the estimated assessable profits for the period Overseas tax s calculated at the corpor ation tax rates

prevalling in the relevant junsdictions.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled 1o the profit per the income statement as follows.

010 2009
€m m
Profit before taxation
Continuing oper ations 330 303
Discontinugd operations (9) {6)
Total profit before taxation 321 277
Tax at UK corporation tax rate of 28% (2009 28%) 90 77
Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit ] 10
Tax losses not recognised in the current year - (1%)
Different tax rates of subsidiznes operaung n non-UK jursdictions (1 %
Movement in deferred tax balance due to reduction in UK rate to 27% from | Apnl 201 (2 -
Adjustments for previous years ) @
Total income tax charge 716 57
Effective tax rate 24% 21%
The following taxation charge/(credit) has been recognised directly in equity within the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
2010 7009
im m
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive Income
Net investment hedges - 2
Cash flow hedges 4 U]
Defined retrement benefit schemes 7 {17}
Total tax debited/(credited) to other comprehensive income l 22)
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I5 Dividends
Pence OKK 010 009
per share per share &m im
Amounts recogmsed as distributions to equity holders of the parent
in the year
Final dvdend for the year ended 31 December 2008 368 03052 - 52 %
Intenim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2009 Evd 02599 - 42 g
Final dvdend for the year ended 31 December 2009 416 03408 58 -
Intenm dvdend for the six months ended 30 june 20H0 317 02877 45 -
103 94
H
Proposed final dwvidend for the year ended 31 December 2010 473 04082 [.1] E
The proposed final dvdend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual Gener al Meeting If so approved, it will be pad on 3 June 2011* to shareholders §
who are on tne UK register on 6 May 2011 The exchange rate used to translate it nto Danish krone 1s that at 14 March 201
* Sharehoklers an the VP Sarvces register will be pad on 6 June as 3 jure 5 a pusi ¢ bolday n Cenmark.
16 Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to equity shareholder of the parent
010 2009 g
£m im =1
From cenunuing and discontinued operations E
Earnings é
Profit for the yaar attributable to equity holders of the parent 23 202
Number of shares (m) E
Woeighted average number of ordinary shares 1,406 1404 E
Earmings per share from continuing and discontinued operations (pence) §
Basic and diuted 15.9p l4ap &
From continuing operations 5
Earmings E
Profit for the year attrnibutable 1o equity holders of the parent 113 202 '_CE_'
Adjustment to exclude loss for the year from discontinued operauons (net of tax) (note 7) 9 7 g
Profit from continuing oper ations 132 w2
:
Earmings per share from contmmuing operations {pence)
Basic and diluted 16.5p 149p
From discontinued operations
Loss per share from discontinued operations {pence)
Basic and diluted (0.6)p 0 5)p
From adjusted earmings
Earmings
Profit from continuing operations 232 205
Adustment to exdude net reurement benefit finance cost (net of tax) 4 14
Adustment to exclude amortsation of acquisiion-related intangible assets (net of tax) 64 60
Adustment to exchude acquistuon-related expenses (net of tax) 3 -
Adjusted profit for the year attnbutable to equity holders of the parem 303 283
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (m) 1,406 1,404
Adusted earnings per share (pence) 21.6p 02p

In the opinion of the directors, the earmings per share figure of most use to shareholders is that which is adjusted Tivs figure better allows the assessment
of operational performance, the analysss of trends over tme the companson of different businesses and the projecton of future earrungs.

The denominators used in 2l earmings/({loss) per share calculauors are those disclosed n respect of conunwing and dscontnued operations
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17 Acquisitions

Current year acquisitions

The group undertook a number of zcquisitions in the current penod Principal acquistions in subsidiary undertakings include the purchase of the entire share
capital of $SE Do Brast Lida the parent company of Instalarme Solugdes Eletronica Ltda ( Instalarme’ ), an efectronic software and hardware integration
company in Brazi, a controling interest in Plantech Engenhana e Sistemas Ltda { Plantech } a leading integrator in the Braziban secunty systems market,

and the entire share capital of Skycom (Pty) Ltd (¢ Skycom ), a market leader in the South African security systerms market

The group also increased its holding in an Argentinian business dunng the year which has been accounted for in equrty

A summary of the provisional fair value of net assets acqured by geographical location 1s presented below

New Total

Ewrope Markeats group

m &m im

Prowisional fair value of net asseis acquired of subsidiary underizkings 3 14 19
Goodwill 2 44 46
7 58 65

Total purchase consideration

The following table sets out the book values of the dentifiable assets and labiliues acqured and their provisional fair value to the group in respect of alt
acqguisitions made in the year

Fan value
Bock value adustmants Fair value
£m m im
Intangible assets | 13 14
Property, plant and equipment 7 (2) 5
Inventories 3 -
Trade and other recewvables 12 - 12
Cash and cash eguwvalents 6 - 6
Trage and other payables (6 €) (8)
Currert tax abilives m - ()
Provisions - (5 (5)
Borrowings 4 - (1)
Defarred tax labilities - (3 3)
Net assets acquired of subsidiary undertakings 18 | 19
Goodwill 46
Total purchase consideration 65
Satisfied by
Cash 42
Deferred consideration 2}
Total purchase consideration 65
Summary of current year acquisition activities
Total purchase consideration relating to current year acquisitions 65
Addinonal consideration recogrised in the current year relating to acquisiions completed in prior years 12
Total considerauon recognised in the cyrrent year 77
Goodwill recognised on current year acquisitions 46
Goodwill recogmised in the current year relating to acquisitons completed in prior years 2
Total goodwill recognised in the current year 58

Deferred consideration n respect of acquisitions made in 2010 has been recogrsed at the amount which is expected to be paid in the future, being £27m
drscounted to s present value of £23m The amount of deferred consideration which will be paid 15 i part dependent upon the future performance of the
acquired businesses The maximum undiscounted amount of deferred consideration which could be payable 1s £32m

Adjustments made to identifiable assets and habilities on acquisttion are to reflect therr fair value These incude the recogniion of customer-related
iangiole assets amounung to £13m The far values of net assets acquired are provisional and represent estimates following a preliminary valuation exercise
These esumates may be adjusted to reflect any development in the ssues to which they relate

The goodwill ansing on acquisiions can be ascrbed to the exastence of a skilled, actve workforce developed expertse and processes and the opportuniies
1o obtain new contracts and develop the business Nerther of these meet the critena for recognmion as intangible assets separable from goodwill
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{7 Acquisitions continued

From their respectve dates of acquisiion the acquired businesses’ contribution to the results of the group for the period was as follows

Revenue PRITA Profit
Contribution from acquired businesses £m m {m
Instalarme 12 | |
Plantech 6 [ -
Western lnvestigations 1 - -
Skycom (Pry) Ltd | - -
Others 3 - -
Total contrbution from acquired businesses 23 2 |
If all the acquisitions had occurred on | January 2010 the resutts of the group for the period would have been as follows
Revenue PBITA Profit
Group’s results if all acquisitions had occurred on | January 2010 im im im
Group resutts for the penod 7397 527 245
Impact of backdating acquisittons o | January 2010
Instalarme 8 | !
Plantech 13 2 |
Western Investigations : - —
Skycom (Pty) Ltd 5 | |
Others 8 | |
Group result for the penod i all acquisitions had occurred on | january 2010 7432 532 249

Prior year acquisitions

Principal acquisitsons n subsidiary undertakings in the prior year ncluded the purchase of the entire share caprtal of SecPoint Secunty Limited, a securtty
solutions business in Ghana Sunshine Youth Services a juvenile justice business in the US Ct. Systems Limited, a cash solutions business n Greater China,

SecuraMonde a cash solutions business in the UK, Adesta LLC, a leading US systems imegrator in the design and operation of secunty systems and

command and controt centres for Government and Regulated services All Star International, one of the premier faciities management and base operations
support companies providing services to the US Government, NSSC, a US risk consulting business in the nuclear power industry and the public sector, and

Hill & Asscciates, Asia's leading provider of specialist nsk mitigation consutting services
In addition the group completed the buy-outs of the non-controlling nterests in certain businesses in New Markets

At 31 December 2009, the farr value adjustments made aganst net assets acquired were provisional The initial accounting in respect of acquisiions made

dunng 2009 has since been finalised The net assets acquired and goodwall 2rsing in respect of all acguisstions made in the year are as follows

Fair vatue
Book value adjustrnents Far value
fm m im
Intangible assets ! 48 49
Property plant and equipment 3 - k)
lnventones 4 - 4
Trade and other recervables 51 2 53
Deferred tax assets | - |
Cash and cash equwalents 5 | 6
Trade and other payables (34 - (34)
Provisions {1 (5 (6)
Berrowings ) - m
Deferred tax kabilities - (17) o
Net assets acquired of subsidiary undertakings 29 29 58
Acquisttion of non-controling mterests 7 - 7
Goodwill 88
Total purchase consideration 153
Sausfied by
Cash 159
Transaction costs' {7)
Contingent consideration 1
Total purchase consideration 153

1 Trarsaction costs are net of an £11m refund of tax expenses incurreg when G45 ple acquired Secunicor ple i 2004

Overview

Business review

Governance

Sharehoider informatyon Financial statements
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17 Acquisitions continued

Adjustments made to «dentifiable assets and liabilkties on acquision are to reflect therr far value. These include the recognition of customer-related intangible
assets amounting 10 £28m

On completon of the far value exerase dunng 2010, adustments made to the provisional calculation amounted to £5m with an equivalent increase in the
reported value of goodwill The comparatve consoldated statement of financial positon at 31 December 2009 has been restated accordingly

The goodwill ansing on acqursitions can be ascribed to the existence of a skilled active workforce and the apporturities to obtain new contracts and develop
the business Neither of these meet the critena for recognition as intangble assets separable from goodwill Goodwill ansing on acquisiion includes £22m
ansing on the acquisition of non-controling interests.

In the year of acquisiion in aggregate the acquired businesses contributed £35m to revenues £5m to PBITA and £3m to profit for the part year they were
under the group’s ownership I all acquistions had occurred on | January 2009 group revenue would have been £7 2bn PBITA would have been £516m and
profit for the year would have been £227m

Post balance sheet acquisitions

No significant acquisitions have been effected between the balance sheet date and the date that the financial statements wer e authorsed for issue

18 Disposal of subsidiaries

Cn 15 July 2010 the group disposed of the cash solutions business in Tarwan

©On 24 September 2010 the group disposed of Travel Logistics Livited a UK-based expeditor of travel documents

On 28 February 2009 the group disposed of the minned secunity business in France which includes pringipally Group 4 Securicor SAS
On 23 December 2009 the group disposed of Group 4 Falck Rensurance S A the captive insurance business in Luxembourg

The net assets and profit/(loss) on disposal of operavons disposed of were as follows

2910 2009
£m m
Goodwill 3 13
Acquisston-related smtangible assets 3 -
Property plant and equipment and ntangble assets other than acquistion-related - 3
Current assets I B4
Lrabilties (2) (€)]
MNet assets of operations disposed 5 2
Profit/(loss) on disposal 8 (13}
Total consideration 13 8
Satisfied by
Cash receved 9 4
Deferred receipts 4 -
Disposal costs - (6)

Total consideration 13 8
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19 Intangible assets
Goodwll Acq -related gible assers Other intangible assets Total
Customer Development
Trademarks relaved Technology expendture Software
im im tm im &m im im
2010 §
Cost ","
At | January 2010 2,120 34 601 17 16 is 2,906 | °
Acquisition of businesses 58 - 14 - - - 72
Addrucns - - - - [ 15 21
Disposals {3) - (13) - - | (15) 3
Translaton adjustments 45 - 7 1 - (2) sl
At 31 December 2010 2,220 34 4609 18 22 132 3,035 8
Amortisation and accumulated é
impairment losses o
At | |anuary 2010 (1) (12) (257 (14 {5) (60) (429)
Amortisation charge - 3 (84) ()] ) (13) {105)
[Dsposals - - 10 - - (n 9
Transfation adjustments 2) - @ - - - 6) .
At 31 Decemnber 2010 {73) (25) (335) {15) 9 (74) (53N E
Carrying amount g
At | January 2010 1,049 12 344 3 1" 58 24717 ©
At 31 December 2010 2,147 9 14 3 13 58 2,504
2009 2
[
Cost :
ALT January 2009 2113 34 546 19 12 104 2848 §
Acquisition of businesses S0 - 49 - - - 139 .-;
Addrtions - - - — 5 2 -
Disposals 22 - - - - 8) (30) «
Translation adustments (3] - (14) @ { @ =) .
At 3} Becember 2009 2,120 34 601 7 16 na 2906 g
Amortisation and aceumulated E
impairment losses E
At | January 2009 (34 (17} (187} (13} @ (52 (305) 3
Amortisation charge Z B 75) 3) 3 (12) ©9) —E
Disposals 9 - - - - 7 16 &
Translation adjustments (46) - 5 2 - 3 42)
At 3l December 2009 (7n (22) (257) 4 &) 0} {429}
Carrying amount
At | |anuary 2009 2079 17 379 6 10 52 2543
At 3 December 2009 2049 12 344 3 1 58 2477

Included within software 15 nternally generated software with a gross carrying value of £12m (2009 £9m), and accumutated amortisation of £1m

(2009 £im), gving a net book value of £Him (2009 £8m) Duning the year addions amounted to £3m (2009 £4m) and the amortsaton charge associated

to these assets was £nil (2009 £Im)

Customer-related intangibles compnise the contractual and other relationships with customer's which meet the critena for identffication as intangible assets m
accondance with IFRS Customer contracts and relationships recognised upen the acquisiion of Secunicor pic on 19 July 2004 are considered significant 10 the
group The carrying amount at 31 December 2010 was £72m (2009 £96m), and the amortsation penod remain ng in respect of these assets s three and a

half years

Goodwill acquired in a business combination s allocated 10 the cash-generating unts ({CGUS) which are expected to benefit from that business combinabon
The majonty of goodwill was generated by the merger of the security services businesses of Group 4 Fafck and Securicor in 2004 which was accounted for as

an acquisibon of Securicor by Group 4 Falck.

The group tests tangible and intangible assets including goodwilt for smparment on an annual basis o more frequently if there are indications that amounts

may be imparred The annual imparment test 15 performed prior to the y2ar end when the budgeting process 15 finalised and reviewed post.year end

The group's imparment test compares the carrying value of each CGU to its recoverable amount, CGUs are identfied on a country level basis including
significani business units as per the g oup s detaled management accounts. Under IAS 36 Impairment of Assets an mpairment s deemed to have occurred
where the recoverable amount of a CGU isdess than its carmying value
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19 Intangible assets continued

The recoverable amount of a CGU 1s determined by its value i use which 1s denved from discounted cash flow calcutatons These calculations include
forecast pre-tax cash flows for a penod of five years The five year cash flow forecasts are based on the budget for the followang year (year one) and the
business plans for years two and three, the results of which are revewed by the board, and projections for years four and five all of which reflect past
expenence as well as future expectad market trends Budgeted and forecast cash flows are based on management s assessment of current contract
portfolio, contract wins contract retention and price ncreases Cash flows beyond the five year forecast penod are projected into perpeturty at the lower
of the planned growth rate in year three and the for ecast undertyng economic growth rate for the economies i which the CGU operates

Where the planned growth rate in yea: three exceeds the forecast underlying economic growth rate, the excess rs reduced progressively in the projections
for years four and five Growth rates across the groups CGUs range from 0% to 20% and the mnto-perpetuity growth rates for the significant CGUs are
disclosed in the table below Future cash fiows are discounted at a pre-tax weighted average cost of caprtal which for the group is 6 5% (2009 84%) and
the discourtt rates for the significant CGUs are disclosed in the table helow Pre-tax cash flows are discounted using pre-tax discount rates derived from
calkculating the net present value of the post-tax cash flows discounted at post-tax rates The group rate 15 adjusied where appropriate to reflect the different

financial nsks in each country in which the CGUs operate Risk-adjusted discount rates applicable to group entities range fiom 4 7% in Singapore to 38 4%
In Zambiz

In apphying the group’s model no mpan ment has been identified and recognised in any of the group's CGUs for the year ended 31 December 2010 or
for the year ended 31 December 2009 Management believe that there 1s currently no reasonably passible change in the underying factors used in the
impairment moded which would lead to a matenal imparrment of goodwill

The following CGUs have significant carrying amounts of goodwill

Goodwill Goocwil

Discount rate Discou vt sate Growth rate* Growth rate* 2010 2009

2010 2009 2010 2009 tm £m

US secure solutions (manned security) 64% 72% 25% 25% in 359
Former GSL. business acquired in 2008 8 5% 84% 2.5% 25% 258 258
UK cash solutions 6 5% 84% 158% 25% 2319 241
Netherlands secunty solutions 6 0% 73% 3.3% 35% 121 126
UK secure solutions (manned security) 65% 84% 2.5% 25% nz "7
UK secure solutions (justice services) 6 5% 84% 2.5% 25% 95 95
Estonia secure solutions and cash solutions T0% 1313 4 0% 40% 65 67
Orther (all allocated) 880 786
Total goodwil 2,147 2049

* Growth rate 15 tre long “erm Into-perpetu ty g swih rate,

The key assumptions used in the discounted cash flow calculations relate to the discount rates and undertymg econormic growth rates for each CGU With all
other variables being equal a 1% nciease 10 the group discount rate from 6 5% to 7 5% with equivalent increases to the discount rates in all countries would
result in a goodwill imparment 1o the group of £5m A significant ncrease of 3% in the group discount rate from 6 5% to 9 5% and an equivalent increase in
all countries would result in a group impairment of £18m

A decrease in the undertying growth rate in all countries of 1% would resutt in a group impairment of £3m A decrease of 3% in growth rate would result in
a group impairment of £12m These approximations indicate the sensitivity of the impairment test to changes i the underlying assumptions However, it1s
highly unlikely that any varations in the assumptions woukd ipact on all CGUs at the same time

20 Property, plant and equipment

Land and Equipment
butdings and vetucles Toeal
£ i Em
2010
Cost
At | January 2010 1 903 1,130
Acquisition of businesses - 5 5
Addmions 19 152 171
Disposats () {62) {84)
Translation adjustments () 3t 30
At 3l December 2010 213 1,029 1,252
Depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses

At | Jarwary 2010 {58) (526) (584)
Depreciation charge {15) (116) (k1)
Disposals 10 50 60
Translabon adjustments 2 ()] an
At 31 December 2010 (1)) (611) (672)
Carrying amount
At | January 2010 169 377 546

At 3] December 2010 182 418 580
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20 Property, plant and equipment continued
Land and Equipment
buitdengs and vehicles Total
km im im
2009
Coast ;'
At | fanuary 2009 230 86! 091§
Acquisition of businesses - 3 3 ¢
Additions 23 159 182
Disposals (16) {79 95
Translation adjustments {10} (41} {51} z
At 31 December 2009 227 903 1,130 ]
Depreciation and accumulated g
impairment losses s
At 1 January 2009 9 (503) 62 B
Depreciaticn charge (13) (108) (120
Disposals 0 56 76
Translation adjustments 4 19 23
At 3| December 2009 (58) (526) {584) g
Carrying amount E
At} January 2009 171 358 529 g
At 31 December 2009 169 377 546 O
During the year management have reassessed the useful economic Ife of assets within the equipment and vehicles category resulting in the ife of certain g
items being revised g
The carrying amount of equipment and vehicles includes the following in respect of assets held under finance leases. g
2010 0009 o
im £m E
Net book value 61 73 2
Accumulated depreciatron 102 87 *
Deprevation charge for the year 19 1% £
:
The nghts over leased assets are effectively security for lease abiliies These rights revert to the lessor in the event of default 'fe__’
The carrying amount of equipment and vehicles includes the followng In respect of assets leased by the group to third parties under aperating leases g
2010 009 £
tm &
Net book value 33 34 @
Accumulated deprecration 77 73
Depreciauon charge for the year 10 14}
The net book value of land and buddings comprises.
2010 2009
£m £ony
Freeholds &6 66
Long leaseholds {50 years and over) 20 2t
Short leaseholds (under 50 years) 76 82

At 3] December 2010 the group had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisiuon of property, plant and equiprnent amounting
to £2m (2009 £2m)
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2] Investment in joint ventures

At the year end the group owned 59% of the equity of Bndgend Custodial Services Ltd and 50% of the equity in STC {Milton Keynes) Ltd In both cases the
group jontly shares operational and financial control over the operations and 1s therefore entitled to a proporuonate share of the results of each which are
consolidated on the basis of the equity shares held The groups correctional fachties in South Afinca are under a smilar arrangement other than that the
groups holding 15 209%

The results of each of the jontly controlled operations are prepared in accordance with group accounting policies Amounts proportionately consolidated
into the groups financial statements are as follows

2010 2009
Results £m fm
Income 55 46
Expenses (52) 42
Profit after tax k} 4
2010 2009
Balance sheet £m fim
Assets
Non-current assets 38 43
Current assets 8 9
46 52
Liabilities
Current habilties (10 )]
Non-current labilities (32) 37
“42) 48)
Net assets 4 4
22 Investment in associates
2010 2009
£m fm
Total assets 19 13 '
Total habihies (9 &)
Net investment in associates 10 7
Revenue 79 34
Profit for the year 5 |

The net Investment and results presented above largely relate to Space Gateway Support LLC and MW-AIl Star, both n the LISA in which the group holds
mvestrments of 46% and 49% respectvely The results of both associates are reported in the North Amer ica security segment,

23 Inventories

- 7010 2005

£m £m

Raw matenals 1) 16
Work in progress 13 10
Finshed goods induding consumables 55 52
Total nventones 84 78

24 Investments

Investments compnise primartly listed securtties of £43m (2009 £59m) held by the group s wholly-owned capuve insurance subsidiares stated at their far
values based on quoted market prices Use of these investments 1s restncted to the settlement of daims against the group’s captive nsurance subsidiares
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25 Trade and other receivables
2010 2009
. im &m
Within current assets

Trade debtors 1,231 1178 x
Allowance for doubtful debts {73) 66) E
Amounts owed by associated undertakings 2 . o

Other debtors (including tax recenvable) 158 5

Prepayments and accrued income 105 94

Amounts due from construction contract customers {see note 26) 32 7
Denvatrve finanaal instruments at fair vakue (see note 32) I 2 é
Total trade and other recevables included wathin current assets 1,463 1 351 £
Within non-current assets é

Dervative finanoal nstruments at far value (see note 32) 85 58

Other debtors 7 13

Amounts receivable under serace concession arrangements 36 40

Total tr ade and other recevables included within non-cur rent assets 138 It
E
Credit nisk on trade recevables g
]

There 15 lmited concentration of credit nsk with respect to trade recenvables as the groups customers are both farge in number and dispersed geographically

in over 120 countries Group companies are required to follow the Group Finance Manual guidelines with respect to assessing the credit worthiness of
potential customers Thease guidelings include processes such as obtaning approval for credrt irits over a set amount performing credit checks and

assessments and cbtaining addiional secunty where requr ed

Credit terms vary acr0ss the group and can range from O to 90 days to reflect the different risks within each country in which the group operates There is

no group-wide rate of provision and provis:on 1s made for debts that are past due according to locat conditions and past default expenence
The movement in the allowance for deubtful debts is as follows

2010 2009
m om
At | January (66) {(59)
Amounts wntten off during the year - 5 8
Increase in allowance (12) (15)
At 31 December (73) (66)

Included within trade recewvables are trade debtors with a carmying amount of £393m (2009 £368m) which are past due at the reporting date for which

no provision has been made as there has not been a signuficant change in credit quality and the group believes that the amounts are still recoverable

The group does not hold any collateral oves these balances The proportion of trade debtors at 31 December 2010 that were overdue for payment was

37% (2009 36%) The group-wide average age of all irade debtors at year end was 57 days (2009 56 days)

The monthly management accounts use the last three months sales of the year to calculate management trade debtor days Using this calculauon the

group-wide average age of trade debtors 1s 49 days (2005 48 days at constant exchange rates)

The directors beleve the far value of trade and other recernvables, being the present value of future cash flows approximates to their book value

Amounts receivable under service concession arrangements

Amounts recenvable under service concession arrangements compnse the group's proportion of amounts recenvable in respect of the Private Finance
Inrtiative (PFI) projects undertaken by the group s joint ventures, The groups interests under PFi contracts pnmanly consist of the design construcuon

financing and management of FHM Prison and Young Offenders Instisution Parc in Bndgend South Wales for the Home Office the Oakbull Secure Traning
Centre for young people In Milton Keynes for the Youth Justices Board and Bloemfonten Correctional Conttracts {Pty) for the Government of South Afnca
The Bridgend contract commenced m January 1996 and expires in December 2022 The Milton Keynes contract commenced in June 2003 and expires in
June 2028 The Bloemfontem contract commenced in July 2001 and ends in June 2026 Al contracts can be termunated by the customer either in the event of
a severe falure to comply with the contract or voluntarily with six moniths notice (rinety days for the Bloemifonten contract) and the payment of appropnate
compensation The speafied assets reman the property of the customers. The groups jont ventures have the nght to recerve payment for the mfrastructure
and to prowide services using the specriied assets dunng the kfe of the contracts There is currently no obligation 10 acquire o burld further assets and any

such obfigation would be agreed with the customers as vanations to the contracts. The priang basis 1s inflabon-indexed
Amounts recewable under service concession arangements are pladged as secunity aganst borrowings of the group

Financial statements

Shareholder information
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26 Construction contracts
Contracis in place at the balance sheet date are as follows

2010 2009

m m

Ampounts due from contract customers included in trade and other recewvables (see note 25} 32 17

Amounts due o contract customers included in trade and ather payables (see note 31) ) T 2
Net balances relating to construction contracts 15 15
Contract costs incurred plus recrggmsed pmf‘rts-less recogrused losses to date i 212 181

Less Progiess bilings (187) (166)
Net balances refatng to construction contracts 25 15

At 31 December 2010 advances recewved from customers for contract work amounted to £9m (2009 £6m} Ther e were no retentions held by customers
for contract work at erther batance sheet date All trade and other recenvables ansing from construction contracts are due for settlement within one year

The directors believe the farr value of amounts due from and to contract customers being the present value of future cash flows, approximates to ther
book value

27 Disposal groups classified as held for sale

As at 31 December 2010 there were no disposal groups dassified as held for sale Disposal groups classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2009
compnsed primarily the assets and labilties assocated with the cash solutions business in Tawan sold on 15 july 2010

The major classes of assets and liabities comprising the operations dassified as held for sale are as follows

010 2009
im m
ASSETS
Property, plant and equpment and intangble assets other than acquision-related - 2
Trade and other recevables - |
Cash and cash equwalents - 26
Total assets classified as held for sale - 29
LIABILITIES
Bank overdrafts - (6)
Bank loans - (13
Trade and other payables - (n
Retirement benefit obligations - O
Total habilities associated with assets classified as held for sale - @an
Net liabilities of disposal group - (%

28 Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts

A reconcbiauon of cash and cash equivatents reported within the consolidated cash flow statement to amounts reporied within the consohdated statement
of financial posttion 1s presented below

1010 2009
Lm £m
Cash and cash equivalerts 351 309
Bank overdrafts {45) (38)
Cash cash equrvalents and bank overdrafts included wathin disposal groups classified as held for sale - 20
Total cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 306 291

Cash and cash equvatents comprse prinapally short-term money market deposns current account balances and group-owned cash held in ATM machines
and at 31 December 2010 bore nterest at a weighted average rate of 09% (2009 11%) The credit nsk on cash and cash equivalents 1s kmited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit raungs assgned by intemational credit-rating agencies

The group operates a mutticurn ency notional pooling cash management, system which included over 130 g oup companies at 31 December 2010 Itis
antirpated that the number of particpants in the group will continue to grow The group met the condibions of LAS 32 Financal Instruments. Presentation
allowing balances within this cash pool to be offset for reporting purposes. At 31 December 2010 £230m (2009 £147m) of the cash balances and the
equivalent amount of the overdraft balances were offset.

Cash and cash equnalents of £26m (2009 £20m) are held by the group s wholly-owned captve msurance subsidianes Their use 1s restricted to the
settlement of clams aganst the groups captive Insurance subsidianes
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2% Bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes
1010 2009
im £m
Bank overdrafts 45 38
Bank loans 687 662 :
Loan notes* 1,153 17 &
Total bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes 1,885 1817 g
The borrowings are repayable as follows
On demand or within one yea 158 184
In the second year 551 15
In the third to fifth years inclusive 122 604 §
After five years 954 o014
Total bank overdrafis bank loans and Joan notes 1,885 187 €
Less Amount due for settlement within 12 months (shown under cumrent habilies) ;?.‘
— Bank overdrafts (45) (38)
— Bank loans (113) {146)
(158) (184
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 1,727 1633 o
g
*Loan notes naudes £803m of private loan notes anc £350m of publc loan noes. E
Analysis of bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes by curvency: é
Sterling Eurcs US Dollars Others Total
£m fm fm im im
Bank overdrafts 15 1 - 29 45 s
Bank loans 158 156 147 26 687 E
Loan notes 419 - 734 - ,Is3 &
At 3| December 2010 692 257 a8l 5s 1,885 :-“;
Bank overdiafts 16 10 - 12 38 g
Bank loans 5T 74 324 43 662 &
Loan notes 419 - 698 - LNz
At 31 Decermber 2009 556 184 1022 55 1817 E
o
Of the borrowings in currencies other than stering £951m (2009 £1 010m) 15 designated as net investment hedging nstruments E
The weighted aver age nterest rates on bank overdrafts bank foans and loan notes at 3! December 2010 adjusted for hedging were as follows. 3
2010 2009 5
% % £
Bank overdiafts 15 4
Bank loans 30 36
Private loan notes 4.2 42
Public loan notes 78 78

The group s committed bank borrowings compnise a mukt-currency revoling credit faciity totalling £1 100m wath a matunty date of March 2016 and

the group’s uncommutted fachties amount to £575m (2009 £516m) At 3t December 2010 undrawn commited avalable faciiies amounted to £552m
(2009 £615m) Interest on all committed bank borrowng faciities s at prevaing LIBOR or Eunbor rates, dependent upon the penod of drawdown, plus
an agreed margin and re-oriced within one year or less

Borrowng at floating rates exposes the group to cash flow interest rate nsk. The management of this nsk 15 discussed in note 33

The group issued fixed rate loan notes in the US Private Placement market totaling US$550m (£341m) on | March 2007 The notes mature in March 2014
($500m) March 2017 ($200m) March 2019 ($145m) and March 2022 ($105m)

The group ssued further fixed rate loan notes in the US Private Placement market totalling US$514m (£318m) and £69m on 15 July 2008 The nates mature

in July 2013 (365m) July 2015 ($150m) July 2016 (£25m) July 2018 ($224m) and {£44m), and July 2020 (§75m)

The group ssued rts naugural public note of £350m using its European Medium Term Note Programme on 13 May 2009 The note matures in May 2019

The committed bank facilires and the private loan notes are subject 1o one financial covenant (net debt to EBITDA ratic} and non-complance with the
covenant may lead to an acceleration of maturity The group complied with the financial covenant throughout the year to 31 December 2010 and the year
to 31 December 2009 The group has not defautted on or breached the terms of any matenal loars durng the yewr

Bank overdrafts, bank loans, the loan notes issued in fuly 2008 and the loan notes issued in May 2009 are stated at amorused cost. The loan notes ssued
in March 2007 are stated at amortssed cost recalculated at an effecuve iterest rate current at the balance sheet date as they are part of a fair value hedge
relationship The directors believe the far value of the group's bank overdrafts bank loans and the loan notes 1ssued n March 2007, calcutated from market

prices, approsamates to therr book value US3265m (£169m) of the foan notes ssued i Juty 2008 have a faw value market gain of £3%m (2009 £30m)

The far value of the remaning notes approxamates to their book value
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30 Obligations under finance leases

Present Present
value of vatue of
Mintmum Miremwm mimmum mrmm
lease Tease lease lease
payments pay pay ts paymens
2010 2009 2010 2009
€ m £m £m
Amounts payable under finance leases.

Within one year 24 28 21 23
In the second to fifth years inclusive 52 8! 46 53
After five years 4 I 3 10
80 00 70 86

tess Future finance charges on finance leases (10) {14

Present value of lease obligations 70 84
tess Amount due for settlernent within 12 months (shawn under current kabilities) (1) 23)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 49 63

tt s the group's policy to lease certan of its fixtures and equipment under finance leases The weighted average lease term s eight years For the year ended
31 December 2010 the weighted average effecuve borrowing rate was 6 8% (2005 74%) Interest rates are fixed at the contract date All leasesare on a
fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent remal payments

The directors beleve the fair value of the group's finance lease obhigauons, being the present value of future cash flows approximates to therr book value
The groups obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors charges over the leased assets

31 Trade and other payables

1010 2002
im £m
Within current iabiities
Trade credrtors 196 192
Amounts due to construction contract customers (see note 26) 7 2
Amounts owed to associated undertakings 2 b
Other taxation and social securtty costs 208 206
Other credrtors 461 398
Accruals and deferred income 325 295
Derwative financial instruments at far value (see note 32) 9 12
Total trade and other payables ncluded within current labilties 1,208 1,106
Within non-current habihtres
Denvatve financial instrumenis at farr value (see note 32) 7 10
Other crediors 41 33
Total rade and other payables includad within non-current liabilities 48 43

Trade and other payables comprise pnncipally amounts ocutstanding for trade purchases and ongomng costs The average credit penod taken for trade
purchases s 33 days (2009 37 daysy The directors believe the far value of trade and other payables beng the present value of future cash flows
approamates to therr book value

Other creditors of £4Im ncluded within non-current labihtes comprses £31m relatng to crediors due between one and two years and £10m relaung
10 credrtors due between two and five years.

32 Derivative financial instruments
The carrying values of denvative financiat instruments at the balance sheet date are presenied below

Assets Asseis Liabditres Latihues

2010 009 2010 2009

im - £m fm

Cross currency swaps designated as cash flow hedges 39 30 - -
Irterest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges - - 16 22
Interest rate swaps designated as far value hedges [ 1] 40 - -
Commodity swaps 2 - - -
96 70 16 22

Less Mon-current portion (85) {58) N (10

Current portion ] 12 9 12
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32 Derivative financial instruments continued

Dervative financial instruments are stated at farr value, measured using techniques consistent with Level | of the valuauon hierarchy (see note 3(d))
The source of the market prices s Bloomberg and in addrtion the third party relationship counterparty banks The relevant currency yield curve 15 used
to forecast the floating rate cash flows antiopated under the instrument which are discounted back to the balance sheet date This value i1s compared
to the onginal transaction value gving a far value of the instrument at the balance sheet date

The mark 1o market valuation of the denvatives has risen by £33m duning the year

The interest rate, c1oss currency and commodity swaps have the following maturities

Assets Assets Liabihties Liabiltes

1010 2209 2010 2009

tm [l Lm £m

Within one year 1 - 3 3

Inﬁ'lesecon_dy—ean—‘ T T i T ! - 7 h T
I the third year ’ o - 4 T Tw
In the fourth year ’ ) - 7 T 4

In the fifth year or greater ) 29 23 1 |
Total carrying value 41 30 16 22

Projected settlement of cash flows {(including accrued interest) associated with derivatives

Assets Assets Liabilities L azihnes

1010 1009 2010 2009

im £m £m im

Within cne year 1 | H 13

Inthe second year 1 — 5 7

Inthe third year 9 - I 2

In the fourth yaar - 8 | |
In the fifth year or greater 32 21 I -

Total cash flows 43 30 19 23

33 Financial risk

Capital management

The group s caprtal management objective 1s to ensure that the businesses within it can continue and develop as going concerns whilst returns to stakeholders
are maximised The group beleves that these returns are maximssed when the groups Weaighted Average Cost of Caprtal (WACC) 1s minimesed and that
this 1s the case when the group broadly has the charactenstics of an investment grade BBB rated entity The group therefore ams generally to mantan s net
debt expressed as a multiple of cash generated from operatians broadly within a range carresponding to those of BBB rated entites On 9 Mar ch 2009 the
group obtained a BBB v edit rating from Standard & Poor's which has been retained

The group has arange of return on capital targets in ; espect of potential acquisitions, depending upon their size Most proposals for bolt-on' acquisitions
must demonste ate a post-tax retumn of at least 12% on the caprtal investment within three years Medium-sized acquisitions are required to return a
minmum of 10% within this timef ame and relatively rare large strategic acquisitions a mirimum equal to the groups WACC The groups calculation of its
post-tax WACC at 31 December 2010 was 74%

The group monitors the financial performance of acquired businesses during the years following acquisticn aganst the return targets In addition the group
monitars the Returm on Net Assets (RONA) of all its businesses on a monthly basis The group regards RONA as ameasure of operational performance
and therefore calculates it as EBITA divided by net assets excluding goodwill tax dadends payable and retrement benefit obligations

The group has na current ntention to commence a share buy-back plan The group operates a programme to purchase its own shares on the market on
aregular basis so as to provide 3 pool of shares from which to satisfy share awards to employees as the awards vest.

The group 1s not subject to externally-imposed capital requirements and there were no changes in the group's approach to capital management durng
the year

Liquidity risk

The group mitigates hquidity nisk by ensuning there are sufficent undrawn committed faclities avatlable to #t. For more details of the groups bank overdrafts,
bark loans and loan notes see note 2%

The percentage of available, but undrawn committed facltes during the course of the year was as fllows:

3} December 2009 8%
31 March 2010 2%
30 June 2010 21%
30 September 2010 19%
3t December 2010 26%

Te reduce re-financing nsk group treasury obtans finance wrth a range of matunities and hence mininises the impact of a single matera) source of finance
tenminating on a single date
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

33 Financial risk continued

The groups commutted facilies, restated at hedged rates where applicable, have the following matunty dates

July 2013 £33m
March 2014 £64m
July 2015 £76m
March 2016 £1 100m
July 2016 £25m
March 2017 £128m
Juty 2018 £180m
March 2019 £93m
May 2049 £350m
July 2020 £48m
March 2022 £6/m

A

Re-financing risk 1s further reduced by group treasury opening negotiauons to either replace o extend any major facility at least {8 months before its
termination date

On 10 March 2011 the g oup completed its 1efinance of its multi-currency revolving credit facikity The new £1 1bn facility has a margn of 0 80% over LIBOR
and matures in March 2016

Market risk

Currency risk and forward foreign exchange contracts

The group conducts business in many currencres Transaction sk s linited since, wherever possible each business operates and conducts its finanang
actvities In loca! currency However, the group presents its consolidated financial statements in sterling and it 1s 1 consequence subject 1o foreign exchange
115k due to the translation of the resuits and net assets of 1t foregn subsidianies The group hedges a substantial proportion of its exposure to fluctuations
in the translation inte sterling of its overseas net assets by holding loans in foreign currencies

Translation adjustments arising on the translation of foreign currency loans are recogmised n equity to match transtation adjustments on foreign currency
equrty investmenits as they qualify as net nvestment hedges

The group no longer uses foreign exchange contracts to hedge the residual portion of net assets not hedged by way of loans This foreign exchange hedging
programme was terminated in February 2009 The group believes cash flow should not be put at risk by these instrumenis in order to preserve the carrying
value of net assets given the changed hquidity environment post the global credit crsis

At 31 December 2010 the groups US dollar and euro net assets were approximately 65% and 60% respectively hedged by foreign currency loans
(2009 US dollar 75% euro B7%)

Cross currency swaps with a nominal value of £134m were arranged to hedge the foreign currency nisk on US$265m of the second US Private Placerment
notes issued In July 2008, effectively fixing the sterling value of this portion of debt at an exchange rate of | 9750

Interest rate risk and interest rate swaps

Bortowing at floating rates as descrnbed in note 29 exposes the group to cash flow interest rate risk, which the group manages withw policy hmits approved
by the directors Interest rate swaps and to a imited extent forward rate agreements are utised to fix the interest rate on a proportion of borrowings

on & reducing scale over forward periods up to a maximum of five years At 31 December 2010 the nominal value of such contracts was £134m (in respect
of US dollar) (2009 £170m) and £167m (in respect of euro) (2009 £218m) ther weighted average nterest rate was 50% (US doflar) (2009 50%) and
37% (euro) (2009 37 %), and ther weighted average periad to maturity was one and a half years All the interest rate hedging instrurments are designated
and fully effective as cash flow hedges and movements in their far value have been deferred in equity

The US Private Flacement market is predominarttly a fixed rate market, with investors looking for a fixed rate return over the Ife of the loan notes At the time:
of the first 1ssue in March 2007 the group was comfortable with the proportion of floating rate expasure not hedged by iterest rate swaps and therefore
rather than take on a higher proportion of fixed rate debt arranged fixed to floating swaps effectively converung the fixed coupon on the Private Placement
1o a floating rate Following the swaps the resulting average coupon on the LIS Private Placement s LIBOR + 60bps These swaps have been documented

as farr value hedges of the US Private Placement fixed iterest loan notes with the movements i their fair value posted to profit and loss at the same tme
as the movement n the far value of the hedged tem

The interest on the LIS Private Placement notes issued i July 2008 and on the GBP Public Bond ssued in May 2009 was kept at fixed rate

The care group borrowings are held in US dollar, euro and sterfing. Although the impact of nising interest rates is partly shielded by fixed rate loans and nterest rate
swaps which fix a portion of the exposure some interest rate nisk remains Assurming a 19 increase in interest rates aaoss the yield curve in each of these currencies
and keeping the 31 Diecember 2010 debt postion constant throughout 2011, an addional interest charge of £8n would be expected in the 2001 financial year

Commodity risk and commodity swaps

The groups prnapal commodrty nsk relates to the fiuctuating level of diesel prices, particularly affacting rts cash solutions businesses. Cormmodrty swaps and

commaodity options are used to fix synthetically part of the exposure and reduce the associated cost volatlity Commodity swaps hedging |18 million htres of

projected 2011 diesel consumption 15 mellion Iitres of projected 2012 diesel consumption 15 millon kitres of projected 2013 diesel consumption and 7 million
Itres of projected 2014 diesel consumption were in place ai 31 December 2010

Counterparty credit risk
The groups strategy for treasury credit sk management is to set minimum credit ratings for counterparuies and monitor these on a regular basis

For treasury-related transactions, the policy limits the aggregate credit nsk assigned to a counterparty The uthisation of 2 credit imit 1s caleudated by applymg
aweighting to the national value of each transaction outstanding with each counterparty based on the type and durabion of the transaction The total mark
to market value outstanding with each counterparty s closely monitored For shorttermn transactions (under one year) at nception of the transaction the
financial counterparty must be investment grade rated by erther the Standard & Poor s or Moody's rating agencies For long-term trarsactions at inception
of the transaction, the financial counterparty must have a mmimum rating of A+/AL from Standard & Poor s or Moadys
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33 Financial risk continued

Counterparty credit risk continued

Freasury transacuons are dealt with the group's refationship banks all of which have a strong investment grade rating At 31 December 2010 the largest two
counterparty exposures related to treasury transactions were £37m and £21m and both were held with institutions with long-term Moody s aredit ratings of
Aal These exposures represent 39% and 21% of the carrying values of dervatve financil instrument, with a fan value gain at the balance sheet date Both of
these banks had significant loans outstanding to G4S plc at 31 December 2010

The group operates a multi-currency notional pooling cash management system with a wholly-owned subsidiary of an Aa3 rated bank At year end credit
balances of £230m were pooled with debit balances of £236m resulting in a net poot balance of £6m There s legal nght of set off under the pocling
agreement

At an operating level the minimum investment grade rating critera apples Exceptionally where required by focal country ar cumstarkes counterparties with
Ao or a nen-nvestment grade rating can be approved as counterparties for a peried of up to 12 months Due 1o the group’s global geographicat footprint
and exposure to multiple ndustries there s minimal concentr ation risk

34 Retirerment benefit abligations

The group operates a wide r ange of retrement benefit arrangements which are established in accordance with local conditions and practices within the
countries concerned These include funded defined contrnbution and funded and unfunded defined benefit schemes

Defined contribution arrangements

The majonty of the r etirement benefit arrangements operated by the group are of a defined contnbution structure where the employer contnbution and
resulting income statement charge is fixed at a set level or s a set percentage of employees pay Contributions made to defined contribution schemes and
charged to the income statement totalled £110m (2009 £109m)

In the UK following the closure of the defined benefit schemes to new entrants in 2004 the main scheme for new employees s a contracted-in defined
contribution scheme

Wackenhut Services Inc ( WSI' } 1s the administrator of several defined benefit schemes W5I s responsible for making peniodic cost-reimbursable deposits
to the various defined benefit schemes as determined by independent actuaries In each instance the US Department of Energy ( DOE' ) acknowledged
within the contract entered between the DOE and WSI its responsibility for all unfunded pension and benefit habilives Therefore, these schemes are
accournted for as defined contribution schemes

In the Netherlands most employees are members of industry-wide defined benefit schemes which are not valued on an IAS |9 basis as rt1s not possible
to identfy separately the groups share of the schemes assets and habiliues As a result the schemes are accounted for as defined contnbution schemes
Contributions made to the schemes and charged to the income statement in 2010 totalled £8m (2009 £7m) The estimated amounts of contr ibutions
expected to be paid to the schemes during the financial year commencing | January 2011 i respect of the ongoing accrual of benefits 1s approximately
£8m assuming consistent exchange rates

Defined benefit arrangements

The group operates a number of defined benefit tetirement ar angements where the benefits are based on employees length of service In most cases
these are calculated on the basis of final pensionable pay other than for the smallest of the three sections in the UK and one scheme in the Metheriands
where they are based on career average pay Liabiities under these arrangements are stated at the discounted value of benefits accrued to date, based
upon actuanal advice

Under unfunded arrangements the group does not hold the related assets separate from the group The amount charged to the ncome statement in
respect of these an angements in 2010 totalled £3m (2009 £3m) Under funded arrangements the assets of defined benefit schemes are held in separate
trustee-administered funds The pension costs are assessed on the advice of qualified independent actuanes using the projected unit crede method

The group operates several funded defined retirement benefit schemes Whilst the groups primary scheme 1s in the UK it also operates other material
schemes in the Netherlands Canada, israel and Greece

The carrying values of retirement benefit obligations at the balance sheet date are presented below

2010 009
£m £m
UK 156 307
Rest of World 9 21
Net habiity on matenal funded defined retrement benefit schemes 265 328
Unfunded and other funded defined retrement benefit obligations 41 40
306 368

Less Amounts induded within current kabilies ((1}] (55)
Induded within non-current habdities 245 313

The defined benefit scheme in the LK accounts for 97% of the net balance sheet habity on matenal funded defined r etrement benefit schemes It comprises
three sections the pension scheme demerged from the former Group 4 Falck A/S wath total member ship of approximately 8 000 the Secuncor scheme
responsibility for which the group assumed on 20 July 2004 with the acquisstion of Securicor ple, with total membership of approxsmately 20,000, and the
GSL scheme responsibity for which the group assumed on 12 May 2008 with the acquisiion of GSL. with total membership of approxamately 2,000

The three schemes in the UK have combined under one trustee body wrth effect from | January 2010 and the resuttant scheme was formally actuarally
assessed at 5 Apnil 2009 Pension obligations stated in the statement of financial posrion take account of future eamings increases have been updated 10

31 December 2010 and use the valuation methodologes speafied in IAS 19 Employee Benefits
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

14 Retirement benefit obligations continued

Since the year end the group has emered nto a consultation penod wath a view to closing the UK schenie to future accrual duning 2011 which would bt the
future growth i kabiities Exasting members would retan ther benefits accrued to-date and would be transferred to a new defined contrbution scheme for
future pension benefits.

During the year the UK Government announced that the rminmurm rates at which penstons will increase wall change from using RPY to CPE Fhis change
has resulted m a one-off reduction in the habilities, mainly associated with UK deferred pensioners by £32m This has been accounted for as a credit to

reserves In hne with the recently announced UITF 48 Accounting implicauons of the replacerrient of the Retail Prces Index with the Consumer Prices Index for
Retrement Benefits

As at the latest actuanal valuation, the partopants of the UK pension scheme sections can be analysed as follows

Group 4 Falck G5SL Sequncor

ALS Aprd 2009 Scheme Scheme Schemne Total
Active participants

—Number 618 1311 1409 3,338
— Average age 532 508 519 517
Deferred participants

—Number 4,559 537 10352 15448
— Average age 513 484 508 509
Pensioner paruapants

— Number 2,607 208 7878 10693
— Average age 682 611 699 693

The weighted average principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuaral valuatons were as follows

UK Rest of World

Key assumptions used at 31 December 2010

Discount rate 5.5% 5 6%
Expected return on scheme assets (as at | January 2010) 6.9% 5 6%
Expected rate of salary ncreases 3 &% 2.3%
Future pension increases (LPI5%) 313% | 4%
inflation 3 5% 2.1%
Key assumptions used at 3| December 2009

Discount rate 57% 57%
Expected return on scheme assets {as at | Janvary 2009) 63% 58%
Expected rate of salary increases 36% 26%
Future pension ncreases (LPIS%) 34% 20%
Inflabon 36% 20%

In addibon to the above, the group uses appropriate mortality assumptions when calculaung the schemes obligations The mortality tables used for the
scheme in the UK are as follows.

= Current and future pensioners Birth year table SIP[M/F] A base allowing for individual scaling factors based on analyss of mortality expenenced medium
cohort improvement factors with an underpin of | 0% per annum

The amounts recognised in the ncome statement in respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows

UK Rest of World Total
Em tm m
Amounts recognised in income 2010
Current service cost {1 (4) (15)
Settlement and curtalment gains - 9 9
Finance cost on defined retirement benafit obligatons (87) (6) (93)
Expected return on defined reurement benefit scheme assets 81 5 a7
Total amounts recognised in income (16) 4 12)
Amounts recognised in tncome 2009
Current service cost & ) (13
Finance cost on defined retwrement benefit obiigations (81) 6) 87
Expected retun on defined retrement benefit scheme assets 64 4 68

Total amounts recognised n income (26) ® G2
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34 Retirement benefit obligations contnued

The amounts recognised in income are included within the foliowing categonies in the income statement.

2010 2009

£m £m

Cost of sales (10) ®
Administration expenses 4 @)
Finance income 87 68
Finance costs (93) {87)
Total (12) (32)

Actuaral gans and losses recogmised cumulatvely in the statement of comprehensive income are as follows

2010 2009

£m £m

At January (268) (205)
Actuarial gansi(losses) recogrised in the year 19 63
Restniction 1o defined benefit asset due to the asset ceiting “) -
At 3| December (253) (268)

The asset celling restricion reflects an inability to dertve economic value from an 1AS 19 surplus in a plan in the Natherands

The amounts included in the consolidated statement of financial position arsing from the groups obligations in respect of its defined berefit schames are

as follows
UK Rest of World Total
£m £m im
2010
Present value of defined benefit obligations 1,566 95 1,661
Fair value of scheme assets (1,310) (%0) {1.400)
Restnction to defined benefit asset due to the asset celling - 4 4
Deficit in scheme 256 9 265
2009
Present value of defined benefit obligations I 547 1é 1663
Far value of scheme assets (1 240) (95) (1335)
Defict n scheme 307 21 328
2008
Present value of defined benefit obligations | 296 i 1,407
Fair value of scheme assets (1040} @81} {1121}
Defiait n scheme 256 30 286
2007
Present value of defined benefit obligations 1291 85 | 376
Far value of scheme assets {1 170) 7 1,240y
Defiat in scheme 121 14 136
2006
Present value of defined benefit cbligatons 1329 6l 1 390
Far value of scheme assets (1.118) (45} (1,164}
Defiat n scheme 211 16 126
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34 Retirement benefit obfigations continued
Mavements in the present value of defined benefit obligations i the current year and the fair value of scheme assets during the year were as follows.

UK Rest of World Total
1010 £Em £m Lm
Obligations
At | January 2010 1,547 116 1,663
Service cost 1 4 (1
Inter est cost 87 6 93
Contributions from scheme members 5 3 8
Actuarial {gainsy/losses (26) 6 (20)
Benefits paid (58) (73] (60)
Curtalments - (2) (2)
Settlements - (613 an
Transtation adjustments - | 1
At 3] December 2010 1,566 95 f661
Assets
At January 2010 1,240 95 1,335
Expecied return on scheme assets 82 5 a7
Actuarial (Josses)/gany @ 3 )
Actual returns on schedule assets 78 ] 86
Contributions from the sponscring comparnies 45 14 59
Contributions from scheme members s 3 8
Benefits paid (58) {2) (60)
Settlements - (30) (30)
Translaticn adjustments - 2 2
At 3| December 2010 1,310 90 1,400

Uk Res+ of World Total
2009 78 £m m
Obhgations
Al January 2009 1296 i 1407
Service cost g 4 13
Interest cost 8l 6 87
Contributions from scheme members 5 3 8
Actuanal losses 205 | 206
Benefits pad (49 @ (53)
Translation adjustments - 5 &)
At 31 December 2009 | 547 18 1663
Assets
At | January 2009 1040 8t 1121
Expected :eturn on scheme assets 64 4 68
Actuanal gans 134 9 143
Actual return on scheme assets 198 I3 ]
Contnbutions from the sponsoring comparies 46 5 51
Contnbutions from scheme members 5 3 8
Benefits paid 49 4) (53)
Translaton adpustments - (€3] 3
At 31 December 2009 1240 95 1335

The contribution from sponsonng companies in 2010 induded £33m (2009 £30m) of additional contributions in respect of the deficit n the schemes
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34 Retirement benefit obligations continued

There was a significant restructuring of the UK assets dunng the course of 2010 and the fund 15 now invested in 3 wider range of assets than previousty
The composrion of the scheme assets at the reporung date s as follows

UK Rest of World Total

2010
Equity instrurments 8% g% 9%
Debt instruments 18% 43% 18%
Pronerty 0% % 0%
Cash 24% 2% 23%
Other assets 42% 14% 40%
100% 100% 100%

2000
Equity nstruments 59% 45% 57%
Debt instruments 26% 38% 27%
Property 0% 10% 1%
Other assets 15% 7% 15%
100% 100% 100%

Other assets in the UK comprised a range of dervatives private equity holdings macro-onentated and multi-strategy alternative investments and a credit

portfoho including corporate bond exposut €, credit long/short funds and distressed debt investments

None of the pension scheme assets are held in the entity's own financial instruments or In any assets held or used by the entity

The expected weighted average rates of return on scheme assets for the following year at the balance sheet date are as follows

UK  Restof World Total
2010 (return expected n 2011} 70% 4 5% 68%
2009 (return expected in 2010) 69% 56% 68%
2008 {return expected in 2009) 63% 59% 63%

For the UK, the expected return on assets 1s based on the return targeted under the new investment strategy For the rest of the world the expected rates
of rewurn on ndmidual categones of schemne assets are determined with respect to bonds by reference to relevant indices and with 1espect to other assets
by reference to refevant indices of the histarical return and economic forecasts of future returns relative to inflation n respect of assets of a similar nature

The overall expected rate of return 1s the werghted average of the rates on the individual asset categories

The history of expenence adustments s as follows.

UK

Rest of World

Totat

1010

Experience adjustments on scheme habilities

Amount (£m)

(8)

3)

(31

Percentage of scheme habidives (96)

2)

3)

)

Experience adjustments on scheme assets

Amount (£m)

é

Percentage of scherme assets (%)

&

2009

Experience adjustrnents on scheme habihines

Amount (£m)

@

Percentage of scheme habiliues (%)

]

Experience adjustments on scheme assets

Amount (£m)

(133

®

(141)

Percentage of scheme assets (%)

(n

)

an

2008

Experience adjustments on scheme habilities

Amount (£m)

Percentage of scheme habirues (%)

Experence adjustments on scheme assets

Amount (£m)

315)

7

(332)

Percentage of scheme assets (%)

(30)

@

(30)
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34 Retirement benefit obligations continued

UK Rest of World Total
2007
Experience adjustments on scheme habihties
Amount (£m) 6 {3) 3
Percentage of scheme labilities (%) - 4 -
Experience adjustments on scheme assets
Amount (£m) (7 {5) (22)
Percentage of scherne assets (%) 0] (7) {2)
2006
Experence adjustments on scheme habilities !
Amount (£m) 23 - 29
Percentage of scheme labilities (%) 2 - 2
Experience adjustments on scheme assets
Amount (£m) 45 3 48
Percentage of scheme assets (%) 4 6 4

The estanated amounts of contributions expected 1o be paid to the schemes dunng the finanaal year commenaing | January 2011 in respect of the ongoing
accrual of benefits should be approximately £10-20m depending on the outcome of the consultation penod and whether the UK scheme is closed to future
accrual Additional centr ibutions of approxamately £35m will also be made in 2011 in respect of the deficit in the schemes

IAS 19 specifies that pension labilities should be discounted at appropnate high quality corporate bond rates The directors consider that itis appropnate to
apply the average of the yields on those AA corporate bonds which most closely approximate to the timescale of the labiity profife of the schemes and have
therefore used such arate being 5 5% i respect of the UK schemes at 31 December 2010 (57% at 31 Decerber 2009) The effect of a 0 1% movement in
the discount rate applicable in the UK is to alter reported habilities (before assowated deferred tax} by approxmately £2ém

Liabikty calculations are also impacted heavily by the martality projections included in the actuanal assumptions The weighted average life expectancy of a
male member of the UK schemes curtently aged 65 has been assumed as 204 years The weighted average Ife expectancy at 65 of a male currently aged
52 has been assumed as 22 | years The directors consider, on actuzrial adwice, these assumptions to be appropriate to the profile of the membership of
the schemes The effect of a one year change in this UK Iife expectancy assumption 1s to alter reported habilties (before associated deferred tax) by
approximately £73m

Pension obligations in respect of defert ed members increase in Ine with inflation Increases in salanes and increases in pensions-in-payment generally mave in
Iine with inflation Inflation 1s therefore an important assumptien n the calculation of defined retirement benefit habilities The effect of a O 9% movement In
the rate of inflation assumption applicable in the UK s to alter reported labiities (before assocated deferred tax) by approximately £12m

35 Provisions

Employec Claims Onerous

benefits Restructuring reserves contracts Tortal

£m £m {fm £y £m

At | January 2010 18 4 40 4| 103
Addrtional provision in the year 6 | 26 3 36

On acquissison of subsidiary - - - 5 5
Utdisation of prowvision {5) [ (26} (24) (56)
Unused amounts reversed (4 n (3 - (8)
Transfers and redassifications - - 4 ©® 5

Translation adjustments | - | - 2

At 31 December 2010 16 3 42 16 77

Included in current habilitses 33

Induded in non-current kabikities 44

77

Employee benefits

The prowsion for employee benefits 15 n respect of any employee benefits which accrue over the working Ives of the employees typically nctuding items
such as long serice awards and terminatton ndemnity schemes

Restructuring

Restructuring provisions indude amounts for redundancy payrments and the costs of dosure of activities in acquired businesses and discontinued operatons
Settfernent of restructunng provisions 15 lughly probable The timing 1s uncertaim but 1s generally ikely to be short term
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35 Provisions continued
Claims reserves

The claims reserves are held by the wholly-owned captive insurance substdianes in Guernsey and the US whuch underwrite part of the group s cash solutons
general hability workers’ compensation and auto habiity policies The prowsions are subject to regular actuanal review and are adjusted as approprate
Settlement of these provisions I1s highly probable but both the value of the final settlements and ther iming 1s uncertain dependent upon the outcome of
ongoing processes to determine both hability and quantum n respect of a wide range of daims or possible daims

Onerous contracts

The enerous comract provison mamnly comprses the provision aganst future habilities for loss-malung contracts for all properties sub-let at a shortfall for
the cost of replacing assets where there 15 a present contractual requirement and for long-term idle leased properties The prowision 1s based on the value
of future net cash outflows Whilst the likelihood of settlement of these obligations i considered probable there 1s uncertainty over thewr value and duration

36 Deferred tax
The following are the major deferred 1ax habilities ang assets recogrised by the group and movements thereon dunng the current and prior reporting
perods
Retirement Ocher
benefi Intangibt temporary
obligations assets Tax losses differences Total
Lo Lm im €m im
At | January 2009 82 (118) 8 44 I8
(Charge)/credit to the income statement {5) 23 20 2 40
Acquisiien of subsidiares - (17) - - (17)
Credd to equity 17 - - - 17
Translation adjustments - 3 - (5) @
Transfersiother (2) | - | -
At 31 December 2009 92 (1086) 28 42 56
At | January 2010 92 {106) 28 42 56
{Charge)/credit to the income statement {11 26 (2) 3) 10
Acquisivon of subsidianes — 3) - - (3)
Disposal of subsidianes — 2 - - 2
(Charge)fcredit to equity 7) - - 5 (2
Translaton adjustments | {3) [ ! -
At 3| December 2010 75 (84) 27 45 63
Certain defer red tax assets and habilties have been oftset where permitted The following 1s the anslysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial
reporting purposes.
2000 2009
im £m
Deferred tax habiliues (98) (122)
Deferred tax assets 161 178
Tota! deferved tax postion 63 56

At 31 December 2010 the group has unutilised tax losses of approxamately £526m (2009 £528m) potenually avatable for offset agamnst future profits

A deferred tax asset of £27m (2009 £27m) has been recogrised n respect of approxumately £76m (2009 £78m) of gross losses No deferred tax asset has
been recogrised n respect of the remaning £450m (2005 £450m) of gross losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams in the relevant
unsdictions a2nd the fact that a sgnificant proportion of such losses remains unaudited by the relevant tax authonties Included in unrecognised tax losses are
gross losses of £5m £3m £2m and £Im which will expire in 2011 2012 2013 and 2014 respectively Other fosses may be carmed forward indefinntely

At 31 Decemnber 2010 the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed eamings of non-UK subsidianes for which deferred tax
Iiabiies have not been recogresed 1s £1.445m (2009 £ 329m} No hability has been recognised in respect of these gross differences on the basis that the
group 1s 1N a positon to control the tming of the reversal of the temporary differences and riis probable that such differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Temporary differences arsing in connection with interests in assccates and joint ventures are insignificant.

At 31 December 2010 the group has total unprovided contingent tax habiiues of approximately £8m (2009 £nil) relating to unresolved tax issues in vanous
unsdichions.
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37 Share capital
G4S plc 10'2 200?:
Issued and fully pard ordinary shares of 25p each (2009 25p each} 352,654,660 352 629660
‘ Nomunal
Number value Lm
Ordinary shares in issue
At | January 2009 1,408,298,639 352
Shares 1ssued on exerase of options.
Executive Scheme 2,220,000
At | January 20i0 1410 518,639
Shares rssued on exercise of options:
Exeartive Scheme 100,000
At 31 Decernber 2010 1,410,618,639

The holders of ot dinary shares are entitled to receve dividends as dedared from ume to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
company

One option over (345 plc shares remains outstanding at 31 December 2010 This option rofled over at 19 july 2004 from options previously hekd over
Secuncor plc shares The option 1s for 50000 shares with an exercise price of 31p with an exercise date of 2010~2013

The proceeds from shares allotted under this scheme dunng the year amounted to £127338 (2009 £2772488)
5,029 315 shares are held by an employee benefit trust as detaled in note 38

38 Reserves

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow mstruments related to the hedged
transactions that have not yet occurred (net of tax)

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foresgn exchange differences ansing from the tr anslavon of the finanaal statements of foreign operations, as well
as from the translation of liabiities that hedge the company's net investment in foreign operations (net of tax)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve compnseas reserves ansing upon the merger between the former Group 4 Falck A/S and the former Group 4 Securitas BV in 2000
and the acquisition of Secunicor plc by the group in 2004

Reserve for own shares

An employee benefit trust established by the group held 5 029,315 shares at 31 December 2010 (2009 5 543 BI8 shares) (o satisfy the vesting of awards
under the performance share plan and performance-related and synergy bonus schemes Duning the year 3,882 900 shares were purchased by the tnust
whilst 4 397403 shares were used to sausfy the vesting of awards under the schemes At 31 December 2010, the cost of shares held by the trust was
£12 125010 2009 £12 054 i45), whilst the market value of these shares was £12 B04 636 (2009 £14447,190) Shares held by the trust are treated as
treasury shares, are deducted from equity do not recerve dividends and are excluded from the calculations of earmings per share
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39 Analysis of net debt
A reconciiaton of net debt to amounts i the consolidated statement of finznoal position 15 presented below-
2010 009
im im
Cash and cash equivalents 351 309
Investments 82 84
Net cash and overdrafts included within disposal groups classified as held for sale - 20
Net debt (excluding cash and overdrafts) included within disposal groups classified as held for sale - {13}
Bank overdrafts {45) (38)
Bank loans (687) (662)
Loan notes (1,153) (117
Farr value of loan note dervative finanaial iInstruments 9% 70
Obligations under finance leases (70) (86)
Total net debt (1,426} (1433)
An analysis of moverments in net debt in the year is presented below:
2010 2009
im £m
Increase in cash cash equivalents and bank overdrafts per consolidated cash flow statement 14 (38)
{SaleYpurchase of investments (5) |
Decrease in debt and lease financing 38 |
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows 47 (36)
Borrowings acquired with subsicharies ) -
Net addiwons to finance leases (+2] (20)
Moverment in net debt in the year 34 {56)
Translation adustments 7) (29
Net debt at the beginning of the year (1,433) (1,348)
Net debt at the end of the year {1,426) (1433)

40 Contingent liabilities

Conungent labilies exist in respect of agreemerts entered mto i the normal course of business, none of which are ndmdually o collectvely significant,

Detals of unprovided contingent tax habdities are presented in note 36

4] Operating lease arrangements

The group as lessee

At the balance sheet date the group had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable oper ating leases which fall due as follows

010 007

im £m

Within one year 149 143
In the second to fifth years inclusive 335 301
Afier five years 215 198
Total operating lease commitments 699 642

The group leases a number of its office propertes vehicles and other operating equipment under operating leases Property leases are negotiated over
an average term of exght years at rates reflective of market rentals. Penodic rent reviews take place to bnng lease rentals in hne with prevaiing market

conditions Some but not all lease agreements have an option to renew the lease at the end of the lease term Leased vehicles and other operaung

equipment are negotiated over an average lease term of four years,

Certan leased properties have been sub-let by the group. Sub-leases are negatiated on terms consisterit with those of the assoaated property
The total future minmum sub-lease payments expected 1o be recenved by the group from sub-let properties amount to £10m (2009 £1im)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

42 Share-based payments

The group has two types of equity-settled share-based payment schema in place (1) share options previcusty held by employees over Secuncor plc shares
and rofled over to GA4S ple shares with the acquistion of that business on 19 July 2004 and (2) conditional allocations of G4S ple shares

Share options

Share options rofled over from Secunicor ple fall under the Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOS) Options under the ESOS wer e granted at market value
vest three or four years following the date of grant {provided that certain non-market performance conditions are met and that the recipients continue to be
employed by the group during the vesung peniod) and are exertsable up to ten years following the date of grant

Detalls of the share options outstanding durng the year are as follows

Weghted Weighred

Number of average Mumter of aversge

shares under exercise shares under exercse

option price {pence} option price {pence)

010 2000 2009 2009

Qutstanding at | January 150,000 11523 2370000 12428
Exercised duning the year {100,000) 127 34 (2,220 000} 122 82
Qutstanding and exercisable at 31 December 50,000 92100 150,000 11523

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exerased duning the year was 266 27p (2009 24395p) All options outstanding at
31 December 2010 wer e vested

No share option expense has been recognised in the ncome statement during the year as all share options had previously vested (2009 all vested)

Shares allocated conditionally

Shares allocated conditionally fall under erther the groups performance-related bonus scheme or the group's Performance Share Plan (PSF) Shares allocated
conditionally under the performance-related bonus scheme vest three year s following the date of grant provided certan non-market perforrnance conditions
are met Those allocated under the PSP vest after three years 10 the extent that () certain non-market performance conditions are met as to two-thirds of
the allocation and () certain market performance conditions are met as to the remairing third of the allocation Vesting occurs after the third anniversary of
the date the shares were allocated conditionally To the extent that the performance critera have been met and the shares are not forferted, these shares can
only be released upon request after the third anniversary but before the tenth anniversary

The number of shares allocated condrbionally 15 as follows

Performance- Pertonmance
related bonus related bonus
scheme PSP Total scherm [ Total
2000 2010 W10 2009 2007 2009
MNMumber Number Number Number Number Nube
Qutstanding at | fanuary 1,322,739 14,962,009 16,284,748 2257765 11861 814 14119 579
Allocated during the year 546,896 5,204,762 5,755,658 553382 6,576,223 7,129 605
Transferred duning the year (344,286} (4,053, H1T) {4,397,403) (1 488408} (3238,023) (4726431)
Forfeited during the year - {1,177,843) {1,177,848) - (201,393} {201,393)
Expred during the year - (21,000 (21,000) - (36:612) (36 612)
Outstanding at 3t December 1,525,349 14,914,806 16,440,155 1322739 14962 009 16284 748

The weighted average remarning contractual ife of conditional share allocations outstanding at 31 December 2010 was 15 months (2009 17 months)
The weighted average share price at the date of allocation of shares allocated conditonally dunng the year was 259 20p (2009 210 25p) and the contractual
Ife of all conditional allocatons was three years

Under the PSP the vesting of one third of the shares allocated conditionally depends upon Total Shareholder Return (a market performance conditon) over
the vesting perod measured aganst a comparator group 25% of the allocation vests upon the group’s Total Shareholder Return equalling median performance
amongst the comparator group The far value of the shares allocated subject to this market performance condition has therefore been reduced to 25%

Total expensas of £7m were recognised in the Income statement in the year (2009 £7m) in respect of condrional share allocations the calculanon of which
included an estimate of the number of those shares allocated subject to non-market performance conditions that would vest based upon the probable
achievement against the performance conditions.
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43 Related party transactions

Transactions and balances with joint ventures and associated undertakings

Transactions between the company and its subsidianes have been elminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note Detalls of transactions
between the group and other related parues are disclosed below All transactions with related parues are entered into in the normal course of business

Joint ventures joint veniures Associates Asscoates
2010 2009 2010 2003
im £m im m
Transactions
Revenue 11 9 - -
Balances
Amounts due to related parties
Creditors - - 2 |
Amounts due from related parties
Debtors s 4 2 |

Revenue includes fees of £8m (2009 £7m) charged to Bridgend Custodial Services Ltd and fees of £3m (2009 £3m) charged to 5TC (Miton Keynes) Ltd
No expense has been recognised in the year for bad and doubtiul debts in respect of amounts owed by related parties Detads of principat joint ventures and
associated undertakings ar e shown in notes 2| and 22 respectively

The group has a legal interest in a number of Nt ventures and joint arrangements whe e the econormic inter est was divested by the Global Solutions
Group priorto its acquisition by G45 ple The significant transactions with these entities are

1010 2009

Services/sales to Servicas/ales to

im £m

White Horse Education Partnership Limited 2 2
Integrated Accommodation Services plc 45 4l
Fazakerley Prison Services Limited 30 28
Onley Prison Services Limrted 2 i3
ECD Cogkham Wood Limited - 6
ECD Onley bimrted 10 I
Stratus Integrated Services Lirmited 7 7
UK Court Services {Manchester) Limited 2 2
East London Lift Company Limirted | |
Health Improvement Partnership (Wolverhampton City & Walsall} Ltd - |
Brent, Harrow & Hittngdon UFT Company Ltd 1 |
Bexley Bromley & Greenwich LIFT Company Ltd I -
Total (1] 13

Transactions with post-employment benefit schemes

Detads of transacuions with the groups post-employment benefit schemes are provded in note 34 Unpaid contributions owed to schemes amounted to
£2m at 31 December 2010 (2009 £2m}

Remuneration of key management personnel

The groups key management personnel are deemed to be the non-executive directors and those indwiduals including the executive directors whose
remuneration 15 determined by the Remuneration Committee Ther remuneration 1s set out below Further information about the remuneration of
indradual directors included within key management personnel 1s provided in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 62 to 66

2010 2009

I 4

Short-term employee benefits 7,730,354 5721,186
Post-employment benefits 692,188 504 608
Other long-term benefits 39,505 28,631
Share-based payiment 3,291,345 2488 363
Total 11,753,392 8,742,788

44 Events after the balance sheet date
No significant post-balance sheet events have affected the group since 31 December 2010
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contnued

45 Significant investments

The companies lsted below are those which were part of the group at 31 December 2310 and which, in the opinton of the directors, significantly affected the
groups results and net assets dunng the year The directors consider that those companies not kisted are not significant in relation to the group as a whole

A comprehensive bist of ali subsidianes will be disclosed as an appendix to the groups annual return
The principal activities of the companies listed below are indicated according to the following key

Secure solutions S
Cash solutions C

These businesses operate princpally 10 the country in which they are incorporated

Counury of Uttimate
Product segmen ncorpematon ownarTIR

Subsidiary undertalungs
G4S Soluciones de Segundad S A S Argentina 75%
G4S Custodial Services (Pty) Limited S Agstralia 100%
G45 Secunty Services AG s Austria 100%
GA45 Secuntty Services SAINV S Belgum H00%
(G4S Cash Solutions (Belgium) SA/NY C Belgum 100%
Instalarme Industra e Comeraio Ltda S Brazl 100%
(G4S Cash Solutions (Canada) Limited C Canada 100%
(A5 Secure Solutions {Canada) Limited S Canada 100%
G4S Secure Solutions Colombia S A S+C Colombia 100%
45 Securtty Services A/S S Denmark 100%
G4S Uty Services {UK) Limited (formerly AccuRead Limited) S England 100%
G453 Aviation Serwices (UK) Linuted S England 100%
GA4S Cash Centres (UK} Linmited C England 100%
GAS Cash Solutions (UK) Lmited C England 100%
G45 Care and Justice Services (UK) bimsted S England 100%
GA4S Secure Solutions (UK) Limited 5 England 100%
543 Technelogy Linuted S England 100%
Group 4 Total Secunty Limited S England 100%
GA4S Integrated Services (UK) Limited S £ngland 100%
AS G45 Eesti S+C Estoria 100%
545 Secunity Sennces Oy S Finland 00%
G4S Cash Solutions S A C Greece 100%
G4S Keszpenziogisztika Kft 5+C Hungary 100%
(G4S Secunty Services (India) Pvt, Limited' S India 49%
G4S Cash Solutions {reland) Limited keland 100%
G4S Secus e Solutions (tr efand) Limited 5 Ireland 100%
Hashmira Company Limsed Israel 91%
G4S Secunty Services (Kenya) Limited S+C Kenya 100%
GAS Secunty Services SA S+C  Luxembourg 100%
Safeguards Securicor Sdn 8hd%® S+C Malaysia 49%
(G4S Cash Solutions BY C  Netherlands 100%
Group 4 Secuncor Beheer BY S MNetherlands 100%
G45 Secunty Services AS $+C Norway 100%
G4S Cash Soletans SRL C Romarua 100%
al Mayga! Service Master Co Limnted® S Saud Araba 49%
GA4S Secure Solutions (SA) (Pty) bimited S South Africa 74%
G4S Cash Solutions (Svenge) AB C Sweden 100%
GA4S Securtty Solutions AB ) Sweden 100%
G4S Technology LLC {formerly Adesta LLC) 5 USA 100%
Armot Group Nlorth Amenica Inc S USA 100%
G4S Youth Services LLC S usa 100%
RONCC Consutung Corporaton S USA 100%
G4S Secure Solutions (USA) Inc ) USA 100%
Wackenhut Serwices Inc ) USA 100%
WSI-All Star Facidity LLC ) USA 100%
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45 Significant investments continued
Cournry of Ulbmate
Produc segment rCarporat on CWRErSmID
Jont ventures (see note 21) z
Bridgend Custodial Services Limied? S England 59% E
STC {Milton Keynes) Limited S England 0% &
Bloemfantein Correctional Contracts (Pty) Limited* S South Afnca 20%
Associated undertakings (see note 22)
Space Gateway Support LLC S USA 46%
H
>
| GA4S Secunty Se~aces (India) Put, Limited has a year and of 31 March E
2 Safeguards Secuncor Sdn Bhd nas a year end of 30 june ]
3 Bndgene Custodial Se vices Limized has a year end of 30 September 5
4 Blpemfonten Correctonal Contracts (Pty) Limsted has a year end of 30 Septemper g
5 By wrtue of sharehokier agree~ents and Lt~er contraciual drrangements, the pro. b nas the power 10 govern te financial and operating pol ass 52 25 10 obtar the benefits from he actvites of
these companies. These are therefare Lonsoldated as full subs danes.
L3
4
c
[}
E
o
H
Q
4]
]
o
E
&
g
- =
o
3
£
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Parent company balance sheet
At 31 December 2010

2010 2009
Notss fm im
Fixed assets
Tangible assets ) 12 10
Investments © 2,548 34
2,560 3151
Current assets
Debtors © 1,067 2615
Cash at bank and in hand 19 12
2,086 2627
Creditors = amounts falling due within one year
Bank overd: aft {unsecured) (198) (118)
Borrowings {unsecured) ® (80) Gh
Other creditors 4] {1,634) (3215)
(1,912) (3429
Net current assets/(liabilities) 174 (797}
Total assets less current llabilities 2,734 2354
Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings (unsecured) ] (1,690) {1588)
Other cediton s ) ()] €4]
(1,696) (1595)
Provisions for kabilities and charges () ()] h
Net assets 1,037 758
Capital and reserves
Called up share capual ” 353 353
Share premuum and reserves 0] 684 405
Equity sharehelders’ funds 1,037 758

The parent company finanaal statements were approved by the board of directors and authonised for issue on 14 March 20

They were signed on 1W Z

Tmor Dlghton
Dhrecior




G4S ple Annual Report and Accounts 2010 n7
Parent company reconciliation of movements in equity shareholders’ funds
For the year ended 31 December 2010
2010 009
im fm
Retained profit far the year 382 128
Changes in far value of hedging dervatives 5 &
Shares issued - 3 3
Didends declared (103) @9 £
Own shares purchased {10) (10 o
Equity-settied transactions 7 7
Tax on equity movements {2} (@3]
Net increase in shareholders funds 79 38 5
Opening equrty shareholders funds 758 720 &
[
Closing equity shareholders' funds 1,037 758 -
5
@
g
&
E
$
o
]
E
I3
!
)
g
g
'
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

(a) Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The separate finanaal statements of the company are presented as required by the Comparies Act 2006 They have been prepared under the histoncal cost
comvention except for the revaluation of certain financial instruments and in accordance wath applicable United Kingdom Accountng Standards (UK GAAP)

The financial staternents have been prepared under the going concern basts

Exemptions
Under secton 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the company 1s exempt from the requirement to present its own profit and oss account.

The company has taken sdvantage of the exemnption from preparing a cash flow statement under the terms of FRS | Cash Flow Stotements The cash flows
of the company are included within its consoldated financial statements

The company 1s also exempt under the terms of the revised FRS 8 Related Party Disclosures from disclosing related par ty transactions with wheolly owned
subsidiaries within the group

The consohdated financidl statements of the group contan financal nstrument disclosures and comply with FRS 29 financal Instruments: Disdlosures
Consequently the company has taken advantage of certan exemptions in FRS 29 from the regurement to present separate financial Instrument disclosures
for the company

The presentation of the parent company financiat statements has been changed to round results to the nearest £1m whereas previously they were rounded
to the nearest £0 Im Thss change has required the 2009 figures to be restated and as a result there are some immatenal nconsistencies between the
restated rounded 2009 figures n the 2010 accounts compared to the same figures disclosed to the nearest £0 im in the 2009 accounts In addition there
may be immatenal rounding inconsistencies between the notes to the accounts and the primary statements for the 2009 figures

Tangible fixed assets

Tangble fixed assets are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and any provision for mparment. Tangible fixed assets are depreciated ona
straight-line basis over ther expected economic ife Short leasehcld property (under 50 years) s depreciated over the hfe of the lease Equipment and
vehicles are depreciated over perads up to a maximum of ten years

Fixed asset investments

Fixed asset investments which comprise iInvestments in subsidiary undertakings, are stated at cost and reviewed for imparrment if there are indicators that
the carrying value may not be recoverable

Fsnancial instruments

Financial assets and financial habihties are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provistons of the instruments

« Externul debtors
Debtors do not carry interest and are stated initially at their far value The company provides for bad debts based upon an analysis of those that are past
due in accordance with local conditions and past default expenence

= Cush at bunk and in hand and bank overdrafts
Cash at bank and in hand and bank overdrafts comprise cash balances and call deposits

+

interest-beanng borrowings

Interest-bearng bank overdrafts loans and koan notes are recognised at the value of proceeds received net of direct ssue costs Finance charges including
premiums payable on settiement or redemption and direct issue costs are recogrnised i the profit and loss account on an accrual basis using the effectve
nterest method

* External creditors
Creditors are not interest-beanng and are stated imyally at ther far value

Amounts owed to/from subsitiary undertukings
Amounts owed to/from subsidiary undertakings bear interest at prevailing market rates

Equity nstruments
Equity instruments ssued by the company are recorded at the value of proceeds recenved, net of direct 1ssue costs

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past evenits and a reliable estimate of the amount
can be made

Dernvative financral instruments and hedge accounting

In accordance with s treasury policy, the companty only holds or ssues derwative financial instruments to manage the group's exposure to financial nsk,

not for trading purposes Such financsal sk includes the interest nsk on the group’s vanable -rate borrowings the fair value nsk on the groups fixed-rate
borrowings commodity nisk i relation to its diesel consumption and foreign exchange nisk on transactions, an the translation of the group s results and on
the tanslation of the groups net assets measured in foregn currencies The company manages these nsks through a range of dervvative financi! iInstruments
sncluding interest rate swaps fixed rate agreements commodity swaps commodity options forward foresgn exchange contracts and currency swaps.
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(a) Significant accounting policies continued

Denvative finanaal instruments and hedge accounting conunued

Derwatve financal instruments are recogmised in the balance sheet as financial assets or liabfiwes at far value The gain or loss on remeasurement to far
value 15 recognised Immedhately In the profit and loss account, unless they qualify for hedge accounting Where dervatves do gualify for hedge accounting,
the treatment of any resultant gan or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged as descrbed below

+ Farvalue hedge

The change i the far value of both the hedging instrument and the related poruon of the hedged rtem 1s recognised mmediately 1n the profit and loss
account :

 Cash flow hedge
The change i the far value of the portion o the hedging instrument that s determined to be an eflective hedge 15 recognised in equity ang subsequently

recycled to the profit and loss account when the hedged cash flow impacts the profit and foss account The ineffective portion of the fair value of the
hedging nstrument 1s recognised immediately in the pr ofit and loss account

Leases

Annual rentals payable or recevable under operating leases are charged or credited to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Foreign currencies

The financial statements of the company are presented i sterling 1its functonal currency Transactions in currences other than sterling are 4 anslated
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions At each balance sheet date monetary assets and liabilities which are denominated
in other currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date Non-monetary assets and habiities carnied at far value which are denomimated in
other currencies are translated at the rates prevaiing at the date when the far value was determined Non-monetary items measured at historical cost
denominated i other currencies are not retranslated Gains and losses ansing on retranslation are ncluded n the profit and loss account

Taxation

Current tax s provided at amounts expected to be pad (or recovered) using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date

Deferred tax s recogrised in respect of all matenal tming differences that have onginated but not reversed by the balance sheet date Deferred tax is
measured on a non-discounted basis at tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the timing differences reverse based on tax rates and
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets are recogrised where their recovery 15 consider ed more hikely than
natin that there will be sutable taxable profits from which the future reversal of undertying tming differences can be deducted

Pensions

The company participates n mutbi-employe: pension schemes in the UK which provide benefits based on final pensicnable pay The company 1s unable to
identify its share of the schemes assets and habilities on a consistent and reasonable basis In accordance with FRS 17 Retrement Benefits the company treats
the schemes as if they were defined contribution schemes and recogrises charges as and when contnbutions are due to the scheme Detadls of the schemes
are included in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements

Share-based payments

The company g1 ants equity-settied share-based payments 1o certain employees The far value of share-based payments 15 determined at the date of grant
and expensed, with a carresponding Inc ease in equity on a straight-ine basis over the vesung period based on the company s estmate of the sharas that will
eventually vest. The amount expensed 15 adjusted over the vesting penod for changes in the estmate of the number of shares that will eventually vest save
for changes resutiing from any market-related performance condiions

Dividends
Dmdends are recognised as distributions to equity holders in the penod in which they are pad or approved by the shareholders in general meeting,

Financal guarantees

The company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other comparues within the group The company treats such
contracts as a conungent habirty unless and untl such time as it becomes probable that the company will be required to make a payment under the
guarantee

Own shares held by employee benefit trust

Transactions of the company-sponsored employee benefit trust are included i the parent company financal statements In particular the trusts purchases
of shares in the company are debited directly to equity
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Notes to the parent company financial statements contnued

{b) Tangible fixed assets
Land and Equipment
buildumg and vehel Toeal
im £m £m
Cost
At | January 2010 3 10 13
Additons at cost - 3 3
Disposals at cost - (3] (N
At 31 December 2010 3 12 15
Depreciation
At | January 2010 ()] (2) {3
Charge for the year - (N (n
On disposals - | |
At 31 December 2010 ()] 93] (3
Net book value
At 31 December 2010 2 10 12
At 31 December 2003 2 8 10
The net book value of land and buddings comprises short leasehold buldings (Under 50 years)
(<) Fixed asset investments
The following are ncluded n the net book value of fixed asset investments
Total
Subsidiary undercakings im
Shares at cost.
At | January 2010 3141
Additions 4
Impairments (595)
Disposals @)
At 31 December 2010 2,548

The impairment within the carrying value of investments in the year s prmardy due to a reduction in the net asset value of certain subsidiary undertakings
The impairment has been offset by dnvidend income receved from these subsidiary undertakings making the overall impact 1o the profit and loss account
£nil Details of significant investments held by the parent company and the group are set out in note 45 1o the consolidated financial statements

(d) Debtors
2010 2009
im im
Amounts owed by group undertakings 1,932 2490
Other debtors 36 53
Prepayments and accrued income 3 2
Dervative financial mstruments at fair value 96 70
Total debtors 2,067 2615

Included within derative financal nstruments at far valug & £85m due after more than one year (2009 £58m) See note (g) for further detalks
Inchuded in other debtors s £4m (2009 {7m) with regard 1o deferred tax compnsed as follows.

2010 009

- £m On

Accelerated capial allowances (U] -
Ernployee benefits 2
Changes in fan value of hedging derwatwes 3 5
Total deferred tax 7
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{d) Debtors continued
The reconcdiation of deferred tax balances is as follows
Total
fm
At | January 2010 7%
Charged to profit and loss 0] ;;-,
Charged to equity in relation to changes in fair value of hedging denvatves @ o
At 3] December 2010 4
(e) Borrowings (unsecured) 3
The unsecured borrowings are in the following currencies: §
2010 2009 B
£m m g
Sterting 651 07 2
Euro 252 306
US dollar 867 866
Total unsecured borrowings 1,770 | 679
»
The payment profile of the unsecured borrowings is as follows §
2010 06§
m m 3
Repayable within one year 80 il ©
Repayable within two to five years 750 584
Repayable after five years 940 1004 &
Totat unsecured borrowings 1,770 1,679 §
g
Undrawn cormmitted facilities mature as follows E
2010 2009 E
Lm £m [T
Within two to five years 552 8i5
Total undrawn commutted faciliies 552 615

Borrowings consist of £617m of floating rate bank loans (2009 £562m) and £1 153m of fixed rate loan notes (200% £1 117m} Bank overdrafts bank loans
loan notes ssued in July 2008 and May 2009 are stated at amortsed cost. The loan notes issued in March 2007 are stated at amortised cost recalculated

at an effective Interest rate current at the balance sheet date as they are part of a far value hedge relatonship The drrector s beleve the far value of the
company s bank overdrafts bank loans and the loan notes ssued in March 2007 caleulated from market prices approximates to their book value US$265m
(£165m) of the loan notes issued in July 2008 have a fair value market gamn of £39m (2009 £30m) The far value of the remaining notes approximates to

ther book value

Borrowng at floating rates exposes the company to cash flow interest rate nsk. The management of this nsk s detaled in note (h)

There were no finanaal labiities upon which no interest 15 paid

(1) Other creditors
1010 2009
£m fm

Amounts falling due within one year
Trade credrtors 4 3
Amounts owed to group undertakings 1,574 3156
Other taxation and social securtty costs 2 2
Other creditors 5 4
Accruak and deferred income 39 38
Derwvative financial instruments at far value 0 12
Total creditors — amounts falling due within one year 1,634 3215
Amounts falling due after more than one year:

Dernvatwve financial instruments at far value 6 7

Shareholder information
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Notes to the parent comparny financial statements contrnued

(g) Denvative financial instruments

The carrying values of dervatve financial nstruments at the balance sheet date are presented below

Asyets Assets Liabilities Liabilites

1010 2209 2010 2009

im im tm £m

Cross currency swaps designated as cash flow hedges 39 30 - -
Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges - - 13 19
Interest rate swaps designated as farr value hedges 55 40 - -
Commodity swaps 2 - 3 -
9 70 16 19
Amounts fallng due after maore than one year (8s) (58) {6) {7)
Amounts falkng due within one year 1] 12 10 12

Derwative financial Instruments are stated at fan value based upon market prices where available or atherwise on discounted cash flow valuatons The mark
to market valuation of the dervatives has increased by £29m (2009 decrease £78m) during the year

The interest rate cross currency and commodity swaps have the following maturities

Assets Assets Liabilibes Labilises

010 2009 2010 2005

im m im £m

Within one year 1 - 4 3

In the second year 1 - 8 6

In the third year 10 - 3 8

In the fourth year - 7 | 2

In the fifth year or greater 19 2] - -

Total carrying value 41 30 16 19
Projected settlement of cash flows (including accrued interest} assocated with denvatives

Assets Assets Lrabidities Labwleses

2010 009 2010 2009

im Im im £m

Within one year 1 I ¥ 13

In the second year 1 - [} 6

In the third year 9 - | pi

In the fourth year - 8 - -

In the fifth year ot greater 31 2 - -

Total cash flows 43 30 19 21

(h) Financial risk

Currency risk and forward foreign exchange contracts

The group conducts business n many cunencies The group presents its consohidated financial statements in sterling and it1s N consequence subject to
foreign exchange nsk due to the translation of the resutts and net assets of its foregn subsidianes The comparny therefore hedges a substantial portion of the
groups exposure 10 fluctuations in the translation into stering of its overseas net assets by holding loans in forergn currencies Translation adjustments arsing
on the transfation of foreign eurrency loans are recognised in the profit and loss account.

The company no longer uses foreign exchange contracts to hedge the residual portion of net assets not hedged by way of loans. This foreign exchange
hedging programme was terminated n February 2009 The company believes cash flow should not be put at rsk by these nstruments in order to preserve
the carrying value of net assets given the changed liquidity emvironment post the global credrt crisis

Cross currency swaps with 2 noninal vakse of £134m were arranged to hedge the foreign currency ask on US$265m of the LS Private Placement notes
ssued in July 2008 eflectvely fiang the stering value on this portion of debt at an exchange rate of 19750

Interest rate risk and interest rate swaps

Borrowng at floating rates as desanbed in note 29 to the consoldated financial statements exposes the group to cash flow interest rate rsk, which the
¢ompany manages within pohicy kmits approved by the directors. Interest rate swaps and 10 a mited extent, forward rate agreements are uthsed to fix the
interest rate on a proporton of borrowangs on a reducing scale over forward periods up to a maximum of five years. At 31 Decembes 2010 the nominal
value of such contracts was £134m (in respect of US dollar) (2009 £170m) and £167m (in respect of euro) (2009 £218m), ther weighted average mnterest
rate was 5% (LS dollar) (2009 5.0%) and 3 7% {euro) (2007 37 %) and ther weighted average perod to maturity was one and a half years All the interest
rate hedging mstruments are designated and fully effective as cash flow hedges and movements in therr far value have been deferred in equity
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{h) Financial risk continued

Interest rate risk and interest rate swaps contnued

The US Private Placement market 1s predominantly a fixed rate market, with investors locking for a fixed rate retumn over the bfe of the loan notes At the
tme of the first issue in March 2007, the company was comfortable with the proportion of floating rate exposure not hedged by interest rate swaps and
therefore rather than take on a higher propor tion of fixed rate debt arranged fixed to floatng swaps effectively converting the fixed coupon on the Private
Placement to a floaung rate Following the swaps the resutung average coupon on the US Private Placement is LIBOR + 60bps These swaps have been
documented as faw value hedges of the US Private Placemnent fixed interest loan notes with the movements in therr fair value posted to profit and loss

at the same tme as the movement in the far value of the hedged item

The interest on the US Private Placement notes ssued in July 2008 and on the GBP Putilic Bond 1ssued in May 2009 was kept at fixed rate

Commodity risk and commodity swaps

The groups principal commodity risk relates to the fluctuating level of diesel prices par ticularly affecting its cash solutions busmesses The company acts as
a market Intermediary arranging commaodity swaps and commodity options with its refationship banks with back to back deals on identical terms with its
subsidiaries to fix synthetically part of the exposure and reduce the associated cost volatiity

Counterparty credit risk
The company s strategy for credit risk management 1$ to set mirimum credit ratings for counterparties and monitor these on a regular basis

For treasury-related transactions the palicy iimits the aggregate credrt risk assigned 1o a counterparty The utiisation of a credit limit s calculated by applying
a werghting to the notional value of each transaction outstanding with each counterparty based on the type and duration of the transaction The total mark
to market value outstanding with each counterparty is closely monitored For short-term transactions (under one year) at inception of the transaction the
finzncial counterparty must be nvestment grade rated by erther the Standard & Poor's or Moody's rating agencies For long-term transactions at inception
of the transaction, the financal counterparty must have a minimum rating of A+/Al from Standard & Poor's or Moody s

Treasury transactions are dealt with the company s relationship banks, all of which have a strong investment grade ratng At 31 December 2010 the largest
two counterparty exposures related to treasury transactions were £37m and £21m and both were held with mstitutions with long-term Moody s credit
ratings of Azl These exposures represent 39% (2009 40%) and 21% (2009 20%) of the carrying values of dervatve financial snstruments, with a far value
gan at the balance sheet date Both of these banks had significant loans outstanding to G45 plc at 31 December 2010

The company participates in the groups mult-currency nobonal poohing ¢ash managernent system with a wholly owned subsidiary of an Aa3 rated bank.
There s legal nght of set off under the pooling agreement.

(i) Provisions for liabilities and charges

Coerous
congraces
im

At | January and at 31 December 2010 !

The onerous contracts provision comprises a provision aganst future habidities for all properties sub-let at a shortfall and for long-ter m idle properties
The provision 15 based on the value of future net cash cutflows relating to rent, rates service charges and costs of marketing the properues

(i) Share premium and reserves

Share Profit and Own

premium loss account shares Toeal

im im Lm £m

At | Jaruary 2010 258 159 (12) 405
Retained profit - 382 - 382
Changes in far value of hedging denvatives - 5 - 5
Dvidends declared - (103) - (103)
Own shares purchased - - (10) ({1)]
Own shares awarded - (10) 10 -
Equrty-settled transactions - 7 - 7
Tax on equity movements - )] - @

At 31 December 2010 258 438 {12) 684
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Notes to the parent company financial statements contnued

(k) Operating lease commitments
At the balance sheet date the company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases which expire as follows

2010 2009

im m

In the second to fifth year s inclusive 1 |
Adter more than five years I I
Total operatng lease commitments 2 2

{{) Auditor’s remuneration

Fees pad to KPMG Audit Pic and 1ts associates for non-audrt services 1o the company itself are not disclosed in its mdividua! accounts because the company s
consohdated finanaial statements are required to disclose such fees on a conschidated basis

{m) Scaff costs and employees

2010 2009

Number Nurmber

The average monthly number of employees of the company dunng the year was 39 314

Total staff costs, including directors emoluments, were as follows

010 2009

im £m

Wages and salaries 41 37

Sooal secunty costs 4 3
Pensron costs 2

Total staff costs 47 47

(n) Share-based payments

The group has two types of equity-setiled, share-based payment schemes i place (I} share options previously held by employees over Secuncor pke shares
and rolled over to G45 plc shares wath the acquisition of that business on 19 july 2004 and (2) conditronal allocations of G4S plc shares Disclosures relevant
to the company are presented within note 42 to the consoldated financial statements

(o) Related party transactions

Certain disclosures relevant to the company are presented within note 43 to the consohdated financial staiements Company transactions with group
undertakings pnmaniy consist of royalty charges, central service charges group insurance recharges and loan transactions

There were no material transacuions with non-wholly owned group undertakings in 2010 (2009 £36m loan repayment from G45 Secunity Services (SA)
(Pty) Limited)

{p) Contingent liabilities

To help secure cost effectrve finance fachities for its subsidianes the company ssues guarantees to some of its finance providers At 31 December 2010
guarantees totaling £42Im (2009 £387m) were in place in support of such faciiies

The company 1s included in a group registration for UK VAT purposes and 15 therefore jointly and severally hable for all other UK group companies’ unpasd
debis in this connection The habiity of the UK group regstration at 31 December 2010 totalled £14m (2009 £12m}

{q) Post Balance Sheet Events

I Janary 2011 certan investments assets and habnhbes and personnel were transferred from G4S plc to G4S Corporate Services Limited a whally-owned
subsidiary of GA45 plc Considerauon to date has been settled in cash by G4S Corporate Services Lmited funded through a share capital nection and
intercomparnyy loan from G45S ple These transactions form part of a wider reorgarusation of the UK holding company legal structure which will be completed
n 2011 GA4S plc has made a gain to date of approsamately £1,400m however the full finanaal effect of the transactions s not yet known
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

THIS DOCUMENT [S IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION.

If you are in any doubt about the contents of this document or the action you should take, you should immediately consult your
stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other independent professional adviser authorised pursuant to the Financial
Services and Markets Act 2000 If you have sold or otherwise transferred all your shares in G4S plc, please send this notuce and the
accompanying documents to the person through whom the sale or transfer was effected so that it can be passed on to the
purchaser or transferee,

Notice 15 hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of G45 plc will be held at Ironmongers Hall Barbican, London EC2Y 8AA on Thursday |9 May 2011
at 200pm in order to consider and 1f thought fit, 1o pass the following Resolutions

Resolutions | to 15 and Resolution 18 will be proposed as ordinary resolutions Resolutions 156, 17 19 and 20 will be proposed as special resolutions
I To recene the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 December 2010 and the reports of the directors and auditor thereon
To receve and approve the Directors Remuneration Report contaned i the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2010

To confirm and declare dmdends

To elect Clare Spottiswoode {member of the Remuneration Commitiee) as a director

To elect Winnie Kin Wah Fok {member of the Audit Committee) as a director

To re-elect Alf Duch-Pedersen (member of the Nomination Committee) as a director

To re-elect Lord Condon {member of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Commuttees) as a director

To re-elect Nick Buckles as a director

W o~ oy b W N

To re-elect Trevor Dighton as a director

1G To re-elect Grahame Gityson as a drector

I To re-elect Mark Eliott (member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committees) as a di ector
12 Toe-elect Bo Lerenius {member of the Audit and Remuneration Committees) as a director

i3 To re-elect Mark Setgman (member of the Audit and Remuner aton Committees) as a director

14 To re-appoint KPFMG Audit Pic as auditor of the company from the conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion of the next general meeting at which
accounis are laid before the sharehelders and to authonse the directors to fix ther remuneration

15 That the directors be and are hereby generally and uncondwionally authonsed pursuant 1o and i accordance with section 551 of the Comparies Act
2006 (" the Act ) to exercrse all the powers of the company 1o allot shares in the company or grant nghts to subscnbe for o convert any security nto,
shares in the company”

(i) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £117550 000 and

(¥} compnising equity secunties {as defined in section 560 of the Act) up to a further aggregate nominal amount of £117 550,000 provided that they are
offered by way of a nghts issue to holders of ordinary shar es on the register of members at such record date(s) as the directors may determine where
the equity securtties respectively attributable to the interests of the ordinary shareholders are proportionate (as nearly as may be practicable) to the
respective numbers of ordinary shares held or deemed to be held by them on any such record date(s) subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the directors may deem necessary or expedient to deal with treasury shares, fractional enttlements, record dates shares
represented by depositary receipts legal or pracucal problems arsing under the laws of any terrtory or the requrements of any relevant regulatory
body or stock exchange or any other matter-

prowded that this authonty shall expire on the date of the next Annual General Meeting of the company save that the company shall be entitled to make
offers or agreements before the expiry of such authortty which would or might require shares to be allotied after such expiry and the directors shall be
entitled to allot shares pursuant to any such offer or agreement as if this authorrty had not expired and 2l unexerased authorities granted previously to
the dwectors to allot shares under section 551 of the Act shall cease to have effect at the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting (save 1o the extent
that the same are exerasable pursudrt to section 551(7) of the Act by reason of any offer or agreement made prior to the date of this resolution which
would or might requrre shares to be allotted or nghts to be granted on o after that date}

16 That the direciors be and are hereby empowered, pursuant 1o section 570 of the Act subject to the passing of Resolution 15 abiove to allot equity
secunities (as defined in section 560 of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authority conferred by Resolution |5 above as If section 561 of the Act did not
apply to any such allatment, provided that this power shall be kmited tor

(1) the allotment of equity securibies in connection with an offer or issue of equity secuntes (but i the case of the authonty pranted under paragraph {n)
of Resolution {5 above by way of nghts issue only) to or in favour of the holders of shares on the register of members at such record date(s) as the
directors may determine where the equity secuniies respectively attributable to the interests of the shareholders are proportionate {as nearty as may
be practicable) to the respective numbes's of shares held by them on any such record date(s) but subject 1o such exdlusions or other arrangaments as
the directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional erstiements treasury shares record dates shares represented by depositary
receipts tegal or pracuocal problems ansing under the laws of any tertitory or the requirements of any relevant regulatory body or stodk exchange
or any other matter and

(i} the allotment (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph (1) above) of equity secuntties pursuant 1o the authonty granted under Resolution 15() above
up to a maximum nominal amount of £17 632 000

and shall expire on the expiry of the general authorty conferred by Resclution 15 above unless previously renewed vaned or revoked by the company
N general meetng, save that the company shall be entitled to make offers or agresments before the expiry of such power which would or might require
equity secuniies to be allotted, or treasury shares to be sold after such expiry and the directors shall be entitfed to aflot equity securtties or sefl reasury
shares purstant 1o any such offer or agreement as if the power conferr ed hereby had not expr ed

All previous unutihised authonties under section 570 of the Act shall cease to have effect at the condusion of this Annual General Meeting

Financial statements Governance Business review Overview

Sharcholder information



128 GA4S ple  Annual Report and Accounts 2010

Notice of Annual General Meeting continued

17 That the company be and 15 hereby generally and unconditionally authonsed for the purposes of section 701 of the Act to make market purchases (within
the meaning of section 693(4) of the Act) of ordinary shares of 25p each n the caprtal of the comparty on such terms and 1n such maniner as the directors
may from tme to tme determine, provmded that.

{i) the maxmum number of such shares which may be purchased 15 141,060 000,
() the mimum price which may be paid for each such share 1s 25p (exclusive of all expenses)

{1} the maximum price which may be paid for each such share 1s an amount equal to 105% of the average of the middle market quotations for an ordinary
share in the company as denved from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the five business days immediately preceding the day on which
such share 1s contracted to be purchased (excusive of expenses} and

{iv) this authonity shall, unless previously revoked or vaned, exprre at the concusion of the Annual General Meeting of the company to be held in 2012
(except in relation to the purchase of such shares the contract for which was entered into before the expiry of this authority and which might be
executed wholly or partly after such expiry)

18 That in accordance with sections 366 and 3567 of the Act, the company and all comparies which are subsidianes of the company during the penod when
thes Resolution 18 has effect be and are hereby unconditonally authonised to

{1} make polit«cal donations to political parties or mdependent election candidates not exceeding £50,000 1n total,
() rnake politecal donations to pohtical organisations cther than politicat par ties not exceeding £50,000 in total and
(m) incur polibical expenditure not exceeding £50 000 in total

(as such terms are defined in the Act) during the period beginning with the date of the passing of this resolution and ending on |8 Novernber 2012 or
if sooner at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the company to be held next year provided that the authonised sum referred to n
paragraphs () (n) and () above may be compnsad of one o more amounts i different curt encies which, for the purposes of calculating the said sum
shall be converted Into pounds stering at the exchange rate published in the Londen edrion of the Financiat Times on the date on which the relevant
donation 1s made or expendrture incurred (or the first business day thereafter) or if earer, on the day m which the company enters into any contract
or undertaking in relation to the same

19 That with immediate effect the company’s Articles of Associauon be amended by deteung the words an annual sum of £750000" in Article 92(1)
refating 1o the aggregate annual kmit on the fees payable to directors who do not hold executve office and replacing them with the words  an annual sum
of £1 000 000"

20 That a general meeting of the company other than an Annual General Meetng may be called on not less than 14 clear days notice
By order of the board

Peter David
Secretary
23 March 2081

The Manos

Manor Royal

Crawley

West Sussex RHID SUN
Company No 4992207

Notes

I Members are entied 10 appoint 3 proxy 1o exerase all or any of their nghts to attend and to speak and vote on ther behalf at the Annual General
Meeung A shareholder may appoint more than one proxy in relaton 1o the Annual Gener al Meeting provided that each proxy s appointed to exercise
the 1ights attached to a different share or shares held by that shareholder A proxy need not be a shareholder of the company A proxy form which may
be used to make such appointment and give proxy instructions accompanies this notice

2 To be vahd any proxy form or other mstrument apponting a proxy must be received by post or {duning normal business hours only) by hand at Capita
Registrars 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham Kent BR3 4TU in each case po later than 2 00pm on 17 May 2011

3 The retum of a completed proxy form other such instrument or any CREST Proxy Instruction (as descnbed in paragraphs 8 and 2 below) will not
prevent a shareholder attending the Annual General Meeting and voting in person if he/she wishes to do so

4 Any person 1o whom this notice 15 sent who ts a person nominated under section 146 of the Act to enjoy nformation nghts (3 Nornunated Person )
may under an agreement between him/her and the shareholder by whom he/she was nominated have a nght to be appointed (or to have someone
ekse appointed) as a proxy for the Annual General Meeting. If 2 Nominated Person has no such proxy appointment nght or does not wish to exercise it,
he/she may under any such agreement have a nght to geve instrucuons to the shareholder as to the exercse of voung nghts

5 The statement of the nghts of shar eholders n relation 10 the appointment of proxies m paragraph | above does not apply to Nominated Persons
The rzhts descnbed i these par agraphs can only be exerased by shareholders of the company

6 To be enutled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (and for the purpose of the deterTination by the comparny of the votes they may cast)
shareholders must be registered in the Register of Members of the company at 5 30pm on 17 May 2011 (or i the event of any adjournment at 5 30pm
on the date which s two workmg days before the time of the adjourned meeting) Changes to the Register of Members after the relevant deadline shall
be disregarded in determining the nghts of any person to attend and vote at the meeting or adpourned meeung
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7 Asat 22 March 2011 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publicabon of this Nouce) the company’s issued share capital consisted of
1,410,618 639 ordinary shares carmying one vote each Therefore the total votng nights in the company as at 22 March 2011 was 1410618 639

8 CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so by using the procedures
descnbed in the CREST Manual (avalable via www euroclearcom/CREST) CREST Personal Members or other CREST sponsored members, and those
CREST members who have appointed a service provider(s) should refer 1o therr CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) who will be able to take
the appropriate action on their behalf

9 In order for a proxy appointment or Instructon made using the CREST service to be valid the appropriate CREST message {a "CREST Proxy
Instruction ') must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Iretand Limited's speaifications, and must contamn the information
required for such nstruction as descnbed in the CREST Manual The message, regardless of whether it consututes the appointment of a proxy or is an
amendment to the nstrucuon given to a previously appomted proxy must, in order to be vahd, be transmitted so as to be recenved by the ssuers agent
(I2 RAIQ) by 200pm on I7 May 2011 For this purpose the ume of receipt will be taken to be the tme (as determined by the time stamp apphed to the
message by the CREST Application Host) from which the issuer’s agent is able to retneve the message by enquiry to CREST i the manner prescribed by
CREST After this time any change of instructions to proxies appainted through CREST should be communicated to the appointee through other means

10 CREST members and where apphcable ther CREST sponsors, or voting service providers should note that Euroclear UK & Irefand Limited does not
make avallable special procedures in CREST for any parucular message Normal systermn tirmings and limitations will therefore, apply in refaton to the input
of CREST Proxy Instructions. It 15 the responsibikty of the CREST member concermed to take {or, if the CREST member 15 a CREST personal member,
or sponsored member, or has apponted a voting service provider 1o procure that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such action as
shall be necessary to ensure that a message 1s transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular tune In this connection CREST members
and where applicable, therr CREST sponsors or votng system providers are referred, in particular to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning
pracucal kmitauons of the CREST systerm and timings

]

The company may treat as invalid 2 CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out In Regulation 35(5)() of the Uncertificated Secunties
Repulations 2001

12 Any corporation which 1s 2 member can appoint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all of its powers as a membe
prowided that they do not do 5o 1n relation to the same shares

13 Under section 527 of the Act members meeting the threshold requirements set out in that section have the nght to require the company te publish
on a website a statement setting out any matter relating to (1} the audrt of the company s accounts {including the auditor’s report and the conduct of the
audit) that are to be laid before the Annual General Meeting, or () any arcumstance connected with an auditor of the company ceasing to hold office
since the previous meeting at which annuat accounts and reports wer e laid n accordance with section 437 of the Act The company may not require the
shareholders requesting any such website publication to pay its expenses in complying with sections 527 or 528 of the Act Where the company 1s
required to place a statement on a website under section 527 of the Act it must forward the statement to the company s auditor not later than the time
when it makes the statement available on the webstte The business which may be dealt wath at the Annual Gener al Meeting includes any statement that
the company has been required under section 527 of the Act to publish on 2 website

14 Any member attending the meetng has the nght to ask questians The company must cause to be answered any such question refating to the business
being dealt with at the meeting but no such answer need be given if (3} to do so would interfere unduly wrth the preparation for the meeting or involve
the disclosure of confidential infermation (b) the answer has already been gven on a website n the form of an answer to a question, or () it 15
undesirable in the interests of the company or the good order of the meeting that the question be answered

15 A copy of this notice, and other information required by section 311A of the Act, can be found at wwwg4s com

16 Any electronic address or websre address 15 provided in this Notice of Meeting solely for the purpose stated expressly herein and may not be used
to communicate with the company other than for such purpose
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Recommendation and explanatory notes
relating to business to be conducted at the
Annual General Meeting on 19 May 2011

The board of G45 plc considers the Resolutions set out in the Nouce of Annual General Meeting are likely to promote the success of the company and are n
the best interests of the company and its shareholders as a whole The directors unanimously recommend that you vote in favour of the Resolutions as they
intend to do in respect of their own beneficizl holdings

Explanatory notes in relation to certain of the business to be conducted at the AGM are set out below

I Electron and re-election of directors (Resolutions 4 to 13)

The company s articles of association require that dr ectors retire and stand for election at the next AGM of the company following their appointment by the
board Ms Spottiswoode and Ms Fok are therefore standing for election on this basis Other board members are required to retire and submit themsetves
for re-election every three years and at least one-third of the board 1s also required to stand for re-election The board has however decided that it will
adopt the practice required by the UK Corporate Governance Code (wivch has replaced the Combined Code on Corporate Governance} whereby all
members of the board of directors of FTSE 350 companies will offer themselves for election by the company s members annually Accordingly in keeping
wath the board s am of following best corporate governance practice, ail the contnuing diectors are standing for election or re-election by the shareholders
at this year s AGM

2 Authority to allot shares (Resolution I5)
Resolution 15 seeks shareholder approval for the direciors to be authensed to allot shares

At the last AGM of the company held on 28 May 2010, the directors were gven authortty to allot ordinary shares in the capital of the company up to a
maximum nominal amount of £235,080000 representing approximately 66% of the company s then issued ordinary share capital This authority expires at
the end of this year's AGM Of this amount 470 160,000 shares (representing approximately 33% of the company s then issued ordinary share capital) could
only be allotted pursuant to a nghts ssue

Resolution 15 will, if passed renew this authonity to allat on the same terms as last years resolution (save that the number of shares in quest:on has ncreased
slightly) The board considers it appropnate that the directors be granted a simidar authority to aflot shares in the capital of the company up to a maximum
nominal amount of £235 100 000 representing approximately 66% of the company’s issued ordinary share capital as at 22 March 2011 (the latest practcable
date prior to publication of the Notice of Annual General Meeting) Of this amoung, 470 200,000 shares (representing approximately 33% of the company's
1ssued ordinary share capital} can only be allotted pursuant to a nghts issue The power will [ast untd the conclusion of the next AGM in 2012

The mtention of the directors 1s to allot shares upen the exercise of options granted over Securicor ple shares and rolled over nto options over the
companys shares As at 22 March 2011 opuons exist over only 50,000 shares The directors do not have any other present intenuon of exercising this
authortty In accordance with best practice, if the directors were ta exerase this authority so as to aflot shares representing more than one-third of the
current caprtal of the company they would all offer themselves for re-election at the following AGM atthough as noted n | above, it 1s the directors current
mtenuen to stand for election annually in any event

As at the date of the Notice of Annual General Meeting, the company does not hold any ardinary shares in the capital of the compary in treasury
However, the 5029,315 shares held within the G4S Employee Benefit Trust and referred to on page |0 {(note 37 to the consolidated financial staternents)
are accounted for as treasury shares

3 Disapplication of statutory pre-emption nghts (Resolution 16)

Resolution 16 seeks shareholder approval to give the drectors authonty to allot shares in the capital of the company pursuant to the authorty granted under
Resolution 15 for cash without complying with the pre-emption nghts in the Act in certan circumstances This authonty will permit the directors to allot.

(a) shares up to a nominal amount of £235 100000 (representing approximately 66% of the company’s ssued share capial) on an offer to existing
shareholders However unless the shares are allotted pursuant to a nights issue (rather than an open offer) the directors may only aliot shares up
to a nomunal amount of £117 550 GO0 {representing approsumately 33% of the company s issued share capital) (in each case subject to any adjustments
such as for fractional entitlements and overseas shareholders, as the drectors see fit) and

(b) shares up to a maximum nominal value of £17 632 000, representing approximately 5% of the issued ordinary share capital of the company as at
22 March 2011 (the latest practicable date pnor to publcation of the Notice of Annual General Meeting) otherwise than in connection with an offer
to existing shareholders

Aswith Resolution 15 the terms of Resolution |6 are the same as last years resoluuen {save that the number of shares n question has increased shightly)

The directors confirm their intention to follow the provisions of the Pre-emption Group's Statement of Pinaiples regarding cumulative usage of authormies
within a rolling three-year period The Principles provide that companies should not issue shares for cash representing more than 7 5% of the company's
1ssued share capital In any rolling three-year penod other than to existing shareholders without prior consultation wath shareholders

4 Purchase of own shares (Resolution 17)

Resolution 17 seeks to renew the company s authonity to buy back its own ordinary shares in the market as permitted by the Act The authonty hrits the
nurnber of shares that could be purchased to a maximum of 141,060,000 {representing a kttle less than 10% of the company’s issued ordinary share caprtal
as at 22 March 2011 (the latest practicable date pnior to publication of the Nouce of Annual General Meeting)) and sets minmum and maxumum prices.
This authority wall expure at the conclusion of the compary s AGM m 2012

The directors have no present intention of exercising the authonity to purchase the company’s ordinary shares but will keep the matter under review taking
1o account the finanaal resources of the company the company's share price and future funding opportuniues. The authonty will be exercsed only if the
directors beleve that to do so would result in an increase in earmings per share and woutld be in the interests of shareholders generally No shares were
purchased pursuant to the equivalent authonty granted to the directors at the company s last AGM

As at 22 March 2011 (the latest practicable date prior (o the publication of the Notice of Annual General Meetng) there were options over 50000 ordinary
shares m the capinal of the company representing 0 0036% of the company's issued ordmnary share caprtal If the authonty to purchase the company s ordmary
shares was exercised in full these warrants and options would represent 0 0039% of the company s issued ordinary share caprial
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5 Political donations {Resolution 13)

Resolution 18 1s designed to deal with the rules on political donations contained in the Act Under the rules, political donations to any political parties
independent elecuon candidates or poltical organisations or the incurming of political expendrture are prohibited unless authorised by shareholders

in advance What constitutes a political donation a poltical party a political organisation or political expenditure 15 not easy to deade as the legislation

15 capable of wide interpretation Sponsorship, subscriptions, payment of expenses, paid leave for employees fulfiling public duues and support for bodies
representing the business community in policy review or reform may fall within this

Therefore, notwithstanding that the company has not made political donations requinng shareholder authorty in the past, and has no intention erther

now or In the future of making any such poliical donation or ncurning any such poliacal expenditure i respect of any political party, political organisation
or independent election candidate, the Board has decded to put forward Resolution |8 which 1s the same as the resolution on this subject which was
passed at the company's AGM held on 28 May 2010 This will allow the company to continue 1o support the community and put forward its views to wider
business and government interests without running the rnisk of being I breach of the law As permitted under the Act, Resolution 18 also covers political
donations made, or political expenditure incurred, by any subsidianes of the company

6 Amendment to Article 92 (Resolution 19)

Institutional guidelnes state that a company's artides of assocation should mpose a fixed limit on the level of directors’ fees, either indwvidually or in aggregate
Avtcle 92(1) of the company s Articles of Association currently provides for an annual aggregate imd of £750 000

Resoluuon 19 15 a resolution to replace the current fimit in Article 92(1) of the company s Articles of Association with an annual aggregate lirit of £1 000000
The proposed aggregate it has been calculated by reference 10 the current number of drectors of the company, fees currently paid for the provision of the
chairmans services and the potential to appoint additional non-executive directors to the board Under the company's Articles of Association the fees to be
paid to directers in respect of the office of drector (such fees are distinct from any remuneration which may be pard 1o directors in respect of executrve
employment or other specal services to the company) are to be determined by the directors and the proposed amendment, should previde the dir ectors
with additional flexibility in appointing additional board members if this 1s seen as desirable and in setting levels of remuneration

T Period of notice for calling general meetings (Resclution 20)
Resalution 20 s a resolution to allow the company to hold general meetings (cther than AGMs) on 14 days' notice

Before the introduction of the Comparies (Shareholders Rights) Regulations 2009 on 3 August 2009, the minimum notice period perritted by the Act for
general meetings (other than AGMs) was 14 days One of the amendments made to the Act by the Regulations was to wicrease the rinimum notice penod
for general meetngs of hsted companies to 21 days, but with an ability for companies to reduce this period back to 14 days (other than for AGMs) provided
that two condittons are met The first condmion is that the company offers a faciity for shareholders to vote by electromic means This condition 1s met fthe
company offers a faclity accessible to all shareholders, to appoint a proxy by means of a website The second condrtion 1s that there 1s an annual resolution
of shareholders approving the reduction of the minimum notice penod from 21 days to 14 days

The board 1s thes efore proposing Resolution 20 as a special resolution to approve |4 days as the minmum perted of notice for alt general meetings of the
company other than AGMs The approval will be effective until the company s next AGM when 1t 1s Intended that the approval be tenewed The beard will
consider on a case by case basis whether the use of the flexibiliiy offered by the shot ter notice penod s mertted taking Into account the crcumstances
nchuding whether the business of the meeting is time sensiive
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Group financial record

Employees o
With 625000 employees G45 15 the second largest GRAPH +5 /
prvate employer in the world We take great pnde in O
the important work camed out by our global workforee REMOVED in employee numbers
who do everything they can to ensure the security and n 2010
safety of our customers and their assets
Annualised labour
turnover rate; down
from 27% in 2009
Earnings per share o
Since 2004, G45 has generated average adjusted earmings GRAPH + ’ /
per share growth of 15% on a compounded basts o
REMOVED EPS in 2010
EPS CAGR*
from 2004 to 2010
Revenue o
(45 revenues have grown by an average of 16% since GRAPH +4 /
2004 The group strategy for enhanced growth has o
helped deliver strong underlying organic growth REMOVED Revenues in 2010

together with capabilty adding-acquisiions to help drve
growth nto the future

+1676

Revenue CAGR*
from 2004 to 2010
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Profit
Ovperating profit, defined as profit before interest. tax

+5%

and amortisation, has grown by an average of 21% since GRAPH
2004 The increase in operating profit has been driven REMOVED PBITA n 2010
by strong revenue growth a strong cost focus and
an improving business mix with our higher growth o
businesses such as government and New Markets + Z | /
having higher than the group aver age margins O
PBITA CAGR*
from 2004 to 2010
Revenue from New Markets o
Qur global presence market shares and experience of GRAPH +9 /
working in less developed markets 1s unrivalied s almost O
any industry it means that we know what it takes to be REMOVED Revenue from
successful in these markets and are well postioned to New Markets in 20010
maximise the structural growth opporturuiies as they
develop over time I 280/
Revenue from
New Markets CAGR*
from 2004 to 2010
Share price o
From 2004 to the end of 20iQ the GA4S share price has GRAPH + I 0 ' /
in eased 107% outperiorming the FTSE 100 by 7% o
(see page 64 for s comparatve T5R performance against REMOVED G4S share price
that of the FTSE 100 and our bespoke peer group) since 2004
G4S share price CAGR*

* CAGR s compound average growth rate.

from 2004 vo 2010
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Financial calendar and corporate addresses

For the year ended 3! December 2010

Results announcements

Half-year results — August
Final resutts — March

Dividend payment

Interim paid — 15 October 2010
Final payable — 3 june 201} (6 June 2011 for
Drenmark})

Annual General Meeting
19 May 2011

Registered office

The Manor

Manor Royal

Crawley

West Sussex RHI0 SUN
Telephone +44 (0) 1293 554 400

Registered number
4992207

Registrars and transfer office

Caprta Registrars
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent

BRI 4TU

Telephone within the UK 0871 664 0300

{calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras)
from outude the UK +44 20 B639 3399

Fax +44 {0) 1484 600911

Emal ssd@@capitaregistars com

Please note that beneficial owners of shares
who have been nominated by the registered
holder of those shares to recewve information
nights under section 146 of the Companies Act
2006 are required to direct all communications
to the registered holder of thewr shares rather
than to the company or the company's registrat

Auditor

KPMG Audrt Plc
15 Canada Square
London El4 5GL

Stockbrokers

Deutsche Bank AG Lendon
Winchester House
| Great Winchester Street
London EC2N 2D8

RBS Hoare Govett
£35 Bishopsgate
London EC2M 3UR

Financial advisors

Greenhill & Co International LLP
Lansdowne House

57 Berkeley Square

London W1} 6ER

Deutsche Bark AG Londan
Winchester House

| Great Winchester Street
London EC2N 208

G4S website

www g4s com
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